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1 EVENING SESSION 
(Transcript tollowa in sequence L ·om Volume 

2 XXV. L) 
MS. RULE: co .. isaionera, my understanding is 

3 
that the witness can provide the information and we can 

4 
withdraw the last late-filed exhibit request. 

5 
CHAIRMAN WILSON : All right. 

6 
WITNESS BOWERS : It' s approxi~ately 35- J7t. 

7 
Q (By Ms . Rule) Attributable t o? 

8 
A Changeouts on the "Shine Against Crime" 

9 
progra•. 

10 
Q And the rest would be attributable to new 

11 
installations, correct? 

12 
A Right . 

13 
MS . RULE: No further queations. ::; taft w-,uld 

14 
withdraw the request for Late-filed Exhibit 631. 

15 
CHAIRMAN WILSON: I'm sorry, I had to go out 

16 
of the room for a minute , but did you explain your 

17 
Sched~le 1, Exhibit of Schedule 1; would you d o that 

18 
for me, please? 

19 
WITNESS BOWERS: Yes, sir. 

20 
What we've basically done is taken a n averag~ 

21 
home in northwest Florida that met the Florida Model 

22 
Energy Code and then compared it usi ng different 

23 
equipment in the home. Using the s ame SEER on air 

24 
conditin ning , w~ put in a 2.8 COP h~at pump on Scenar io 

25 
1. And on Sc enario 2, we included gas water heati ng 
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1 and a gas range. Scenario J, it's gas heat with a 70\ 

2 AFUE furnace with electric appliances. And Scenario 4 

J is the total gas with gas water heating and gas ra~ga. 

4 What it has done is summarized on kilo~att 

5 hours and therms used for that home. And you can see 

6 basically the total cost for a consumer in northwest 

7 Florida and we used an average cost for gas across our 

8 service territory . They range in prices, but we came 

9 up with 81 cents per therm; used that as the input tor 

10 the average cost per therms. You can see what the net 

11 results are, total cost range from $1,092 to I think 

12 the high 1e $1,231. And then we segregated the heating 

1J c ost out to show you wha~ a heating only cost would be 

14 for that consumer. 

15 On Scenario J and 4 why you would have 

16 kilowatt hours for t .he gas furnaces, it's t he kilowatt 

17 hours used for running the fan in the furnace. 

18 CHAIRMAN WILSON: Why are the heating therms 

19 in No. 4 less than those in No. J? 

20 WITNESS BOWERS: The internal heat gain from 

21 the gas appliances is greater than electr ica l 

22 appliances so the requirement of the BTUs in the home 

2J is not as great. It's what, 18 therms? 

24 You also see the corresp onding o n the far. 

25 usage on kilowatt hours, too, where that dropped ott 
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1 because of the same correlation. 

2 CHAIRMAN WILSON: You expressed in your 

J testimony what I took to be some concern about the 

4 Mode 1 Energy Code. 

5 WITNESS BOWERS : Sir? 

404 0 

6 CHAIRMAN WILSON: About the Hodel Energy Code 

7 and how it could be manipulated. 

8 

9 

WITNESS BOWERS~ Yes, sir. The quote on Pa·ge 9? 

CHAIRMAN WILSON: Yes. Would your Company's 

10 support revisions to the Model Energy Code. 

11 WITNESS BOWERS: We're actively participating 

12 in that right now. 

13 

14 

15 

CHAIRMAN WILSON: Are you? 

WITNESS BOWERS: Yes, sir. 

CHAIRMAN WILSON: Is this ln through 

16 legislation, or through community af fa i t·s rev is ions? 

17 WITNESS BOWERS: It's a two-year review. 

18 Requirement o! the Code; they are going through t he 

19 revision process and I t hink your Staff's aware t hat 

20 our staff's been working djligently to try to com~ up 

21 wit.h a fair and equitable way to measure energy 

22 efficiency in the Code . 

23 CHAIRMAN WILSON: Okay. Thank you. Any 

24 other questions? Any redirect? Thank you very much . 

2 5 WITNESS BOWERS : Thank you. 
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(Witness Bowers excused . ) 

CHAIRMAN WlLSON: I believe the next witnes~ -­

MS. RULE : Sta~t has no quest ions ot tne next 

5 witness and would be willing to s tipulate hi s tes timony 

6 into the record. 

7 KR. HOLLAND: Unless the Commissioners have 

e questions, that's pertectly all right with us. 

9 We nave, I think, provided the court reportbr 

10 with a corrected version . There were a tew minor 

11 changes. 

12 

13 

14 

COMMISSIONER EASLEY: Hearing Exhicit 295? 

KR . HOLLAND: Yes. 

CHAIRMAN WILSON: I don't bav~ any questions. 

15 Do either ot you? 

16 Kr. Hodges pretiled testimony then, by 

17 stipulation, rebuttal testiaony, will be l nserted into 

18 the record. 

19 (Exhibit No. 295 previously stipulated into 

20 evide nce.) 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION 



l 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 Q. 

7 A. 

8 

9 

10 

ll 

12 Q. 

13 A. 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

4 0 4 2 

GULF POWER COMPANY 

Before the Florida ~lie service Comml ssion 
Rebuttal Testimony of 

J . E. Hodges, Jr. 
In Support of Rate Relief 

Docket No . 891345-EI 
Date of Filing May 21 , 1990 

Plea•• etate your name, address and occupation . 

My name is John E . Hodges , Jr . My business addres s is 

500 Bayfront Parkway, Pensacola, Florida 32501. I am 

employed by Gulf Power as Vice President of Custome r 

Service and Division Operations. 

Pleaae describe your education and bueinet s background. 
I 

I received a Bachelor of Science Degree in Bus!ness 

Management from Florida State University. My c~ reer at 

Gulf Power started in 1966 when I joined the Compan} as 

a Residential Marketing Representa tive. I have held 

pos i tions of i ncraasing responsibi li ty including 

Manager of Appliance Sales and Service, Director ot 

Marketing and Load Management and General Manager of 

Western Division. I was promoted to Vice President c. 

Customer Service and Division Operations on Hay 19, 

1909. As a result of my 23 years experience at Gu l f 

Power Com~any and because of my background in marketing 

and the direct implementation ot the p rograms at the 
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customer level, I believe that I am fami liar ·.1ith the 

energy needs and demands ot our customers. 

Mr. Hodgea, what ia the purpose ot your testimony? 

The purpose ot my te11timony is to provide rel'\uttal to 

thr- pCiaition taken by Mr. Helmuth w. Schultz, III 

concerning a regulated utility's cuatomer Service and 

Information proqraas. 

What is your position regarding these aotivitie~7 

1 believe that all ene rgy suppliers hava a ~oral i~ not 

logal responsibility to satisfy ~he needs ot its 

customers tor coat-ettective products and serv ices. 

Companies will not be successful in th& tuture unless 

they understand the needs ot their customers and are 

willing and able to provide tor these needs. Cuscomer 

Service and I nformation programs are the delivery 

mechanisms tor meeting customer needs. 

Bow baa Gulf Power met its customers• nee~s in the 

pas t? 

We beg~n ottering a wide range ot conservatioro oriented 

customer service programs that focused on reducing the 

amount ~t energy purchased by ou r customers that was 

not being efficiently used. These programs were 
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implement ed in the mid-70 's because our customers 

expressed a need, and 110t because o f any regulatory 

requirements. These programs consisted o r e nerg y 

efficient homes, energy efficient commerc1al struc­

tures, residential energy auditing setvices and consum-

er education. 

The objective of these programs was t o lower t he 

average cost of energy, improve th9 effic ient ut i li za­

tion of the energy customers purchased and improve the 

customers lifestyle . Consumer response to these 

programs was very hiqh when they were implemented and 

continues t o be high 15 years later. We a re very proud 

of these programs because of their success and the fact 

that they are indicative o f how CUstomer Service and 

Information programs should be des igned and implement-

ed. 

Hr. Hodges, vbat about your most recent e!!orts, 

specifically the tive- ye•r strategic plan? 

I believe that our efforts were well thought out, 

beneficial to our customers and achieved the goals they 

wex e des igned t o accomplish. cust omers reac ted very 

favorably dlong with trade allies and the ~ommunities 

we serve . 
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What do you believe ia tba porcoption held by s oma of 

tbe parties to tbia case regarding tbia plan? 

The general perception is t hat the new program~ we 

implemented ! rom 1985 - 1989 were !or t he purpose o~ 

defeating the c~mpetition in the energy marke tplace. 

Do you believe that thi• perception is baaed on your 

No . The program performed as we i ntended . The porcep-

tion ot some is based solely on two mino r occurrenc es , 

the cloainq ot the Top Gun tape and Gas Busters 

T-ahirts, and aome comparative advertisements , that 

have overshadowed the real purpose ot the progralDs and 

the results that have been achieved. 

The decisions to i nclude the con cr oversial clos i ng 

in the tape and make the t -shirts were in hindsight, a n 

inappropriate reaction to the promot ional ef!orts of 

other energy auppliers. It is un!ortunate that two 

minor events over a !ive year per iod have d i storted th ~ 

purpose and benefits of tha entire customer service and 

intormation e!!orts . Although not personally i nvo'•.ted, 

looking back we now regret the dec i sion. However, we 

do not regret the implementation o! the prog r ams and 

are proud cf the results they achieved. 
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Hr. Hodges, what promotional practices are you refer-

ring to witb respect to the other energy suppliers? 

Primarily the two sellers of natu ral gas, who are not 

regulated by the Commission. These Companies have 

engaged in promotional practices which we believe are 

misle~ding. We believe the Commission ' s pos i tion 

regarding "source neutralityh seeks to h a v e the f~cts 

presented on the comparativ e benefits of electric vs. 

gas in a neutral, straightforward way to the benefit of 

the consumer. We have attempted to do this. The 

comparative advertisemants were run in response t o 

misleading information being presented t o our custo m-

ers. 

Do tbe programs you are currently imp!ementing contain 

any activities tbat may be in conflict with the Commis -

sion•s policy? 

~ have personally r eviewed each and every prog ram we 

are currently implementing and have satisfied m~selt 

that we are not in conflicc with Commission policy. 

The managers responsible for the implementation and 

monitoring of the programs have been personall}' 1n-

structad by me to e nsure that we do not nave any 

conflict. 
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Mr. Hodges, do you believe tbe programs ana exponaea 

supported by Mr. Bowers are neceaaary in t he tultillinq 

ot ita cuatoaer service obligation? 

Yes. As Mr. Bowers states, we have become the primary 

source of information tor our customers in a variet y o f 

areas. The programs tor whi c h we are soaking recovery 

are a vital part of th i s ettort. As a result of my 

vast experience in the tield with our customers, I am 

convinced that they expect and desire that we provide 

these services. 

Kr. Schultz arquea that tbeae are not aervioea vbicb 

abould be provided by tbe utility and tbat \..bey are 

available elaevbere. Do you agree? 

No. The Commission has r ecognized that t he utility is 

in the best position t o provide the broad s pec trum of 

services which are designed t o promote energy eft icien-

cy ana keep the customer sat isfied. Rather than 

dimin i shing the role ot the utility as the pr i mary 

provider ot energy services and i nformation, I see our 

r ole cont i nulng to increase. Since assuming my posi-

tion as the Vice-President over both the Customer 

Service and Division Operat ion a reas, I have con~inual -

ly evaluat~d t he proper r ole we should play in dea ling 

with our customers. I believe it is appropriate and am 
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seeking to i nstill in our employees a cul ture which is 

totally customer oriented . This ettort has received 

the tull support ot top management i n the Company. 

What the customer wants, we believe, is f:o be treated 

fairly and to rece ive informat ion which is straighttor-

ward and unbiased . This is what we are att empting to 

provide . 

How are you implementing this o banqe in c ulture? 

Organizational change originates with the executives 

who must communicate with employees and constantly 

reinforce the new concepts; without execut ive commit-

ment a lasting cultura l change will not occur. I have 

impl emented several internal initiatives since I 

assumed my current pos i t ion that nave resulted in 

creating a change in cul ture i n addition t o ident ifying 

methods o! providi ng better customer service. 

Please desc ribe these i nitiatives. 

The first initiative co~sisted of several of focus 

group sessions with employees respons ibl e for cus t ome r 

service and power delivery activit ies. I used these 

sessions t o f i.nd out how we were reac t ing to the needs 

of our r.ustomers, what needs were not being met and how 

could we t i ll i n the gaps . The employees provided 
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valuable information that was incorporated wi th direct 

input !rom customers that has !ormed t he foundation tor 

developing additional customer service programs. we 

tound out that our customers were satis fied Wlth their 

ratea and the reliability of their service, however, 

they vanted us to make it easier tor them to do busi -

ness with us. 

The second initiative was the formation of a 

working group consisting of three Division Managers, 

the General Managers of Power Delivery, and Market ing 

and other key management personnel. This group was 

charged with the responsibility of addressing customer 

needs and immediately researching and implementing 

programs that create customer satisfaction. 

The third initiative was creating a s ystem for 

obtaining employee suggestions on how we can imp~ove 

customer service . Employees were encouraged to provide 

suggestions and in some cases participated ln the 

implementation process even though it may ~ot havo been 

in their area of responsibility. I used this as a 

Means ot communicating to all employees that a cultura l 

change was taking place and that every employee had an 

important part to play 

Another initiative is fie1 o visits t o our local 

o!tice by myself and corporate o ff ice department heads 
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responsible t or customer s ervice. These trips are used 

to update the employees on issues !acing the Company, 

the proqrams chat are being implemented to address 

customer needs and to receive feedback f.rom employees 

on the status of programs currently being implemented. 

Wbat type of input have you received trom your employ-

The input from employ:les are mostly things t :1at the/ 

either see or get brought to their attention by 11rect 

cu.stomer contact. This has alwayo been the best source 

ot qualitative data. 

Wbat are some of the reau1ta you have achieved !rom 

tbeae initiatives? 

There have been several programs implemented or in the 

research stage . We have extended the hours ot opera-

tion of our commercial off i ces so that they are open 

for the customers' convenience !ot paying bills and 

applying tor service. our phone c enters are in opera-

tion longer to a llow customers who can 't or don't want 

to, personally come in the office to conduct business. 

This customer service is &specially important !or 
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businesses and out-of-town customers. We have imp1e-

mented a pilot program that allows a customer the 

option of applying for service by telephone i nstead o f 

personally coming into an office. Oc r division custom­

er accounting representatives give each cus tomer they 

have contact with a business card with a phone number 

the ouatomer can use to contact the same representative 

if the need arises. 

Some of thea• programs may seem l ike the common 

aonse thing to do but tho fact is we were no-: providing 

theae customer services. The change in culture has 

identifie.i the need tor those services and WA have 

reeponded by providing them to the satis fac tion of our 

customers. 

Wbat are some of the customer service and information 

aotivitiea you a r e oonaiderinq? 

We are following up on a request by several customers 

to provide summary billing instead of individual bil l s 

tor each account. CUs tomers such as school boards and 

governmental agencies have dozens of individual ac-

counts all co~ing due at different times of the month. 

Summarizing these accounts i nto a single bill ~ill save 

both the customer and company the expensG of processing 

multiple iJills. 
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We are develop i ng a brochur e that will provide 

c ustomers with information on how to apply ! o r electric 

service, how to report outages, the cuutomer programs 

and services that are avai l able t o them and who to call 

in order to participate in the programs. 

An employee cross-training program i s being 

developed that will enable our employees who do not 

have direct customer contact to bette~ understand what 

programs and services are available and the importarce 

of satisfying customer expectations. 

We have designed a program this year called 

Qua lity Service Index which will e nable us t o monitor 

the level of satisfaction our cust~mers have with the 

products and services we provide . We will use this 

information to make improvements i n t~e current pro-

grams and anticipate !uture needs . 

Kr. Hodges are you con3idering any changes to your 

program planning process. 

Yes. I want the planning process t o be expanded t o 

include other func tions in the Company and to solicit 

thei~ i nput at t he very beginning o f the prog ram 

planni~g process. I also want to c reate an environment 

that wi ll encourage al l employees to act ively partici-

pate in provid j r,g ideas !or new programs or how to 
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improve existing ones. Finally, I would like to 

sol icit the input from people and organizations that 

are external to the Company regarding significant 

changes in programs or strategic direct~on. 

Wben will you bave acbieved your goAl of meeting your 

customers customer service neec1a7 

Never. The energy marketplace is dynamic and we must 

be flexible enough to respond to the changes . Our 

customers expect their energy supplier to bo totally 

committed to satisfying their needs. They do not want 

us to be just a suppl ier they want us to be a partner 

in arriving at the most cost-effective eolution to 

the i r energy needs. We are cont inuiny our commitment 

ot an energy partner by providing superior customer 

service and information products and services that 

satiety their needs. The Good ~ents Home programs and 

E.nergy Education programs supported by Hr. Bowers are a 

vital part ot this ettort. 

What do you perceive to be your customers • needs i n the 

future? 

Customers want utility management to be committed to 

providing '-•1argy and energy related serv i ces at the 
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lowest possible coat at the convenience ot the cuato~­

ers and not the util ~ ty. 

Service reliability will become even ~ore i~por­

tant , especially tor residential customers, as the home 

becomes more automated. The " Smart House" is an 

example ot a step in that direction. CUstomers will 

want a wider variety o! pricing and b i lling options 

and, in the case o t industrial c u utomers, ones t hat are 

tailored to their own individual needs. 

CUstomers want their energy supplier to be social­

ly responaible by protecting the environment, becominy 

involved in societal issues such as illiteracy and drug 

education and they will expect utility management to 

demonstrate total commitment to meeting their c ustom-

ers' expectations tor products and nervices. They w1l l 

want their utility to take an active r oll in co~unity 

and economic development activities. 

Please auaaarise youx te•timony. 

Gult Power Company has consis tently demonstrated a 

long-term commitment to prov t ding the highest quality 

customer services. We intend to continue t o ~eet 

customer expectations in the tuture and are asking the 

Commirsion to continue to recogn i ze the benefits that 

a re derived by the customer. 
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We understand the Commission's concern about some 

isolated activities. We wou l d request, however, that 

the Commission consider what has actual ly been achieved 

by the customer service programs and not be distracted 

by the perception that has been created by the ac tivi-

tiea. 

The executive management at Gul! Power i s commit ­

ted to creating a meaningful cultural change that will 

create a greater focus on providing superio r customer 

services at the lowest possible cost to the total 

satisfaction of our customers, the Company and the 

Commission. 

Mr. Hodges, does tbia conclude your teati~ony? 

Yes, it does . 
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MS. RULE: Commissioners, I'd like to note 

2 for the record th.at I've passed out copies of Staff's 

3 Exhibits 536 through 538. That should be the last of 

4 the e~ibits that Staff has stipulated into the record 

5 that were not earlier provided. Additionally, Staff 

6 will withdraw Exhibit 516 whic h can be delet~d from the 

7 liat. 

8 CHAIRMAN WILSON: All right. 

9 MR. HOLLAND: Call Mr. Fell. 

10 GEORGE A. FELL 

11 was called as a witness on behalf of Gulf Power Company 

12 and, having been first duly sworn, test ified as 

13 follows : 

14 DIRECT EXAMINATION 

15 BY MR. HOLLAND: 

16 Q Mr. Fell, would you state your name, your 

17 business address and your position with Gulf Power 

18 Company? 

19 ~orge A. Fe ll, 500 Bayfront Parkway, P. o . 

20 Box 1151, Pensacola , Florida 32520. I'm the Manager of 

21 Internal Auditing and security. 

22 Q And Mr. Fell, have you caused to be filed in 

23 this docket testimony entitled "The Rebuttal Testimony 

24 of George A. Fell•? 

25 A Yes. 

FT~RIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION 
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Q Do you have any corrections t~ that 

testimony? 

A Yea, I have a couple. 

on Page 5, Line 15, it should r~ad, 

"Inventory vas either missing, or obsolete." Strike 

"and . • 

And Schedu le 1, Page 1, the fifth paragraph 

under tacta, start& out "the next shortage." Strike 

"next" and aake i~ • net, n-e-t . " 

An.d then on Page 2, tourth paragraph, I 

guess. It says "year." The year "1981" should be 

"'83,• and " ' 82 11 should be "'84." That's all the 

corrections . 

Q Mr. Fell, with those changes, it I were today 

to ask you the questions contained in your testimony, 

would your answers be the same? 

Jl. Yes. 

MR. HOLLAND: Hr. Chairman we'd ask that Hr. 

Fell's rebuttal testimony be inserted into the record 

as though read. 

CHAIRMAN WILSON: Without objection it will 

be inserted into the record as though read. 

MR. HOLLAND: I believe h is exhibits have 

been premarked and stipulated to. 

FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COHMISSIUN 
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GULP POWER COMPANY 
P.ef o re the Plorida Public Se r vice comm1ss: o r 

Reouttal Testimony ot 
Geo rg e A. FE.> ll 

In Suppo rt of Rate RP. IIPf 
Docket No. 891345-El 

Date of F iling !'lay JS , ! 99 0 

Please s tate you r name , address and occupati on . 

My name is George A. Pell , my bus1ness andress ! S ~00 

Bay fr ont Parkway, P . 0 . Box ll SI , Pensacola , F!o r 1r.a , 

325 20. I am employed by Gulf Powt>r Company as M~na1n 

ot Internal Auditing and Secu r it y. 

Please describe you r e ducational and professional 

backg r ound . 

r have a Bachelor of Science dec; ref> : n Accoun· 1 nn · ro"' 

Bow ling Green Business Un1ve r sity a,d a ~a stPrs ~nor~~> 

1n Account i ng from the Un1vers1ty of Dr- nvt r. wa ,· H 

audito r with the fi r m o f Ar thur And<> r se '' 1> Co . , Pl.lt: . • 

Accountants , for si x year s p r 1o r to )O !n:ng Gulr Pownr 

Company i n 1956 a s an accountant . I ha v~' hPl rl v,~ ! ,,s 

positions i n the Account1nq depa1tmenr and ~o·a!' :) , :•· •· · . : 

of Accou n ting p r io r t o assum1ng my p r e s~>nl " "!l: · .,-,~, 

1980 . Hy ~u rr ent reflpon sJhtl lt H~s 1ncludn · t•' 

d: r ection of t he Int ernal Aurlit1nq deo-'lflm~>n• ,, ,.J 

Corporate Se~ur1 t y . 

What is the purpose of your testimony? 
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The p ur pose of my testimony ts t:o rebut ttems l. 2 an<i 

3 of Robe r t a S . Bass ' testimony , and" a!Jay t~e 

conce r ns the Commiss i on may have r ega r dtng t~e tmpact 

o f t he s e issue s on the f i na nc i a 1 statements f 1 led hy 

Gulf Power i n Rate Re li e f Doc ket No . 891345 - EI. 

Essentially, my t e s t imo ny w1ll show tha t th ~ 

allegations ra ised by Mr s . Bass have , at mo s t , a 

mi nimal impact o n this ra te c ase . 

Have you prepared an Exhibit that conta i ns i nfor mation 

t o which you will refer in your testimony? 

Ye s . 

Co un s e l : We ask tha t Mr . Pell ' s F. xh i bi t I GAF-1) 

compri sed o f 2 Schedules , be mar ~ P<i f o r 

i dentifi cation as Exhi bits lq" through 2, 7. 

Bow are you ce rta in that the issue~ r a i sed i n Mrs. 

Bass ' testimony have no impa c t on t he rate case? 

The Company has c on ducted in vesttgattons of each 

incii vi dual i ssue and its 1mpact on the accounting 

r eco r ds of Gulf. The scope of these in ves ti ga ti ons 

i ncl uded, but wa s not limited to , resea rch uf 

historical accou nting r eco r ds , i nterv i ew s wt t~ bol~ 

employees and vendo r /contrac t o r s , a s we ll as~ rev1 ew 

of vendo r /co nt r actor records , and anal ysis of thP 
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accounti ng ent r ies a ssocia t ed with the se ts~uPs ann 

t hei r impact on the budget process. 

Please describe the issues you wi l l be add r e ssing i n 

your testimony? 

I wil l s peak to the f ollowtng Issues r aise J 1n 

Mr s . Bass ' test i mony: 

It em 1. The a llegat io n o f a $2, 000 , 000 invent o ry 

s ho rtage at the Gene r a l Wa r ehousP . 

Item 2. The m isa~p ropriat l on s by Ky le Cr of t : ~ nrl 

Item 3 . The un s uc c ess fu l ki c k-bac k scheme perr• rat e~ 

by a Gulf empl oyee aga i ns t a cont ract VPndo r . 

At page 3 of Mrs. Bass ' testimony, it i s stated t hat 

Carolyn Si rmon, a fo r mer warehouse supe rv iso r , 

testified in the Richard Leeper pe r ju r y t r ia l and i n a 

staff-conducted deposition that the 198 3 aud i t wa s 

inaccurat e because Gu lf Pow£ r had conc ealed an eno rmous 

s ho r tage , wh ich she estimated at aroun d $2,000 , 0 00 , by 

cou nting obsolete and damaged i tems a s good i tem s In 

the i nventory. Please desc r i he the audi t that wo s 

pe rformed and discuss the impft c t of any i nventory 

shortage on the rate case. 

The audit i n quest i on beg a n in August 1982 wi t h an 

Inven t o ry count pe r f o rmed by the Gene r al War ~,ouse 
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pe r sonnel. Ca rol yn Si rmon had been s upPrv tso r n f t he 

i Warehouse :>ince June , 1982 . Aurl t ttnq obs.-rverl t h" 

3 1nvento r y, conducted test counts , and controllen t hG 

4 fl ow of paperwo rk . The f i r st ! nvPntory count ln~I C cHPrl 

5 a net shor tage of ap~ rox imat ely ~4 00,00 0 lno " d oPt 

6 loss of $ 10,000 " as referred to in Mr s . B11 ss ' 

7 testi mony, page 2 , line 21) . Based o n the • e s u lts o f 

e tte cou nt and obse rvations made of the warPhouse 

9 Invento ry , it was det e rmined that the count wn s net 

10 accurate . As a result, Aud iting and the management 1n 

11 c harge of the Warehouse determined that a s eco nd cnu nt 

12 would be appropriate. Based on the observat iO ns ma~e 

JJ during the ficst count , Aud1ting provided war•housp 

14 management with a list of items requ 1 r 1ng co rr"cr1 vP 

15 ac tion befo r e a second count wou:rl hP pPrf o rmerl . Thesn 

16 Items included the identifiCat ion ann seg r,.gat1nn n ! 

:7 a ll obsolete mate r ials . W; :ehous~ management rPque ~ · p• 

18 and received pe r mission to r eo rganize the wan•hotlse .n 

Jr> o rder to facilitate the s econd counL . The seconn C()ur;• 

2C was conduct ed in April 1983 by f1ve count team s . 

21 t eam consisted of one Warehous~> emp loyee . o ne aud1t . , 

22 and one memb~r of General Serv l~ e s and warehouse 

23 ma nagement. The auditor ' s r espons1bllltle~ dur1nq th:s 

24 count included , bu t were not limited to , thP f ollowt'"lq : 

2C:, 0 Observing and r eLord i ng the count , 
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1 0 Ensur i ng rhat all items on the shelf we r P p roper.y 

2 marked and co~nted , 

3 0 Period icall:• ver:fy1nq that boxPs wE: rr f u!! lnd 

4 testing the count , and 

5 0 Al though aud i t ors are no t e xpe r t s regard ing 

6 mate r ials, quest ioning the counting ~f any 

7 material that appeared obsolete o r damaged . 

8 

9 Obser vationD made during the second count 

10 indicated a considerable improvement 1n Lhe 

11 organ i zation and identi f ication of t he mate r ials s 1n~ P 

12 the fi r st count performed 1n 1982. Tne r•:sults of the 

13 second count discl o sed a net shortage o f $ 8 ,4 62 . The r e 

1 4 were no indications in e 1ther cuunt t hat $2, 000 , 000 0f 

I 5 inventory was ei ther miss1ng o r obsolf' t r . l l : ; 

16 Important to note that the alleged $ 2 , 000 , 000 Mho r d~P 

1 7 wo uld have repres ented "3 5 4 pe r c e nt shr! nkaqP o ~ tl ,,. 

18 $3,7Cl0 , 000 value of the in vent ory du nnq ha · r : m~>. 

19 Schedule 1 provide s a deta i led account of hP aur.:· ~~ 

20 well as a discuss i on o~ why the 19&3 aud1t fa1:r>~ t n 

21 di sc lose the theft of mate r ials by Kyl e C r oft . 

22 The c apacity of an aud1 t t o detect mater1 al 

23 irregularity resulting fr om frau d and collus1 o n : s 

24 add ressed extensi vely by both pro f essional stanrlards 

25 and expert s in the field of aud iting . Both th~ 
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Ame r ican Institute o f Ce r tified Pub lic Acc ountant s 

(Af CPA) and the Insti t ute o f Jnt~ r nal Aurlt lOr~ (II ~ 

ag r ee thRt audit o rs ar e not he ld a ccoun t nble ! o r 

det ecting f ra ud accomplished t h r ough c o llus1 on , 

management ove rr i de o r fa lsif1 c at1 on of ~ocumPnts - a~l 

thre e of whic h ex is ted d u ri ng t he 1983 Ru~lt pPr1on. 

We c onside r the $8,4£2 net shortage acc u ra te ~ nrl 

suppo rted by a we ll docume nted audit perfo rmed 1n 

compl i a nce wi th professi onal auditing s tand a rds . We 

co nside r the allegation of a $2 , 000 , 000 invent o ty a s 

undoc ume nted and un s uppo r ted hear sa y. Even Kr s . S1rmon 

c haracte r i zed the amount a s a f igu r e s he had hear1 . 

The account ing ad justm~nt to t he a t n re s recotrl s o :o~ r 

the $ 8 ,462 s ho rtage discovered 1n the seconrl 1nvPntory 

was p r ocess ed i n 1983 and ha s no impact on the 1°8° 

rate case. 

At page 3 of Mrs. Bass ' test imony, the issue i s ra 1sed 

concer ning the theft of Gulf Power property by Ky le 

Croft, and reports the amount misappropriated to be 

around $300,000. Please desc r ibe the situat i on and any 

impact which the dollars associ ated with the 

misappropr iatio ns have o n the 1989 rate c ane. 

As repo rted i n Mr s . Bass ' te s t i mony , the $ 300 , 001) ~~ 

somewha t of an est imate and rep r esents not onP 
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Si tuation , but several schemes perpet raterl t'Y !ly ~e 

Cr o ft t o defraud Gulf Powe r. Ver , fl ed 

misapp r op r ia tions amount ~o appr n x tmaLPiy $ 1)) , 000 . 

S~hedu1e 2 provides a det atled analt SIS lf ~1e ver 1 ~ ~ ~~ 

schemes i nvol ved and the : r amount s . Th~> l a F;' o f he s p 

misapp r op riat ions occurre d ovP r fivP yPars a~o and d ' P 

not i nclud e d in the e xpenses pro)ectecl :n b P tncu rr Pd 

in 1990. Gulf Power does not buooe t f o r emp loyee t hr.f t. 

At pages 5 and 6 of Mrs. Bass' testimony, she discusse s 

an attempt on the part of a former Gulf Power empl oyee 

to extort kickback money from a cont ract vendo r . Wha l 

a re t he facte relating to this situat i on , and are there 

a ny dollars assoc i a Led with i t included i n the 

projected 1990 expens es? 

Fi r st , t here are no dollars a ssoci ated Wi th chiS ma r·er 

Included in the projec ted 1990 e xpen ses . Second , r!nc ~ 

no money ac tual ly changed ha nds , and the emplnv~~ 

involved wa s imme diately t e rm 1narerl upon n 

dete rm : nation of his i nvol veme nt 1n the attP.~ptPrl 

e Kt o rtion, this mat te r L S Irrelevant and shoo1lrl nnt !'P 

a n issue i n the rate case . 

Very si mply, when the Compa ny se:u rt ty depa rt mPnt 

lea rned that al l e gation s had been made thnt Marlr 1. 

Rubenac ker, an empl oyee of Gul~ Power , had sol:rtlerl 
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monetary ki c kback from a contractual wi nd ow :l e an1ng 

se rv i ce, an Inves tigation wa s tmmediaLely 1 n1t ia t e~. 

T~is investigation resulted 1n the rleter mination t hat 

Mr. Ruhenacker had , act i ng a lone , soliCited a k1c kba \r. 

f rom the w1ndow cleaning c omp an y . Aga1n , no payment 

wa s made. Gulf Power init ially lea r ned o f >. he a ll e') J-

t ions on February 17 , 1989. The inve s t •g at1 on was 

concluded on Februa ry 24, 1989, with Mr. Rune n<.c kPr' :· 

t ermination. 

On page 7 of Mrs. Bass ' testimony, s he refer s to the 

West Florida Landscaping scheme in whi c h $40,000 ! n 

false invoices vere submitted to Gulf Power for 

p&yaent. Please desc ribe the sc heme and a ny impact 1t 

may have on the 1989 rate case. 

The scheme referr ed to by Mr s . Bass 1nvohed Kyle Cr o ft 

and Dave Cook, owne r of >'l'es t Pl o r 1da Land.:;c a ;> Jng . n . ~ 

scheme is actua l ly a component o f tt,e $ 300 , 000 1r. 

misappr opriati o ns descr i bed a bo ve . Mr. Cr oft requos•P · 

that West Plorida Landscap1ng 1nclude 1n theH :nvl')t<' •· 

an amount of mon ey t o:- services that \1er~ no~ acr l1a::·/ 

rendered. Croft would then submi t to We st P\ o rJrl a 

Landscaping a Line Powe r 1nvoi ce fo r that salT'<> arno11n ' 

Upon rece ip t v f pay ment by Culf , We~l Pl o r 1n1 

Landscap ing would wr ite a checll t o L:ne Power , ·~·t.:c•. 
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was suppo rted by the bogus Line Power lnvo1ce. Kyle 

Croft and Lamnr Brazwell then conver t ed t he West 

F:o rida Landscaping checks to Line Power 1nt o cash . 

Between No vembet 1982 and Pebr ua r y 1983 , 28 fal se 

in vo1ces , t otalling $4 0 , 023 , f o r se rnces that were nor 

pro vided, were submitted by West Plo r1da Landscap1 n1 

and paid by Gulf. As shown 1n Schedule 2, th1s amount 

does not impact 1990 0 6 M expenses but Is tncluderl 1n 

Cost of Remo val. I am to l d that th~ ~ffect of thl~ I S 

to inc r ease rat e base $4 0 , 000 . 

The amount budgeted t o be pai d to Wes t F lor1rla 

La ndscap i ng in 1990 is that amoun t p r o v 1rlerl ! 0 ~ 1n • h~ 

Company ' s contract w1th West Plor1da Landscapin9 f o r 

wo rk t o be performed i n 19 9 0 . 

Mr. Fell , how can t he Commission be certain that t heft 

or fraud has not been c ommitted , of wh ich you are 

unaware, whi ch might impact the 1990 budgeted amounts 

used in t he Coapany' s rate case? 

Very fr ankly, the Commission IS 1n a position somewhcH 

s1 milar to that of the Comrany . Neither Cdn yuaranr ·· "' 

tha t thi s type of acti vi ty ha s not And will not OCI."ur 

aqain . What the company can do anrl has donP 1 s to ' ak•· 

those step s wh ich ~ r e prudent and r~asonable to d~tPr 

this type o f actiVIty. Management has aken ilf'' ton 
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deemed app r opriate agatnst thosP I nvol ved. 

and p r ocedures have been strengthened. The Coffipa nl 

places grea t emphasis on the Importance of and 

ad herence to these polici es an d procedures and t ' 1e 

Company ' s Code of Ethtcs. Our aud1 procedu:e s are 

sound . Even Mr s. Bass concedes on p~qe 7 of h~>r 

testimo ny that Gulf has implemented enhanced snf~>q~arl ~ 

to p revent future misapproprlatt o ns . I bPliE.'h' •hat 

the s teps whi c h have been taken by management t o d r tPr 

the recu rrence of t~is type activ it y 1n th~ futurP nr~ 

wo rking . As in any Company, some amount of thPft w1 ll 

occu r. U~derstandably , we do not spec1 f1ca lly hudo~>r 

to r this . To the e xt ent p r actical , p r oba bly mo re s o 

than with any company to come be f o r P 1t 1n t h~> rPCPnt 

past , the Commission can be assurPd th~t theft o r frnurl 

withi n t he Company ha s been thoroughly 1nvesc1qared , 

and will not be t ole rated. 

Mr . Fe ll , does that conc l ude your testimony? 

Yes . 
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Mr. Fell , have you prepared a summary of your 

Yes . 

Would you please sulll!Darize it? 

The purpose of my testimony is to discuss 

o6 three items discussed on Page 2 of Ms. Roberta Bass ' 

7 testimony. These items are as follows: One, t.he 

a contradiction between two Gulf Power employa es 

9 concerning the results ot. ':.he 1983 aud i t of the general 

10 warehouse facility. Two, the theft o f Company assets 

11 by a former employee. Three, the attempt by a Gulf 

12 employee to obtain a kickback from a contract vendor. 

13 The contradiction described by Ms. Bt.. ss 

14 occurred as a result or testimony given by Ms . Caroly·n 

15 Sirmon in a Starr-conducted deposition. She stated 

16 that the 1983 audit of the general warehouse was 

17 inaccurate and she estimated the shortage at around 

18 $2 million. 

19 This testimony was based on undocumented an.d 

20 unsupported hearsay. I was the Direc tor of Interna l 

21 Audit i~g at the time the audit was conducted. Gulf' s 

22 Internal Audit start was well t ra ined and supervised. 

23 The work papers and the audit staff suppo rted the 

24 results of our review wh.ich indicated a net shortage of 

25 $8,462. 

FLORi nA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSI ON 
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1 Since 1980, the adjustments made as " result 

2 of audits at the general wa rehouse facilities totaled 

3 $101,933 . The adjustment for the inventory outage 

4 discussed in Me . Bass' testimony occurred i n 1983 and 

5 has no impact on this rate case. 

6 The aoeond item, theft of i nventory by a 

7 toner e.mployee was perpetrated b y collusion , 

8 management override and the falsific ation of documents. 

9 Both the Ala.eric an Institute of the Certified Public 

10 Accounta nts and the Institute of Internal Auditc~s 

11 agree that auditors are n ot held accountable for 

12 detecting fraud accomplished through collusion, 

13 management override o r falsification of documents . All 

14 three of these existed during the period of 

15 m1sappropriations . 

1~ Misappropriations d iscussed in this item 

17 occurred over five years ago, and in my opinion, are 

18 not inc luded in the expenses projected to be incurred 

19 in 1990 since Gulf does no t budget for employee theft. 

20 The third item ~as an a ttempted at ki c kback 

21 to a Gulf Power employee from a contrac t vendor. This 

22 employee was acting on his own, and no money c hange d 

23 hands . Th i s employee was terminated upon the 

24 determinat ion of guilt. The matter is irrelevant and 

25 should not be i ncluded in this rate c ase . 

FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMI SS ION 
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1 I have been an employee cf Gulf Power Company 

2 for almost 34 years and will retire at the end of .:'·.!ne, 

3 1990. During this time, I have progressively been in a 

4 position to be aware of and involved in the control 

5 environment in the :ompany . Gulf Powe~ placed strong 

6 emphasis in establishing, documenting and ~intainjng 

7 good internal accounting controls, with emphasis on 

a compliance. 

9 A number of different auditors , Federal 

10 Energy Regulatory Commission, the Florida Publir. 

11 Service Comaisaion, Arthur Andersen and Southern 

12 Company Services internal auditors have reviewed our 

13 controls during the past ten years anc assessed t hem as 

14 adequate to good. 

15 Having said that, I'm certainl~: mi ndful that 

16 in the past few years Gulr experienced embarrassment 

17 from the less-than-ethical acts of n few employees that 

18 have cast a shadow over the Company and has give n all 

19 of our e»ployees a black eye. 

20 These acts resulted primarily from collusion, 

2 1 and management override and which is extremely 

22 difficult to detect. 

23 Three ! tems I have disc ussed, although 

2 4 embarrassing, do not indicate mismanagement by Gulf. 

25 As far as this rate case is concerned, the o nl y i tem 
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that requires an evaluation is the the!t ot material by 

a former employee. 

The aajority of the material a that were 

misappropriated were expense items, an~ sinc e the the!t 

occurred prior to lq84, it is my opinion that they 

should not -- there should be no impact on this rate 

case . 

There wer~ a few items that have beon 

capitalized, and it is my understanding that a ll 

identitied capitalized items have been removed !rom 

this rate case. 

Aa Director of Internal Auditing, 1t w' s my 

responsibility to identify these ite~s and rdport tnem 

to the appropriate accounting managers. The exact 

treatment of these items were discus~ed by Mr . Mc Millan 

and Mr. Gilbert. 

That's all I have. 

MR. HOLLAND: Tender Mr. fell 

MR. BURGESS: No questions. 

CHAIRMAN WILSON: Cross? 

CROSS £XAMINATION 

BY MR. VANDIVER: 

0 Good aftdrnoon, Mr. Fell. 

A Good afternoon. 

0 N~w this first inventory wa~ begun l n August 
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1 of 1982, is that correct? 

2 

3 

A 

Q 

Correct. 

Now, what were the problemo with that audit 

4 in August of 1982? 

5 A This w~s a scheduled audit of the general 

6 warehouse at Pensacola. The audit was pert'ormed by the 

7 -- not the audit, but the inventory o! the matarials at 

8 the warehouse wao performed by the warehouse personnel 

9 and the audit team tested the r esults of the i r 

10 inventory. 

11 It was determined that there was a fairly 

12 large outage, shortage of about $400,000. 

13 In reviewing the results, it was determined 

14 that a good bit of the material had not been counted. 

15 And as a result of that, when we we nt over-- "we," 

16 being the audit group and the managers of the warehouse 

17 -- found a lot of the material was there but had not 

18 been counted, primarily because it was bad arrangement. 

19 And we, as auditors, could not accept the r esults of 

20 that; and, therefore, the a1.1dit was not c o mplet e d. 

21 Q Okay. Now, when you say the audit team, 

22 t hat's the folks that work for you? 

23 

24 

A 

Q 

That's right. 

And t hey had a problem with the '82 audit 

25 conducted by Ms. Sirmon' s people 
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That's correct .. 

-- over at the warehouse. Okay. Now, how 

3 many people wor~ for you , Mr. Fell, in this auditing 

4 team group? How many 1'olks are we talk i ng abol\t? 

5 A Well, at that time, there were five a~ditors, 

6 supervisor . 

7 Q And so these supervisors got the routine 

8 audit and they said, •Whoa, there's s ome problems with 

9 this.• 

10 

u 

12 

1J 

A 

Q 

A 

Q 

Correct. 

And you decided to redo that audit? 

I didn't understand that. 

And you decided to d o another audit because 

14 the first one you believed to be f aulty? 

1 5 A That' s correct, we c ould not accept the 

16 results. 

17 Q Okay . Nov, do you re~ ll your deposition of 

18 February 21, 1989? 

19 

20 

A 

Q 

I remember the deposition. 

Okay. Now, the second ti~e a round, the 

21 warehouse people , in conjunction with your five 

22 a uditors, went thr ough and recounted everyth ing , is 

2 :3 t hat right? 

24 

2 5 

A 

Q 

That is correct. 

I learned a lot about inventory and auditing 
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1 in the course of your deposition, proba bly more than I 

2 wanted to know. But you explained in that audit or in 

3 that deposition that you never tell the people counting 

4 the inventory what t .he count is supposed to be, isn't 

5 that correct? 

A Yea, air. 

7 0 Because once you tell them what that count is 

8 going to be, that's magically what it becomes, is that 

9 correct? 

10 

11 

A 

0 

That' • possible . 

But your people, during the second audit, 

12 k.new what the count was supposed to be, didn't they"' 

13 A Th.at' s correct. 

14 0 And that's contrary to the auditing 

15 philosophy expressed in your deposition? 

16 

17 

A 

0 

No, sir. 

Well, your people knew what the count ~as --

18 was supposed to be, because they had reviewed the first 

19 audit, right? 

20 

21 

A 

0 

22 audit. 

23 

Correct. 

And then they came in and did the second 

Let me explain. There were five teams made 

24 up of a warehouse warehouseman, a warehouse management 

25 person, and an auditor. The warehouse peo p le did not 
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know the quantity. The auditor had access t o the 

2 quantity, to the balance on the book, but the wat·.ahouse 

3 people did not know . 

4 Q But one-half of that auditing team, in ca:::h 

5 case, knew how aany bolts were supposed to be in that 

6 b i n, didn't they? 

7 A An auditor knew. 

8 

9 

10 

Q 

A 

Q 

Okay. 

Only the auditor, and he was the checker. 

Okay. Now, the first audit, I believe, o r 

11 the first inventory showed a $400,000 shortage? 

12 

13 

A 

Q 

Yea. 

Okay. And then t his second audit that wl\s 

14 conducted jointly by the warehouse people and your 

15 fulks , showed an $8,000 shortage? 

16 

17 

A 

Q 

Approximately. 

Yeah. And in your view, the second audit was 

18 much morts accurate? 

19 

20 

A 

Q 

Definitely. 

Okay . In the course of preparing your 

21 testimony here today, did you review the depos it i on of 

22 carolyn Sirmon? 

23 A I believe somewhere along the way I may h a ve 

24 seen her, Sirmon, but not specifically today. 

25 Q Okay . Well, it's ~een referred to here t hat 
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1 Ms. $irmon indicated that there was o bsolete material 

2 counted in that second audit as good material. 

3 

4 

A 

Q 

Yea. 

Can you g i ve me a reason why she uou l d lie 

5 about that? 

6 A No. I cannot give you a reason. And 

7 obsolete material, it i t was on the books, would 

8 definitely be counted. All ma terie l would be counted . 

9 Q I would like to hand you Exhibit 391, 

10 specific ally Page 39 of 182, of t hat document. 

11 MR. HOLLAND: Exc use me, Rob, what's thE' 

12 number? Exhibit what ? 

13 

14 

15 Q 

MR. VANDIVER: 39 1 , Page 39, Ed. 

(Oocwaent supplied t o the witness.) 

Nov, this is the s tateme nt in the 

16 Saker-Childers Report of one of your warehouse people. 

17 And could you read the highlighted portion, pleasE', 

18 sir? 

19 A Yes, thi s i s, yes, one of the warehouse 

20 people . •r am aware that an audit was c onducted in 

21 April 83 . • 

22 Q This is the second audit, excuse me, sir, 

23 that's the second audit that we're t a lking about here? 

2 4 

25 

A 

Q 

That's correct. 

Thank you. Go right ahead, I'm sorry. 

FLORIDA PUBLI C SERVICE COMMISSION 



1 A 

40 77 

•At that time, a large amount ot old aluminum 

2 wire that bad been picked up from Chipley was plac ed 

J back in stock, so aa to cover tor ~ large amount o r new 

4 alu&inua wire that was short on the inv~ntory. Th i s 

S old aluainua was on o ld wooden reels that ~as, at best, 

6 worth $1000 as scrap . This wire was p l a ced into 

7 inventory to cover approximately 30,000 pounds or ne w 

8 aluainua wire that was short and worth approximately 

9 20,000. carolyn Sirmon knew that this was do ne." 

10 Q Okay. 

11 A Do you want me to read further ? 

12 Q No , sir, -hat's just what I needed, ~hank 

1J you . 

14 Now, in Ms. Sirmons' deposition, she also 

15 indicated that this obsolete wire came fr om Chipley, 

16 she said. And I could show you that deposition it yo u 

17 

18 

19 

A 

Q 

I understand that. 

She said that that came !rom Chipley, too. 

20 And we've got two people now testify i ng to exactly the 

21 same thing. And it occurs to me that it's kind or 

22 difficult to construct a story; because the more you 

23 try to construct i t and get everybody to sign of t on 

2• it, the h~arder it gets to follow it? 

25 This kind o! has a ring ot t ruth to it. Can 
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1 you comment on this? Theae peopl~ tn the warehouse 

2 know this material better than anybody , don't they? 

Well, they should. 

Uh-huh. 

4078 

3 

• 
5 

A 

Q 

A Firat of all, this g a ntleman happe ns to be 

6 

7 

I 
one of the people that is no longer with us. 

Q He had worked there, what, 1 1 years prior to 

8 this stateaent in 1984? 

9 

10 

A Yes. He had. He was released. 

Your question asked why would they -- would 

11 you repeat your question? I ' m sorry. 

12 Q I quesa, wht would they lie? Why would t hey 

13 make up this story about this phantom truck from 

14 Chipley, coming in and bringing in this obsole t e wire, 

15 and counting it aa a $20, 000 item in your inventory? 

Hi A That's a good question . Obviously, they 

17 could get together and make up suc h a story . No doubt 

18 materials are brou ght in from various places from time 

19 to time. It's not to say that the material was bad. 

20 When the .lnventory was, the second inventory 

21 or the 1983 inventory was made, they had the benefit o f 

22 engineers going over and review t ng t he mater ials t o 

23 determine if it was good m.a t e ria l. sometimes, the 

2<4 conductor on so- called "old reels" arc still good, it's 

25 still good aaterial. And I t h ink that I would rely on 
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2 determine whether the material was good o r not. 

Now when those --

More so than these people. 
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3 

4 

5 

Q 

A 

Q Now when those engineers went over there and 

6 looked at the war~ouse, there wa s a mi ghty l ot o r 

7 stuff in that warehouse . Didn't they j ust spo t c hecx? 

8 They didn't look at every little t h ing , did they? 

9 A I'm auro they didn't loox at every item. 

10 Q So this may or may not have been one or the 

11 things they looked at? 

12 

lJ 

14 

15 

16 

17 

A 

Q 

A 

Q 

A 

Q 

That's entirely possible . 

Is Ms. Siraon still employed by Gu l f Powe r ? 

S.g your pardon? 

Ia Ma. Sirmon still employed by Gulf Power ? 

Yea . 

It what she and this other i ~dividual say is 

18 true, about the trucks unloading obsolete materia l t o 

19 be counted in the second inventor y is in tac t t rue, 

20 that renders that whole second invent ory s uspect, 

21 doesn't it? 

22 

2J 

24 

25 

A 

Q 

A 

Q 

I don't think so, no. 

Now --

You're say i ng, i t in t act i t is t rue? 

Yes . 
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That story is true? 

Yes. 

This is a hypothetical? 
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Yes, sir. Yes, sir, it is. It what. they 

5 say is true, that whole second inventory is suspect, 

6 isn't it? 

7 

8 

9 

10 

A 

Q 

A 

Q 

No. 

Huh? 

No. 

Why not? 

11 A Why would you, why would you have an entire 

12 even thou9h this is a hypothetical question you're 

13 asking -- why would one item out ot such a large 

14 inventory render the whole thing wrong? I know, I 

15 realize I'm throwing a question back at you a nd you 

16 asked me the question. 

17 Q Right, and I've been told at least once today 

18 I'm not allowed to testify. 

19 

20 

COMMISSIONER GUNTER: That's right. 

CHAIRMAN WI LSON: You asked him a 

21 hypothetical and he asked you a rhetor ical. 

22 Q (By Mr. Vandiver) Right. No, my point here 

23 is, you all showed an $8,000-and-some-odd shortage 

24 here? 

25 A Yes. 
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And this testimony seems to indicate that, in 

2 !act, the shortage would be much more. I mean, there's 

.3 at least another $20,000 here from this one incident? 

4 

5 

6 

11. 

Q 

A 

Yeah, i! you can rely on those people. 

And that was my hypothetical . 

Yeah. 

7 Q I said it, in tact, this story that these two 

a people apparently independently gave , I have no reaso·n 

9 -- that these two independent people gave is t r ue, then 

10 that second audit is in tact suspect, isn't it? 

1.1 

12 

13 

A 

Q 

A 

I don't agree with that, no, not at all. 

And why is that? 

Because I don't think these are dependable 

14 people, it they're going to make such a statement. 

1'5 CHAIRMAN WILSON: Mr. Fell, in a 

16 hypothetical, I think Counsel wants you to accept that 

17 if this ls in !act true, and you can in ract rely on 

18 those statements, and this did in fact occur , would 

19 that not render second audit suspect? 

20 A 

21 broad. 

22 

23 use? 

24 

25 

Well, the word Msuspect," I guess iq pretty 

CHAIRMAN WILSON: Well, what ~ord would you 

MR . VANDIVER: Fishy? 

COMMISSIONER EASLEY: Let me try it one 

FLORID11. PUBLIC SERVICE COMHISSION 



4082 

1 oifferent way. 

2 CHAIRMAN WILSON: I think he's about to 

3 ansver the question. 

4 WITNESS FELL: Go ahead and try it. 

5 COMMISSIONER EASLEY: No, you go ahead and 

6 answer it. 

7 CHAIRMAN WILSON: Would you be more 

8 comfortable with the word •unreliable•? 

9 WITNESS FELL: Well, on a very hypothetica l 

10 basis, I would say, you know, you could perhaps 

11 question some portion of it. But that doesn't render 

12 the whole inventory unreliable. 

13 COMMISSIONER EASLEY: Would you feel 

14 compelled to do the entire inventory again? 

15 WITNESS FELL: For $20,000? A mighty small 

16 percentage. 

17 COMMISSIONER EASLEY : But would you redo that 

18 section again? 

19 

20 Q 

WITNESS FELL: Oh, certainly , you could. 

(By Mr. Vandiver) Have you, in your int.ernal 

21 auditing function, undertaken an investigation of any 

22 type into these particular allegations about the truck 

23 from Chipley? 

24 

25 

A 

Q 

About trucks from Chipley? 

Yeah. I've got two separate folks saying 
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1 almost exactly the sage thing. And I 10e.:1t to know 

2 whether or not you, as the Chief Internal Auditor of 

3 Gulf Power, investigated those allegations? 

4 A We did not specifically 1nvestigate that 

5 allegation. I think that as results of the preparation 

6 of the warehouse for this count -- with the five count 

7 teaaa, with the preparation that was made and the care 

8 that was taken, including having the engineers come in 

9 and review ~teriala for whether it was obsolete or 

10 not, and where it was obsolete, so identified then I 

11 would aay that that was a very good audit and could be 

12 relied upon. 

13 Q Despite the fact that 50\ of each one of the 

14 audit teams knew what the count was supposed to be? 

15 

16 

A 

Q 

50H 

Well, you had one warehous~ person and one of 

17 your auditor• as the counters in each case. 

18 Q We had, the auditor had access to the 

19 quantity. The auditor was t he person who was checking 

20 the other two, and we rely on our auditors !or their 

21 integrity to make sure that those numbers are 

22 reasonable. 

23 Q I see. But those three folk -- excuse me, 

24 were you going to confer? (Pause) 

25 A Wel l , I'll relay that information, he was 
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1 just saying. 

2 Q But those three folks, the two warehouse 

3 folks and your one auditor person, each or those little 

4 teams physically walked around the warehouse and looked 

5 at the stuff? That's what I understood from your 

6 deposition. 

7 A That's correct. The two warehouse people 

8 were not awar e of the count. 

9 

10 

11 it. 

12 

Q 

A 

13 counting? 

But your guy was ? 

He bad acceaa to the quar.tity if he needed 

COMMISSIONER EASLEY : Who was doing the 

14 WITNESS FELL: The -- we had one person who 

15 would count the material. The auditor would observe 

16 that count, would make test counts, would have them 

17 open boxes, where it was necessary, whenever he 

18 questioned anything, or if he questioned whether 

19 som.ething waa what i t was supposed to be, he could yet 

20 advice fro• an engineer . And so for that reason, 

21 that's probably - - that' a a n exce llent approar.h to the 

22 count. 

23 COMMISSIONER EASLEY: Mr. Fell, the only 

24 reason I' • doing this is because I'm fami liar wi th 

25 taking inventory, and when you l.ave a team -- a nd I 
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2 familiar with -- when you have a team, there's an 
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3 asslqnAent, and the auditor or the person who knows the 

4 objective is not the one who does the count, even 

5 though he aay observe. 

6 

7 

8 

WITNESS FELL: That's correct. 

COMMISSIONER EASLEY: Then he may observe. 

WITNESS FELL: He may observe and co~nt if he 

9 questions the count. 

10 COMMISSIONER EASLEY: Right. I just wanted 

11 to make sure we were talking about the same thing. 

12 COMMISSIONER GUNTER: Mr. Fell, let me ask 

13 you one question. In a customary -- and I understand 

14 this was not a customary audit where you had the five 

15 teams, you had 15 people auditing an inventory o f l ecis 

16 than $4 million, that's getting pretty heavy. 

17 WITNESS FELL: You got it . 

18 COMMISSIONER GUNTER: In a cus tomary audit, 

19 do the warehouse people go count, do t he audit, 

20 periodically by piece, a nd then submit that aud it-

21 result? 

22 

23 

WITNESS FELL : Yes, s i r, they d o now. 

COMMISSIONER GUNTER: Then they ha ve a 

24 reconc iliation o ! where they l ook at outs tandi ng o r ders 

25 which may have been drawn and not c leared and a ll t h e 
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3 

WITNESS FELL: Yes, sir . 

COMMISSIONER GUNTER: Well, the one thing 
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4 that's sort of trcubling to me just a little bit, that 

5 being the process in the preceding audit, to have had a 

6 preceding audit, which came in, virtually, on the 

7 money, and then the next audit that was taken having 

a such evtruae difficulty that it meant that you had to 

9 really overpover it to get control, because the 

10 preceding audit stu!! was still -- you know, I haven't 

1.1 heard to where it went to hell in a hand basket , 1 

1:2 gue.ss, in a tvo- or three-year time period. 

13 My first job with Pan American was working at 

1-4 the warehouse down at tho Cape . So I'm -- even though 

15 that's when dinosaurs were on the ear th, according t o 

16 •Y son, that -- that was the f irst job after college. 

17 And so warehouses and supply yards and ~ut-tool lockars 

18 and those kinds of thing, they just don't go to hell in 

19 a hand basket in a couple year time period. It's a 

20 long time period before your inventory gets untagged 

21 and in a disarray and what have you. 

2:2 My trouble is, as I look at the 1980 audit , 

23 it is almost on it. Then the next scheduled aud~t, 

24 there were significant problems. 

25 WITNESS FELL: Yes, sir . 
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COMMISSIONER GUNTER: And, you know, if you 

2 look at the -- and the only way I've done this is r ead 

3 deposition. and find out where people didn 't change 

4 jobs durlng that time period except t or the new 

5 superviaor . The new lady waa the only one ot the new 

6 play£rs, the cross ot the worlds, and those that were 

7 still there, the management team at that level didn't 

8 change. It does doesn't that put a question ~n your 

9 mind as to how, you know, you as the i nternal auditor 

10 -- of how the previous one had been almost on the 

11 money, and the very next one, there being problems of 

12 that magnitude? 

WITNESS FELL: Part or that could be some 

14 construction that waa going on within the warehouse 

15 itself where there was being constructed what's called 

16 a "high bay" -- I don ' t know the t echnical t~rms, but, 

17 you know, they have bins that go very high. 

18 COMMISSIONER GUNTER : One of those dexion 

19 b i ns that you used t o ha ve to bolt t ogether? 

20 WITNESS FELL: Well , they go very h i gh and 

21 have to use a machine that takes you on up. 

22 

23 

COMMISSIONER GUNTER: Yeah. 

WITNESS FELL: So some of the material had 

24 been moved out in order !or the - - facilitate this 

25 construction. So that could have caused some ot the 
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problem, and then the material moved out, and then out 

in the outside part of the warehouse area was in 

somewhat disarray, had not been properly tagged, had 

not been taggQd at all ~n some cases, and that's what 

caused the great confusion. 

Q (By Mr. Vandiver) I'd like to contlnue along 

the lines that Commissioner Gunter was just discussing 

with you, sir. On Sc hedule 1, Page 2 of 4 --

A My schedule? 

Q ~es , sir. Yes, sir. Excuse me . 

COMMISSIONER BEARD: Let me, before you d o 

that, I've been liate.ninq to this. You testi!ied that 

the statements made by the -- what's the lady's name? 

Sirmons? That those statem~nts coming from her meant 

they probably were unre liable, and, therefore, there 

was no real investigation done of the things that she 

said happened? 

WITNESS FELL: I said that we did not mak e an 

investigation of that purpose I mean of the material 

that wa s brought in, specific on this comment; that 

because the warehouse -- becaus& o f the preparation 

that had been made, because o! the rearrangement, the 

correction , the teams that we had and the care that wa s 

taken in doing this, with the engineers overs eeing the 

-- and advising on the materials, whether it was 
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1 obsoleto or not obsolete and so torth, that we cou l d 

2 rely on that count. 

) COMMISSIONER BEARD: Well, do yo u be l i eve 

4 that her !ive -- the report, the statement that s~e 

5 made that's contained in the Childers-Saker Repo rt - -

6 Saker-Childers, whatever, that approximat ely t i ve-page 

7 stateaent, do you believe that to be true? 

B 

9 it, air. 

10 

WITNESS FELL: I didn't give muc h c redit to 

COMMISSIONER BEARD : Well, ; •11 tell you, 

1 1 that ' s what bothers we, because she read that statement 

12 as part ot her polygraph exam. And what you've g o t 

13 here is , you've got an expert in polygraph -- a nd I 

14 know it's an art, not a science -- it says that he 

15 beiieves it's true. 

16 Now, we've got the president ot the Company 

17 that says baaed on two anonymous letters you al l went 

19 to inves tigation o! this nature, pretty damn h e av)· o ne. 

19 

2 0 

WITNESS FELL: Yes. 

COMMISSIONER BEARD: But you've got a 

21 polygraph exam, two di!!erent , a t least, people t c ok, 

l2 and parts o! that they passed , but that' s no t 

2 3 sufficient !or you t o investigate . 

24 WITNESS FELL : Well, we d i dn't m~ke a 

25 spec ific investigation . We d i d ta l k with the peopl e 
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1 the managers in charge of the warehouse about the 

~ situation. They didn't believe that the -- the story 

3 either. So tor that reason we did not investiQate this 

4 specific item. 

" COMMISSIONER GUNTER: Let me ask you, I was 

6 going to get into tbia. I was just sticking to one 

7 place. Security f o lks work for you , too? 

8 WITNESS FELL: They do now -- well, some 

9 port ion of them. 

10 COMMISSIONER GUNTER : Okay. But, the 

11 security folks, whoever they were working for, I guess 

12 Mr. McCrary. He's -- w-hat, they have the old Harry 

13 Truman, "Buck stops here•? 

14 

15 

WITNESS FELL: That's r i ght. 

COMMISSIONER GUNTER : So I just say they work 

16 for Mr. McCrary. And thoae were investigat1ve 

17 personnel, apparently quite qualif ied . I've read the 

18 reports that they've done, you know, just little pi eces 

19 that we get. You all know a whole lot more about them 

20 than I do. But, they were brought in from outside, and 

21 using inves tigative tec hniques, this -- I'm a little 

22 bit concerned the same way Colllllliosioner Beard is --

23 ~sed investigative techniques, which I don't have the 

24 wildest idea whether any of those things are allowed in 

25 court or not , whether it's court evidence, polygraphs 
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1 are or not, I don't know, but you go through and ~here 

2 were -- as I recall, it's been a wh i le since I read 

3 that report . There were even -- they were even to go 

4 -- able to go through and identity dollar amounts of 

5 where they folt that individuals had misappropriated 

6 materials that repreaented dollar amounts. If you 

7 recall, there was one that they said less than $3,000, 

8 you know. Then they honed in, they were able to hone 

9 in, in a narrow band of what they felt was appropriate 

10 to charge to a guy or give him credit for. And yet 

11 when you have an opinion ot that same group o! 

12 polygraph operators as a result of that polygraph 

13 ~xamination and statements by those personnel. am I not 

14 correct that Saker-Childers Report was submitted to the 

15 board, to the Board of Directors of the Company? 

16 

17 

WITNESS FELL: Yes. 

COMMISSIONER GUNTER: Now , that would put a 

18 great deal of credibility, t o me, it management of the 

19 Company, at whatever level that Hr. Baker -- the 

20 Saker-Childers team, you know, Tonto and the Lone 

21 Ranger, whoever they reported to, and up through the 

22 reporting chain, that there had to have been a great 

23 deal of credibility to that entire report. 

24 WITNESS FELL: Yes, sir. 

25 COMMISSIONER GUNTER: For it to have bee n 
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1 submitted to the Board . Wouldn ' t you think? I mean, 

2 that 's -- ia that i llogic al !or me to think that? 

3 

4 report . 

5 

WITNESS FELL : Very logical ; it is a qood 

COMMISSI ONER GUNTER: Now, logically, the 

6 ontiro report with the polygraph exa111inati o n saying 

7 !olka told the truth, in part , and they even had somP 

8 that the guy told the truth on everyt hing but he told a 

9 lie here, becaua e I think I read those pretty care!ul!y 

10 several months ago, but it would appear that it would 

11 have been 1.:eally a place to have that wou ld have 

12 been step one in the investigatio n . 

13 I'm a little bit troubled by your response to 

14 Commissioner Beard because I 've thought about that 

15 process when -- you know, hel l, you probably get 

16 reports !rom !olks that you just say , "Oh, heck with 

17 that,• thro w that thing in the trash. But when it gets 

18 to the point that it's elevated to the leve l of the 

19 Board ot Directors , there has to be some credibility to 

20 bring that t o that level's attention, some credib ility 

2' to t hat report, wouldn't you th ink? 

22 

23 

24 ahead . 

25 Q 

WITNESS FELL: Yes, sir. 

COMMISSIONER GUNTER: Okay, excuse me, go 

(By Mr. Vandiver ) Be!ore I torgPt it, in 
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3 various reports and so forth, you said you talked to 

4 the managers of the warehouse and there was -- and they 

5 indicated there was no problem. Who are t he specific 

6 managers you are talking about? 

7 The people I'm referring to was the d i rector 

8 of the !unction, M7. Charlie Jordan, at that time, and 

9 Mr. John Monroe, who reported to hi m, whom Mr . Kyle 

10 reported to John Monroe. 

11 COMMISSIONER BEARD: You reckon if you had 

12 ask6d Mr. Jordan that same question six months or a 

13 year before that he would have given you the same 

14 answer? 

15 

16 so. 

17 

WITNESS FELL: Knowing Mr. Jordan, I think 

COMMISSIONER BEARD: But there probably was a 

18 problem six months to a year before that, wasn't the~e? 

19 A hell o f a problem. 

20 WITNESS FELL: I'm having a little trouble 

21 following your line of thought. 

2 2 COMMISSIONER BEAI'..D: We ll, if I'm 

23 underatanding" vhat you're saying, and maybe my timi ng 

24 1a out o! sequence, you're telling me that af ter all 

2 5 this went, you went to Mr. J ordan, wt"o was the head at 
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1 ~hat time, and asked him if there was any proble~ and 

2 he said no. 

3 WITNESS FELL: Asked him to explain -- yes, I 

4 was aware of this thing, and I talked with he and Mr. 

5 Monroe about it. I didn't make a specific or assign 

6 an auditor to review in detail the procedures or the 

7 possibility of this, but I did talk with Mr. Jordan and 

8 Mr . Monroe. 

9 COMMISSIONER BEARD: What I'm t .r ying to say 

10 is do you think that Mr. Jordan thought that there was 

11 a problem back whe.n there was a problem in this ~: rea? 

12 I mean you got materials that are going out in odd 

13 manners and ways. 

14 COMMISSIONER GUNTER : Well, there was 

15 collusion taking place. I think the thing Commissioner 

16 Beard is asking, if you had gone and asked Mr. Jordan 

17 when the collusion was taking place and Lhere w~s some 

18 misappropriation ot Gulf Po~o•er equipment and Gulf Power 

19 was performing services tor other people, would Mr. 

20 Jordan have told you at that time anything other than, 

21 no, there is not a problem? 

WITNESS FELL: If he was aware that there was 

23 a problam, he would have informed me. I'm not sure he 

24 was not aware of any collusion or any problem in the 

25 warehouse, or he would have put a stop to that pronto. 
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COMMISSIONER BEARD: And I'm acc~pting that. 

2 My point is that you don't just go ask somebody. I f 

3 that's the case, I'd just say, "Hey, is the inventory 

4 oka y in the warehouse?" 

5 "Yep.• 

6 "Good enough for me." 

7 

8 

WITNESS FELL: No, it's not t hat a imple. 

MR. HOLLAND: Excuse me, Mr. Fell. I tninx 

9 we c an clear a lot of this up. Mr. Vandiver referred 

10 to the truck aa a "phantom truck." We don't dispute 

11 the fact. In fact, we know that t r ansmission wire was 

12 in Chipley; it was discovered that it was still in the 

13 inventory, that --

14 

15 

MR. VANDIVER: I'm going to have tQ object. 

MR. HOLLAND: I'll do it on redi rect. I was 

16 trying to save the Commission a lot of time. 

17 COMMISSIONER BEARD: My point isn't whether 

18 the truck existed or not. I was referencing 

19 discussions we're having here with an individual that 

20 says that be resolved in his mind that everything was 

21 okay by asking the manager if it was okay. 

22 

23 

24 Q 

MR. HOLLAND: I'll handle it on redirect. 

COMMISSIONER BEARD: Go ahead. 

(By Mr. Vandiver) I think we were on your 

25 Schedulr 1 of Page 2 of 4, Mr. Fell. 
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Yes. 

Now, there you show that the 1980, 1981, ~nd 

3 1982 inventories are really, really close, is that 

4 correct? Being accurate? 

5 A This is on Schedule 2, you sa~, of page 2 of 

6 Schedu l e 1? 

7 

Sj 

Q 

A 

Yes, sir. 

And i n 1983 there was -- 1980 was 6243 and 

9 '83, 8462 , and in '84, 25 --

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

Q 

dates . 

Q 

A 

Q 

part . 

A 

Q 

You're getting a little ahead of me. 

COMMISSIONER EASLEY : No, he changed the se 

Oh. Oh. Okay, wait a minute. 

Yeah, we che nged --

I'm sorry. I apologize, I didn't here that 

Go ahead and tell me them again. 

1981 was changed to '83 and '82 to '84. 

What year did you all put in your fancy ne w 

19 COPl CS inventories? 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 on l y 

A 

Q 

A 

A 

Q 

.06\ 

COPICS, the on-line inventory system? 

Yes , sir . 

Let's see, what year was that. (Pause) 

January '84. 

So that was January 1984. And you all were 

ott tor that yea r. 
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Yes, air. 

How, as I understood in your deposition, you 

J all do inventories on a regular basis every tw<J years, 

4 is that correct? 

5 At that time we were doing them every two 

~ y ears, that's right. 

7 Q What I'd like to explore with you, sir. is 

a the out years. 

9 I would like to go -- what was the nex~ year 

10 you all did inventory after 1984 ? And I've got a cite 

11 to your deposition with the percentages, i f that would 

12 he lp you, and I've got it right here. 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

A 

0 

A 

0 

A 

0 

A 

I'm showing here we d i d one in '85 

What was t he outage figure there, sir? 

It was a shortage of $29,885. 

And what percent does that represent? 

Anybody have a - -

Let ae find your deposition 

Well, we don't have the book balance of that, 

20 so that we can coapute it. 

21 

22 

23 

24 

0 

A 

Q 

Let ae go to yo11r deposition . 

But it will be, obviously will be small. 

If you all would j ust give me a minute here. 

COMMISSIONER GUNTER: What, about 1-1/4\ of 

25 the value of your inventory was about the ~ame. One 
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3 neighborhood . It was 3.7 million in 1983 , and so it 

4 would be a build up. It would be more than that in 

5 I 85 • 

6 Q I think in your deposition -- oh, wait a 

7 minute. I n your deposition you indicate that the 

8 $29,886 shortage was .82\. 

9 

10 

A 

Q 

I'll accept that. 

And then in 1987 you had an?ther shortage, 

11 didn't you? 

12 A Yes, sir. 

13 

14 

15 

16 

Q 

A 

Q 

A 

How much was that? 

67,255. 

67 , 000. Okay. And what percent was that? 

The aaae situation. I do not have it. 

17 Q Would you accept, subject t o check, that your 

18 deposition says that's 1 . 7\? 

19 MR . HOLLAND: He's got his deposition, it you 

20 can just give him the page number. 

21 Q Page 43, air . I'm sorry, 1 didn ' t realize 

22 you had it. It's right up there near the top o! the 

23 page. 

24 

25 

A 

Q 

Yes. 

And it says on Lines 6 and 7, I'm quoting 
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3 

4 

A 

Q With this new COPIC inventory system, which 

5 was adopted in partial respon se to the Kyle Croft 

6 theft, is that right? 

7 

B 

A 

Q 

Well , no, not -- it was coming any~ay. 

Okay, with this new inventory Ryst em your 

9 outages seemed to be g o ing up? Can you expla in that ? 

10 

11 

12 

A 

Q 

A 

I would presume here -- on~ second . 

Sure. (Pause) 

I would say that the system is more accurate 

13 and reveala the shortage more accurately. 

Q I realize that you're one week fl.·om 

15 retirement and I'd promised myse l! I wasn't going to do 

16 this , but I'• going to ask you for a late-filed 

17 exhibit, please, Mr. Fell. 

18 COMMISSIONER GUNTER: One week from 

19 retirement. 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

2 5 

Q 

A 

WITNESS FELL: Yes, si r . 

COI9liSSIONER GUNTER : Well, God bless you . 

Next week, I'm sorry, sir 

In a week and a couple ot hours . 

CO.MMISSIONER EASLEY: But who is counting? 

WITNESS FELL: Hy timing' s off. This wa s 
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1 supposed t o have taken place last year. 

2 COMMISSIONER GUNTER: I understand. God 

3 bless you. 

4 WITNESS FELL: Thank you. 

5 Q What I'd like for that to show, Mr. fell, i& 

6 the inventory, o ither overage or underage for every 

7 year that you did an inventory from 1980 to 1990. 

8 

9 asked. 

10 

11 somewhere? 

COMMISSIONER GUNTER: 'l'hat' a already been 

WITNESS FELL: Yeah, I •.:as going to say, 

12 COMMISSIONER GUNTER: Yesterday, I asked for 

13 that intoraation, plus I wanted the wr ite-off's that 

14 had occurred during the time periods. 

15 MR. VANDIVER: Very well, CoiiUI1issioners, 

16 there is no need to ask Mr . Fell to do it, because he's 

17 almost out ot here. 

18 WITNESS FELL: I'm trying to-- you can keu~ 

19 your promise. 

20 COMMISSIONER GUNTER: Now that has a l ready 

21 been asked tor. 

22 MR. VANDIVER: If that's the case, I'l l 

23 withdraw the r equest for the exhibit. 

24 MR. VANDIVER: That's all the questions I 

25 have, Mr. Fell. Thank yoc very much. 
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18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 • 25 
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CHAIRMAN WILSON: Questions, Comm issioners? 

COMMISSIONER GUNTER: Mr . Fell, I unders tand 

that certainly collusion between employees will whip 

any internal control system you've got , if they're 

positioned properly in the organization. 

WITNESS FELL: Yes , s i r. 

COMMISSIOUER GUNTER: Do you agree with that? 

WITNESS FELL: Yes, sir. 

COMMISSIONER GUNTER: And then you have 

circWII.Stances that are available that inventory can 

I mean materials can be diverted before they ever get 

to inventory and you don't have any way to know about 

it. Like a blanket purchase contract , you could have 

it diverted and the paper work never got processed, ar.~ 

away it went. 

Now the sort of basic -- I've got another 

couple ot questions . How did you determine I' m on 

Schedule 2, Page 1 of 2 . How did you make a 

determination of, tor instance, a divers ion of 

materials and labor at Croft's home? You know, there's 

been a lot of stuff, let me j us t tell you what litt le 

b it, pieces I g lea ned, you know, it wa s about the fence 

and on, a nd on, and on , those kinds of specific items 

that a re referenced. How did you all arrive at a 

$10,000 figure? 
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WITNESS FELL: Well, as you read the report 

2 of the Baker-Childers Report, there was a ! ot of 

3 allegations in there. Taking those to the best t hat we 

4 could, I trted to esti~ate -- this is an es timated 

5 figure , tor example, taking those hours t~at people may 

6 have worked on that, taking their salary and applying 

7 that, and coaing up to an estimated figure. 

8 COMMISSIONER GUNTER: Okay . Did we do the 

9 same thing when we t a lked about repa i r of equipme nt a nd 

10 trucks f or line power? 

11 

12 

WITNESS FELL: Yes, sir. 

COMMISSIONER GUNTER: How about the theft of 

13 transformers. 

14 WITNESS FELL: Yes. Well, that vas ~ n 

15 investigation where our security people vent out to a 

16 number of the gover~ent facilities locationc and 

17 actually inventoried certain t ypes of transforme rs dnd 

18 we brought -- that information was brought back and v~ 

19 compared that to our records . In other words, we 

20 matched against our records , and these ten trans former~ 

21 ca me out. And we could we cou l d actually apply the 

2 2 dollars to that. 

2 3 COMMISSIONER GUNTER : Okay. Di d the PCB 

24 trans former, where the y were br i nging the ir 

2 5 conta~inanted trans formers in and Gulf vas pa yi ng for 
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1 it, was that just an c udit transaction t o identify the 

2 transformer numbers and monies that had be en paid for 

3 handling those transformers. Is that the way you 

4 arrived at that? 

5 

6 

WI~NESS FELL: Yes, sir . 

COMMISSIONER GUNTER: I guess the thing that 

7 I'm trying to get at, and I'm drawing mys elf some 

8 little pictures, and it you have a work order that 

9 says, tor instance, and you have the proper c ollus ion 

10 that you go out here and it takes t~o poles or takes 

11 t~ur polea and two transformers and, you know, some 

12 guide wires, al l the gadgets that go with this job, and 

13 they take that and go down to inventory and they draw 

14 that, and they go out to do the job. 

15 But then they put in two poles and one 

16 transformer and some wire and stuff , as far as your 

17 inventory system would know , or your folks in the 

18 warehouse would know, that job took two trans formers 

19 and tour poles and an amount of wire and what have you , 

20 and as t ar as the bes t accounta nts in t h e wo rd wou ld 

21 know, that's what took place . 

22 WITNESS FELL: Whatever they requisitio ned 

2J out or the warehouse. 

24 COMMISSIONER GUNTER : That's right, because 

25 the paper t =ail is a closing pape r t ra il? 
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KITNESS FELL : Yes , si r . 

COMMISSIONER GUNTER : Well, from readi ng, and 

3 I'm ask!ng you to bear with me t or a second, and kind 

4 of he l p me a little, because t rom r~ading all the 

5 allegations tha~ everybody has made , you Know, about 

6 the gloves and the blankets and sticks and the 

7 transformer• and the quide wire• and, you knuw, on and 

8 on and on, ad intinitua of the al legation that have 

9 been aade, recognizing that that can -- that can take 

10 place, I'm not aaying -- not making any value j udgment 

11 of how auc h took place or what didn't, because there 

12 are a nuaber of th: ngs that concern me about this whole 

13 process. 

14 But what really happens in that circumstance 

15 of where the work order, and I'm just restr icting t o 

16 that one little example, where that work order that 

17 called for more •aterial than was ac tually instal led to 

18 be drawn and leave the area to whatever destinat ion 

19 that remain unknown . The eftect of that, is it not, is 

2 0 one of two things has to oe wrong i n any collusion. 

2 1 But in that one specif i c example t hat caused 

2 2 your rate base to be increased on the books, isn 't that 

23 r i ght ? 

24 

25 

WITNESS FELL: Yes , sir. 

COKHJSSIONER GUNTER : By the amount o t all 
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1 those materiels they drew and the labor and what have 

2 you, that went to do that job? 

3 

4 

WITNESS FELL: If they did not return any. 

COMMISSIONER GUNTER: Yeah, that's the point. 

5 If they didn't bring any back, if they left there with 

6 it, whether they installed it or not, this has a rate 

7 base effect becauae of plant in service 

8 

9 

WITNESS FELL: Yes, sir. 

COMMISSIONER GUNTER : That's the piece that 

1 0 concerns me is I don't think - - maybe you know and 

11 maybe you're satisfied and, you know, you're an 

12 honorable man. But sitting where I am and reading all 

13 the allegations, and what have you, I don't know .1ow 

14 escalated that ratebase is. Do you understa nd my 

15 concern? 

16 

17 

WITNESS FELL: Yes , sir, I do. 

COMMISSIONER GUNTER: And if there's an 

18 inventory problem, then you've got another piece of 

19 where, you know, you've got testimony and testimony and 

20 which is, you know, which way does it go? But where 

21 you could have a, you know, there could be an inventory 

22 problem, whic h is a working capital allowance item. 

23 Which affects both sides of it. 

24 And I think you're -- I'm trying to put my 

25 fingers squarely on the problem that the Commis sion 
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1 has: with all this that is before us, \ t ·s not definite 

2 the way it is, except tor this unfortunate circumstan ·e 

3 that you all got all hung up in due to the acts of, you 

4 know, the folks down in the ~o•arehouse. 

5 

6 

7 clear? 

8 

9 sir . 

10 

WITNESS FELL: Well --

COMMISSIONER GUNTER: Am I making myself 

WITNESS FELL: I'll foll owing the trail, yeG, 

COMMISSIONER GUNTER: And J' m at a point of 

11 trying to make sure I'm doing what's fair. I'm trying 

12 to think through what's fair about, one, is our working 

13 capital allowance right for inventory? Is it or is it 

14 not? Becauae you've got the interests of two well, 

15 more with the Intervenors; but you've really got the 

16 interests of the ratepayers and the Company, and the 

17 Company and its stockholders ~nd the ratopayers. 

18 Then, on the other side, I look and say to 

19 myself, "Have we -- do we really know? Does anybody 

20 really know as to how much materials and labor was 

21 diverted to nonutility purpoEies? .. Which would havs an 

22 effec t on the ra t e base. 

23 And that's a hell of a position, 1'11 be very 

24 honest with you, it's a hell of a position for me to be 

25 in. 
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1 WITNESS FELL: I can apprec iate your 

2 position, whether it's Gulf Pover Company or any other 

3 ut i lity that'a comi ng before you. 

4 

5 

COMMISSIONER GUNTER: Mybody. 

WITNESS FELL: I thir~, it I followed the 

6 trail that you led there, one is t hat tho process, ot 

7 course, atarta with a work order. Ther~ is a reason to 

8 pertora aoae vork. And the work order is prepared and 

9 sent in by the engineers . And , based on that, the 

10 material ia drawni baaed on that work order, the 

11 material ia drawn , set aside tor those c rews to pick up 

12 to go out to do whatever it is they're going to do with 

13 that material. 

14 The colluaion would have to be ~uch broader. 

15 If you're going to b~gin to bring this into the 

1G picture, you'd have to then have collusion with the 

17 crews, because - - in following the trail there -- and 

18 there were materials left over and not returned, whi c h 

19 we have MRSs and you have the supervisors on the crewF 

20 overseeing that. If the materia l is not used, then o ur 

21 procedures are to bring it bac k into the warehouse 

22 through what we call an MRS . 

23 COMMISSIONER GUNTER: Let me short-stop that. 

24 I see where you're going. But it you have -- and I've 

25 characterized that wrong. The crews didn' t pick it up . 
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1 The crews picked up and took whatever they wanted to 

2 take to go do the job. But thon you've got somebody in 

3 the warehouse who said, "Put this on that truck and 

4 we'll char~e it to this job." Because there are 

5 additions to building materials, are therg not, at the 

6 time period? 

7 

8 

WITNESS PRLL: Yes, sir . 

COMMISSIONER GUNTER: There are additions to 

9 building materials, and all of sudden enters the 

10 culprit. and the way to hide the diversion is to add 

11 that to a bill of mater ials that was processing through 

12 that pulled it out of i nventory. You know that, you've 

13 read them, too. And you've been involved to where 

14 there were statements made about putting &tuff on Line 

15 Power's ~rucks or either having them on Gulf's trucks 

16 that were taken to Line Power. 

17 

18 

WITNESS FELL: Yes , sir. That was in the -­

COMMISSIONER GUNTER: And so the c rew would 

19 not have to get involved in that. And you do have the 

20 ability of the warehouse folks with a signature, I'd 

21 almost bet you. Because m~st systems I 've ever seen 

22 were that way, the proper signature in the warehouse, 

23 in Supply . 

24 WITNESS FELL: Yes, sir. In effect, you ' re 

25 saying falsifying t he document. 
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COXMISSIO~ GUNTER: Yeah, you can !alsify 

2 it and send it on. Now, that' e part of collusion . 

3 You're falsifying all the way through, are you not ? 

4 WITNESS FELL: Right. And in a ny system, I 

5 guess you, can have that. Part of your c ontro l s is 

6 going to be --

7 COMMISSIONER GUNTER: Go ahead, I 'm sorry. 

8 Excuse ae, I'• sorry. 

9 WITNESS FELL: I forgot where I was. 

10 Part of your system of controls, obviously, 

11 iu qoing to be, have to be, honest employees. True, 

12 what you said could happen, did happen. We know i n the 

13 testimony here that the manager instructed the 

14 supe:-visor to take certain things and put .i.t on a 

15 pallet and send it over to the repair shop. And some 

16 document& were prepared and taking the111 out o l the 

17 inventory. 

18 

19 

COMMISSIONER GUNTER: Yes, sir. 

WITNESS FELL: And we saw that. And I guess 

20 there is that possibility in any operation where yo u 

21 have a dishonest Hlployee. 

22 COMMISSIONER GUNTER: I'm not finding fault 

23 with Gulf. Let ae make that very clear. I'm no t 

24 finding fault with Gulf because o f the actions of 

25 employees. I have personally fired employe e s for that 
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1 kind of activit y. There wasn't any question. So, you 

2 know, we can dispense with that . 

3 But I am saying, in order to get the pot 

4 right, now the pot is here before us lo'ith the numbers 

5 of doll4r&. And I'a troubled that some of the items 

6 still there are queationa on. 

7 WITNESS FELL: Well, as we see it, in this 

8 particular category, this is the pot. 

9 COMMISSIONER GUNTER: Well, if we're 

10 eatiaating -- and I'm not trying to find fault with 

11 you . But it we're eatiaating and we've just hit the 

12 first two and we eatiaated them, and the:1 we had -·- I'm 

13 back to the Baker- Childers Report again, because fuaybe 

14 I put mora significance on that than you do. 

15 WITNESS FELL: I put significance on it. sir. 

16 COMMISSIONER GUNTER : Well, l put a lot of 

17 significance on it, because, again, when I read the 

18 testimony -- it's not so much the testimo ny but sort <J f 

19 the verification by the investigative body, by the 

20 investigators themselves, through their getting someone 

21 elso to assist thea in making a determination of the 

22 validity of the tes timony that they carried forward. 

23 That, "Well, maybe there's something there after all. " 

24 And, you k now, whatever. 

25 WIThESS FELL: I want it understood --
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COMMISSIONER GUNTER : I don't know what else 

7 to say. I really don't know what elsa to say. I'm 

3 just telling you about -- and I'm going to go back and 

4 read the record, only that that's in th~ r ecord , and 

5 t ry an.d divorce myself from all thnt stuf f. And that' s 

6 the rea son I told everybody I had read depositions and 

7 read everything I could read. I wasn't going to try lo 

8 blindside anybody. I'• going to stay with i n this 

9 record. 

10 But it is a troubling thing to accept that 

11 those were not -- those investigations were not ca r ried 

12 forward turning over every pebble. Particularly when 

13 the investigators used corroborative evidence to 

14 indicate that that testimony was true, th.:>se s tatements 

15 were true. That is the biggest hooker that I have been 

16 looking for the whole time, and I ha ven't found that. 

17 You know, it soaebody makes an allegation, 

18 it's like been talked about that the President got two 

19 anonymous letters and he immediately turned loose the 

20 dogs, "Find out it this is true or not," and uncovered 

21 al l this •esa. 

22 That was almost hearsay, you know. We got 

23 hell, we had an unsigned during that time period, an 

24 unsigned allegation wh ich we sent our Exec ut i ve 

2~ Director, and what have you, ove r to Pensacola. You 
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know, aaybe lt was t he saJDe kind ot letter; maybe it 

was trom the same person. We have no way or knowing. 

laut we exhausted that as tar as we could and got a 

I 
jletter troa an attorney representing the Company that 

I 

!that had bean looked at, and what have you. 

So what I'• s4ying is that blind letters 

leads to uncovering the testimony with corroborat ive, 

1
you know, with something to say that, "Wall, this is 

lsomebody not talking about catc hing a fish that big 

lwhen they really caught one you could put in your shirt 
I 

11 pocket,• wasn't really every rock turned over. Th.lt 

12 just troubl .. ae . 

13 WITNESS FELL: Well, you have to remember, 

14 
1
commissioner, we did very extensive investigat i nns into 

15 

16 

j( lot of things during this period of time. 

COMMISSIONER GUNTER : J unders~and. And you 

17 all probably had more than -- you had your plate full 

18 at the time. 

19 WITNESS FELL: You got that right. 

20 CHAIRMAN WILSON: Questions? 

21 COMMISSIONER GUNTER : I'm through. 

22 CHAIRMAN WILSON : Co~issioner Beard? 

23 KR. VANDIVER: Commissioner, I had omitted t o 

24 ask several questions. It's rather late. 

25 CHAIRMAN WILSON: That's all right. Go ahead. 
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(By Hr. Vandiver) Mr. Fell, conc erning your 

audit in the fall of 1988 of Design Associatea, that 

related to Ray Howell, didn't it? 

A 

Q 

Yes, sir. 

How much business did Mr. Howell do with the 

6 Company on an annual baaia? 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

wit.h 

A 

Q 

him? 

A 

Q 

What year are you referring to? 

What was the last year you all did business 

1988, there was a total of $379,892. 

Where does that fall in th<> hierarchy o! 

12 advertising contracts that Gulf Power has? Is that a 

13 big ticket advertising contract? 

14 A Well, it's not the biggest one, bu~ it was 

15 (Pause) it's a fairly large one. Not the largest. 

16 Q And in the course of your )ust norma l 

17 ir.ternal auditing function, do you per iodically review 

18 outside contracts that Gulf Power has? 

19 A The procedure for internal auditing at Gulf 

20 has been a coordinative audit procedure that Gulf's 

21 internal auditors, Southern Company Services internal 

22 auditors, and Arthur Andersen. And audits are made on 

Z3 compliance procedures and we -- we or Southern Services 

24 will review those type contracts ever so many years. 

25 Q You do or don't? I didn't hear ~hat, I ' m 
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1 sorry. 

2 A It is done, yes, ever so often. It may be 

3 done by Southern Services' auditors tor Gulf. It may 

4 be that they will pick a number of vendors a nd we 'll 

5 test those vendors. 

6 Q In the period between mid 1983 and 1988 , were 

7 any of the advertising accounts picked up in these 

B routine audita? Were they audited in the normal course 

9 of business? 

10 A I cannot tell you specifically except that it 

11 is entirely possible that some of those items would 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

have been teat checked as they ta.ke a strata of 

payable& to review and vendors to review. Did I mak ~ 

myself clear? 

Q 

A 

No, air. 

Okay. I'• saying that in the proces~ of what 

17 we call a •genera l office audit" performed by our 

18 Southern Services' internal auditors t or Gulf Power 

19 Company, they would review various vendors . They would 

20 test certain payables. And through that process, they 

21 wou ld have tested those. 

22 Q Okay. We've got at least four advertising 

23 agencies that were involved in questionable ethi ~al or 

24 illegal conduct during that time, is that correct? 

25 A Yes, sir . 
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1 0 We've got Himmer and Yates, we've got Ray 

2 Howell, and there's two more. What arc they? The 

3 names just escape me now. 

4 

5 

A 

0 

You mean the Appleyard. And Dick Leonard. 

Thank you. What T'm asking you, sir, is I 

6 know that at certain specified times you were 

7 instructed by Mr . McCrary, or on your own, you h ad gone 

8 out and started auditing these folks . But they were 

9 never -- nothing ever turned up in the cour se o! those 

10 routine audit a apart troD the specific incidents that 

11 gave rise to the audits? 

12 

13 

A That's correct . 

MR. VANDIVER: Okay. Thank you. I have no 

14 further questions at thia time . 

15 COKMlSSIONER BEARD: I forgot so~e th i ng s 

16 that got referred to you . Of course, I th i nk i t wa s 

17 last week when they got referred to you. It's been a 

18 while . 

19 Exhibit 41 2 , there was a schedule that I 

20 guess came out of the $500,000 settlement with, I guess 

21 it was IRS or the government? 

22 

23 

WITNESS FELL: Is this the plea bargain? 

COMMISSIONER BEARD: Yeah. It was a 

24 printout, a computer printout, Page 79 of 112, Exhibit 

25 412. 
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WITNESS FELL: I don't know as I have that 

2 particular thing, that particular --

3 MR. HOLLAND: Collllliasioner , there's one 

4 attached to Ms. Bass' testimony, I t hink . May not be 

5 the same one. I don't believe that's the plea bargain 

6 you're lookin.g at. 

7 COMMISSIONER BEARD: Why don't we get 

8 somebody to loan hia Exhibit 412. What it is, is th9 

9 -- this is the computer printout. 

10 

11 

COMMISSIONER EASLEY: 412 . 

MR. HOLLAND: Let us find it and I'll give 

12 him the copy. 

13 COMMISSIONER BEARD: It lists the items 

14 associated with the counts? 

15 WITNESS FELL: I ha ve the printout but I'm 

16 not sure it's 

17 MR. VANDIVER: I've got it. (Witness ~rovided 

18 with a document.) 

19 COMMISSIONER BEARD: Page 79, i f you would. 

20 Now, one of the questions that came up was 

21 the first four listed there was a n amount of zero 

22 dollars and zero cents. And my best unders tanding or 

23 recollect i on was that, basically, Ju.stice had you all 

24 in a hammer lock a nd was saying, •You're going to acc ept 

25 these, we're telling you that's there, we have an 
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1 ongoing investigation and we're not going to release 

2 some ot this information to you. But it you want to 

J get out ot this thing, you're going to accept this is 

4 what it was." And there was no dollar amount 

5 a s sociated with those first tour. km I fairly close? 

6 WITNESS FELL: That was my understanding. I 

7 was not involved in the negotiation with the 

8 governaent. I obviously worked with the IRS 

9 considerably, but I wasn't involved in that. 

10 COMMISSIONER BEARD: The very first item 

11 there , over there in the "CoiD.IIIents" column, it says, 

12 "To l he knowledge ot Gult, DLG was paid $5,280.13 for 

13 this service." Would that have come as a resul t of, 

14 once you got back, doing a little digging in and 

15 research to find out as best you could? 

16 

17 

18 

WITNESS FELL: Yes, sir . 

COMMISSIONER BEARD: Okay. 

WITNESS FELL: We could identi fy some 

19 invoices that pertained to that. 

20 

21 

COMMISSIONER BEARD: Okay . 

CHAIRMAN WILSON: You mean on the i nvoice it 

22 said that they -- what is this? They prepared a tape 

2) for --

24 WITNESS FELL: No, oir. The i nvoice at Gulf 

25 Power Company did not s ay that. 
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CH~IRKAN WILSON: What invoice did you have 

2 a ccess to? 

) WI TNESS FELL: We were able and we went down 

4 to the Dick Leonard office and discussed this with them 

5 and were able to look at their records and then compare 

6 it back to ours; and they were able to refer us to 

7 particular invoices that we got that that cost was 

a included i n . 

C~IRMAN WILSON: So you could - - you we re 

10 able to trace -- do a paper trail? 

11 

12 

WITNESS FELL: Yes, sir. 

CHAIRMAN WJ:LSON: From what they bil!ed you 

13 tor and what they actually did, and they showed you on 

14 the invoice, which invoice covered the making of that 

15 tape? 

16 

17 

WITNESS FELL: Yes, sir. 

COMMISSIONER BEARD: Did you do that kind of 

iS investigation generally with all of these? 

19 WITNESS FELL: No. That's really sort of an 

20 unusual situation where you actually go into a vendor's 

21 offi c e a nd review their records . First y ou have t u 

22 have audit rights, and then a cooperative effort e n 

23 their part. So, no, auditors for the uost par t do not 

24 go ln a nd do that. 

25 COMMISSIONER BEARD: I know they don't 
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1 normally, but you just paid a $500,000 fine. 

2 WITNESS FELL: Well, we did this before with 

J the tine. We did this in a number of cases, more 

4 recently, that's right. 

5 COMMISSIONER BEARD: You had th j s ~rintout 

6 information before you did that? 

7 

8 

9 

WITNESS FELL: No, air. 

COMMISSIONER BEARD: Before you did the fine? 

WITNESS FELL: Well, this is the results ot 

10 the work that -- this is !rom the plea agreement, plea 

11 bargain and agreement. 

12 COMMISSIONER BEARD: Go over to Page 83. 

13 Let's tak another example. 

14 

15 

WITNESS FELL: All right. 

COMMISSIONER BEARD: Third line down, August 

16 the 2nd, 1984, Heamer ' Yates; descript ! on . condominium 

17 rental, $1,713, disguised as miscellaneous expense. 

18 Now, where did that info~ation camP from on 

19 that line? 

20 WITNESS FELL: That would have come from 

21 He111111er ' ~ates. We would have no way to determine what 

22 that waa. The invoice that was sent to Gulf Power 

23 Company was disguised as miscellaneous expense. It was 

24 only upon Kr. Yates' coming forth and talking with the 

25 IRS, the government, and admitting t o this that that 
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1 was detarained. 

2 CHAIRMAN WILSON: How , did you find th.st out 

3 from the IRS and the governaent , or did you find that 

4 out from Mr. Yates? 

5 

6 not --

7 

WITNESS FELL: Froa the government. We did 

CHAIRMAN WILSON: So they told you 

8 WITNESS FELL: We got it from --

9 CHAIRMAN WI LSON: They told you what 

iO transactions backed up the accounts? 

11 

12 

13 

14 

WITNESS FELL: Yes, sir. 

CHAIRMAN WILSON: In the plea agreement? 

WITNESS FELL: In the plea agreement. 

COMMISSIONER EASLEY: Was that the case in the 

15 first one that you all discussed? I don't remember the 

16 company naae, OGS? 

17 COJOaSSIONER BEARD: No, that's a different 

18 company. 

19 MR. HOLLAND: Colllllli&sioner, Mr . Fell is not 

20 tot&lly faailiar with what we were able to verity 

21 internal to our discussions with c~rtain of these 

22 vendors. 

23 CHAIRMAN WILSON: Who is? 

24 MR. HOLLAND: I am, and Hr . Vandiver doesn't 

25 want me t o testify. So I think I stated on the record 
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1 that we did, in tact, talk to Mr. Yates early on in the 

2 h~aring. 

3 COMMISSIONER BEARD: Let me keep asking 

4 questions ot the investigator, okay? 

5 

6 

MR. HOLLAND: That's fine. 

COMKISSIONER BEARD: You settled the thing 

7 out, okay? Now, I guess I've lived around law 

8 entorceaent too long, and I -- it's hard for me to let 

9 go of something. I know that my company has paid out 

10 $1700 tor a condominium rental. Now, we had this 

11 conversation last week, that you got -- ~ don't know 

12 

13 

14 

15 

what condoainiuaa rent for over there, but I imagine 

this is probably for longer than a day, $1700. 

WITNESS FELL: I would hope so. 

COMMISSIONER BEARD: Probably longer even than 

16 a week. Now, there are statements that have been made 

17 that one individual, or aaybe one individual, and one 

18 or two in his employ, but I think one individual in 

19 this instance, was the only -:>ne that knew about thi s. 

20 Okay? 

21 Now, I've got a condominium rental that has 

22 been handled. I suspect if I have gone that far, I'm 

23 going to go out and get the liquor and the groceries, 

24 or have somebody do it . And I guess the law 

25 enforcement part of me wants to g o back a:1d say , "I'm 
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1 making a state.ment that only one person is involved, 

2 and I've cleaned ay company up." 

3 As an investigator, I would have a sense ot 

4 wanting to backtrack and find out it, in tact, I can 

5 live with that stateaant , ii I had some bigger items 

6 like this that ctuck out, not the -- understand $70 i s 

7 nickel and di .. against the rata base ot Gulf Power, 

8 but it's the principle or the issue. 

9 WITNESS FELL: Yea, sir. Commissioner, in 

10 connection with the Hemmer & Yates situation, I defy 

11 anybody to be able to look at the invoices that w~ have 

12 and find where there's a probl ... 

l3 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 invoice. 

COMMISSIONER BEARD: Didn't expect you to. 

WITNESS FELL: Sir? 

COMMISSIONER BEARD: I didn't expect you to. 

WITNESS FELL: Right. 

COMMISSIONER BEARD; HeJIIJIIer ' Yates has t he 

19 WITNESS FELL: Hemmer & Yates, that's r ight, 

20 had the information. And at the time we were looking 

21 at that , the gova.rnment was involved with Hemmer & 

22 Yates, and it was determined thct we should not be 

2J involved with the H ... er & Yates situation since th6 

2• IRS was on top of it. Then we determined this 

25 inforaation -- the inforaation you're seeing here on 
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1 the plea agreeaent. We never h~d access to that 

2 informat ion until the plea agreement, except that the 

3 attorneys who were dealing with the government in 

4 connection with that. But internal auditing was not 

5 involved in that. 

6 

7 

CO~SSIONER BEARD: Well --

CHAIRMAN WILSON: Well, I' m kind of curious, 

8 what are we to aake of this schedule that we have here 

9 then? What ia that supposed to represent? 

10 

11 

WITNESS FELL: On the plea agreement? 

CHAIRMAN WILSON: Yea, sir , the items -- this 

12 goes through each account and t ries to determine the 

13 dollars that are involved with it. You put this 

14 together , ia that right? 

15 WITNESS FELL: From the plea agreement. 

16 CHAIRMAN WILSON: Well , you didn't get the 

17 dollars out of the plea agreement, did you? Or did 

18 you? 

19 WITNESS FELL: It would be in the plea 

20 agreement. 

21 CHAIRMAN WILSON: All of these dollars are in 

22 the plea agreement? 

23 

24 

WITNESS FELL: That's my underst anding. 

COMKISSIONER EASLEY: There's one more 

25 question. Are all of those dollars taken out of the 
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1 rate base for the purposes of tl'lis docket? 

2 

3 

WITNESS FELL: It's my understanding it is. 

CHAIRMAN WILSON: These all occurred in years 

4 prior? 

5 

6 

WITNESS FELL: Yes. 

COMMISSIONER EASLEY: Are there any dollar~ 

7 that we don't -- we're unsure as to whether they've 

8 been taken out, whether they're prior year or not? 

9 WITNESS FELL: It's my understanding tilat we 

10 definitely have taken theJD out; that they're not in the 

11 current rate base. 

12 ~RMAH WILSON: It's my understanding the 

13 Company has committed any of these dollars that are 

14 involved in th.at plea aqreeJaent will be either refunderi 

15 or wh atever the dis.pos i tion would be made. 

16 Would you look on the first page of that? And 

17 I'm looking at the Hemmer & Yates. It says r e tainer 

18 fee, and the a.Jiount says, zero. It says "see 

19 comments," and over on the comments it says, "Retainer 

20 amount, net of all accounts and items specifically 

21 identified in the statement of facts as charged to 

22 retainer tees, $46,890.• 

23 Now, if you know that amount o f dollars that 

24 are associated with that count, why is the amount 

25 column showing zero? 
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WITNESS FELL: Commissioner, I don't know as I 

2 can give you a definite answer to that. There ~re a 

3 lot of other !teas on -- in this plea agreement 

4 associated with He .. er ' Yates, $1,000, $1,000, 500 and 

5 so forth. And it could be that that's related -- it 

6 came from the retaine~, but I specifically do no t know. 

7 CHAIRMAN WILSON: Well, is th..,t true for the 

8 other item• on that page, those first tour where there 

9 are zero dollar• shown? (Pause) 

10 WITNESS FELL: Excuse me just a minute. 

11 (Pause) 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

COMMISSIONER BEARD: Who was it that you said 

didn't want you to te•t ity? 

MR. HOLLAND: Mr. Vandiver. 

COMMISSIONER BEARD: Oh. 

MR. HOLLAND: It there is no objection , I can 

17 clear something up . 

18 

19 

MR. VANDIVER: Commissioner Bedrd -- I haYe 

no problem he can go ahead and say whateve•. Hr. 

20 Holland is an honorable man. Hr. Holland is a --

21 CHAIRMAN WILSON: The problem is, your 

22 objection is rooted in 400 years ot the English and 

23 American common law. 

24 

25 

MR. VANDIVER: What can I say? 

COMMISSIONP.R BEARD: Let me ask this. 
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MR . VANDIVER: I'll waive my objection for Kr. 

Holland to make a limited explanation tu enable the 

Collllllisaion to better undarstand this particular 

exhibit . 

MR . HOLLAND: Let me just state - -

CHAIRMAN WILSON : I guess, let me see if I can 

put it i n context , a nd this is just kind of a curiosity 

kind ot thing. 

MR. HOLLAND: I understand . 

CHAIRMAN WILSON: Dollars aren't involved in 3 

rate case. It r eally doesn't have anything to do with 

it. 

MR. HOLLAND: You're right . 

CHAIRMAN WILSON: I guess the queotion is, i6 

what you know -- the only thing you know is what the 

gover·naent told you? 

HR . HOLLAND: No . 

WITNESS FELL: No, no. 

CHAIRMAN WILSON: That's the impression I'm 

gettinq from you. 

MR. HOLLAND: Let me just inquire of him, if 

you would like, and I think I can elicit. 

He was not present when the disc ussions were 

had with the representatives from Hemmer & Yate s. I 

was there, and a partner or mine was there . we 
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1 obtained a draft of a potential plea agreement, and I 

2 took that plea agreement containing the allegations 

3 relative to the overt act and sat down and discussed it 

4 with the representative from Hemmer & Yates, and 

5 verified to ay satisfaction that most, if not all , of 

6 what was contained in that document was accu1:ate. 

7 We did not have the ability, without subpoena 

8 power, to obtain the records that the Internal Revenue 

9 Service had from a .... r ' Yates, without some employee 

10 of the Gulf Power Co~ny, other than Mr. Horton , who 

11 at the time we learned of this, had already died. We 

12 bad no way other than Kr. Yates telling us that it was 

13 true to verify it. An audit would not have verified it 

14 because, nuaber one, what you see in the item 1, 2, 3 .. 

15 4 dovn, moat of what be paid !or on behalf or, in most 

16 of these instances, Mr. Horton was through the 

17 retainer. And the $50,000 figure you sec is the t o t a l 

18 amount paid to Hemmer ' Yates in retainer for 1985 

19 through 1987. The individua ~ amount, the 46,890, i s 

20 the total of the amounts that are itemized for Hemmer & 

21 Yates in this docket . So they're contained it you 

22 totalled up all the Hemmer & Yates items on this 

23 document, if I'm not mistaken, they would total to the 

24 46,890, and the rest of the retainer would be 

25 unaccounted for. Those are the amounts t hat are 
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1 contained in the plea agre ement. 

2 There are, as I stated very early on in this 

3 proceeding, certain items that are contained in the 

4 docWDent, the overt acta, that we could not verify. 

5 Very !ew, very, very tew, but a few. We ~ere looking 

6 at the possibility of being indicted for the acts of 

7 Mr. Horton to what we were told was over 100 counts . 

8 And it you look at the overt acts, there's 100 more of 

9 thea. We could have been indicted on each one and 

10 could bave been indicted on a number of counts on each 

11 one. 

12 There was a substantial -- and I forgot what 

13 it vas, 200-, $300,000 aaximum fine each count. We 

14 were talking about a substantial sum of mone y. We 

15 could verity, as I stated earlier, the majority of 

16 these. The Dick Leonard. We were able to veri fy by 

17 the trip that Mr. Fell spoke to. The Appleyard 

18 amounts, when we obtained a ledger in October of '88 , 

19 we were able to verity. I'm trying to think. And 

20 later, as I stated , we were able to verify some of the 

21 He mmer ' Yates amounts. 

22 There ~re a few, and I think you all have 

2 3 identified one or two there that we w~re not able t o 

24 verity . As I stated earlier, I was referenced 

25 specifical l y to, I believe Paragraph 17 , in the plea 
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1 agreement. We argued strenuously with the government 

2 to keep that one out . The government said, "Take it 

3 this way or you don't take it." We had some evidence, 

4 although as I stated earlier, not s ufficient evidence 

5 from which to indict based upon the allegation 

6 contained there, and we made a 

7 CHAIRMAN WILSON: You had some evidence, or 

8 the governaent had some evidence? 

9 

10 

11 

KR. HOLLAND: That' s true . 

CHAIRMAN WILSON: No, which? You or them? 

KR. HOLLAND: We both did. They had a lot 

12 more, they said, then we did, but they would not s hare 

13 it with us. 

14 And they were insistent that that paragraph 

15 sta y in the plea agreement. It was either t ake it the 

16 way it was with those overt acts contained in it a nd 

17 limit it to two counts rather than a hundred counts , or 

18 it was to go to trial and subject the Compa ny to 

19 substantial tines, and the employees to substantial 

20 questioning, and so on with reference to this. And it 

21 was based on that choice that we had that we made the 

22 choice to enter into the plea agreement. 

23 COMMISSIONER BEARD: My situation in 

24 different, I t hink, than Collllllissioner Wilson's. I' m 

25 not faulting that decision at all . 

FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVI CE COMMISSION 



413 0 

1 KR. HOLLAND: But you're faulting the 

2 decision to plead to something that you didn't Know for 

3 sure --

4 COMMISSIONER BEARD: No, I think I told you 

5 that was Coaaissioner Wilson's concern, okay? To me J t 

6 happened. Okay. I don't doubt t he majority ot this 

7 stuff happened, okay. It happened in the past, I 

8 accept that, okay. And I accept that you've identified 

9 at least one pers on associated wi th that , oxay, or the 

10 governaent has, okay. 

11 My question is what do you do today, okay, 

12 going forward, to c onvince yourself, okay, beyond any 

13 r easonable doubt, that everyone associated is out of 

14 the Company, or whatever? 

15 KR. HOLLAND: uet me inquire of Mr. Fell with 

16 respect to that. 

17 COMMISS IONER BEARD: Well , let ma finish. 

18 And I'm sorry, but state.ments l ike, " I asked the 

19 manager and he said it was o~ay," it may have been, it 

20 may not have been, and I firmly believe the manager 

21 though~ i s was okay. 

22 KR. HOLLAND: Well, I wan t to pursue th~t 

2 3 one, too, bec ause t .here is aorOl to it than what's come 

24 out. 

25 COIDIISS I ONER BEARD: Okay. 
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1 CHAIRMAN WILSON: Go ahead. 

2 REDIRECT EXAMINATION 

3 BY MR. HOLLAND: 

4 Q Mr. Fell, let me start backwards and work my 

5 way to thw beqinning. Did the company, in tact, as a 

6 part ot the Appleyard -- not Dick Leonard but Design 

7 Associates -- audita interview any number ot employees 

8 relative to their involvement? 

9 

10 

A Yea, we interviewed many of them . 

CHAIRMAN WILSON: You interviewed with Design 

11 Associates? 

12 MR. HOLLAND: No, I'm talking about ecployees 

13 wh~ dealt with Design Associates, and with Appleyard, 

14 and with the other advertising agencys who were 

15 involved? 

16 

17 Q 

WITNESS FELL: Yea. 

Other th.an the individuals who have been 

18 identified in the plea agreement, to your knowledge, 

19 based upon your investigation were any other 

20 individuals identified as having been involved in 

21 collusion, with respect to the events that are 

22 described in the plea agree ment? 

23 

24 

A 

Q 

Repeat that, Ed; that's a long one. 

Were there any other individuals that you 

25 interview.td who had knowledge that Mr. Horton was, in 
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1 tact, asking vendors to make expenditures, either in 

2 the tora ot political contributions or charita~le 

J contributions or for a condominium, or for whatever, 

·4 other than Mr. Horton and the people who are named in 

5 the plea agree .. nt? 

·6 

7 

A 

Q 

I don't think so. Not that I know of. 

Okay. 

.a In teras .,r the -- and I think this might 

9 clear something up. In terms of the routine audits 

10 that you would perform, if collusion is occuring 

11 botween eit.ber an individual in the company and the 

12 vendor or between two or more employees, will a routine 

13 audit pick that up in the normal course? (Pause) 

14 

15 

16 

A Not in the normal course. 

MR. VANDIVER: Ed, are we on redirect? 

MR. H·OLLAND: Yeah. Are you through? 

17 MR. VANDIVER: Yes, I am. I wfi& just curious 

18 as to where we were procedurally. I apologize . 

19 

20 

21 Q 

CHAIRMAN WILSON: Go ahead. 

MR. HOLLAND: Okay. (Pause) 

(By Mr. Holland) Just for the record, Mr. 

22 Fe l l, to support what I've just stated, we were able to 

23 verify, were we not, the charges with respect to the 

24 Appleyard account? 

25 A Yes. 
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And likewise with respect to t .he Dick Leonard 

Yes. 

And, specifically, with respect to the Dick 

5 Leonard group, ao that we can clarify what, in !act, 

6 occu.rred, looking at a Dick Leonard invoice would you 

7 h.ave been able to ascertain that that invoice had, in 

8 tact, been padded? 

9 

10 

A 

Q 

No vay. 

Did we receive product !or what we were 

11 invoiced !or? 

12 A We received products, but we had some 

13 inflated invoices. (Pause) 

14 Q With respect to Commissioner Gunter's 

15 questions about wh.at we d i..d to attempt to verity the 

16 aaounts involved with respect to Mr. Croft, Hr. Crof t 

17 sued us or when did Hr. Croft sue us, do you 

18 remellber? 

19 Soaetime in 1986. I don't know if I'm 

20 remeabering correctly. 

21 

2 2 

23 

Q 

A 

Q 

And did we file a counterclaim agains t him ·~ 

Yes. 

And prior to tha t time , and as part of that 

24 counterc laim, have we a t tempted to verify the amounts 

25 involve4 in his thefts from the Company? 
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Yea, ve did, and that's theae !lgures that 

2 we're finding? 

3 Q And is that vbat ia contained in your 

4 Schedule 27 

5 

6 

A 

Q 

Yen. 

I• it difficult so .. timea, when an eaployee 

7 has stolen frowa the Company, to, in fact, verity the 

8 amount that he stole? 

9 

10 

A 

Q 

Very difficult. 

Do you so .. tiaea reach a point of diminishinq 

11 returns, auob that it ia not cost benefic i al to the 

12 Company to continue to pursue that effort? 

13 

14 

A That ia correct. 

COMMISSIONER BEARD: Can I back up for a 

15 second? I let a011etbing g"!t away from ~he questions 

16 you were asking th.ere. 

17 You were able to verify all the Appleyard 

18 ite~? 

l S WITNESS FELL: You're referring to the 

20 Appleyard -- the ledger that we rece i ved and the items? 

21 Yea, we were. When you say verity --

22 COMMISSIONER BEARD: Well, the question was 

23 asked by your attorney and you said "yea," so if I 

24 misunderstood or am misquoting the question, then let's 

25 get it aquared away. 
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WITNESS FELL: Well, maybe we ought to go 

2 back a .nd make sure I understood what he said when I 

3 

4 

said, "yea.• To verify we were able ~xcuae me . 

Q (MR. HOLLAND) Let me ask it this way: And 

5 specifically, the one that comes to mind, how much cash 

6 was involved in the Apployard account, approximately? 

7 You don't have to --

8 

9 

A 

Q 

About 17,~00, 16 to 11,000. 

And did you, in fact, sit down with Hr . 

10 Horton and go through each of the items conta1ned in 

11 the Appleyard ledger? 

12 A Yes. Mr. Horton provided a and Hr. 

13 Yarbrough also provided a list of each item describing, 

14 to the best of their me.mory, what it was for, and in 

15 alot of cases they couldn't remember. So we were able 

16 to get that inforaation from both Hr. Horton and Hr. 

17 Yarbrough. 

18 COMMISSIONER BEARD: That was tht! case o f 

19 Appleyard? 

20 MR. HOLLAND: Yea, air. 

21 WITNESS FELL: Yes, sir. 

22 Q (BY KR. HOLLAN~ ) ~nd the point, let me ask 

23 it this way. Were you able to verity what the c ash wa s 

24 spent for? 

25 A No, we could no verify in all cases. 
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Were you able to verity that, in tact, cash 

2 had been given? 

3 

4 

A Yes. 

COMMISSIONER BEARD: Okay, and you were able 

5 to do th.at tor the Dick Leonard group as well? 

6 WITNESS FELL: Well, we were able to verify , 

7 with the help ot Dick Leonard, the items or, say, 

8 political cont=ibutions; this is what they, themselves, 

9 gave us. Obviously, you cannot identity that through 

10 the invoice th.at we had, because it was obviously a 

11 falsified invoice. 

12 COMMISSIONER BEARD: And you were able to 

13 with H8llllller ' Yates? 

14 WITllESS FELL: In the case or Hammer ' Yates, 

15 the invoices, there was no way you could tell what the 

16 Hemmer ' Yates invoice included, other than the 

17 description on the invoice. And as I was saying 

18 earlier, we did not actually talk with Mr. Yates at the 

19 time that I was starting to investigate that. I was 

20 advised by counsel that they and the IRS were 

21 investigating that and advised us to hold ott . 

2 2 I accepted that advice Ed just described a 

23 few mo•enta ago. 

24 

25 

COMMISSIONER BEARD: And Design Associates? 

WITNESS FELL: Design Assoc iates, ve actually 
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reviewed those invoices tor two years. We •ere able to 

test whe ther we got products !or the invoices, although 

we pa id f or the•. In some cases we received a service 

or a product; in so•e cases we were unable to determi ne 

if any service was received at all. And therein lies 

some ot the questions that we have. 

COMMISSIONER BEARD: Well , the s econd i t em on 

Page 79 -- and the problem is I'm asking Mr. Fell and 

it's probably going to be you who needs t o answer it. 

Was there any, any proof, of any kind, or was that 

strictly, "You take this one or the whole thing goes 

away .. ? 

WITNESS FELL: Commissioner, I know nothing 

about this ite•. I saw it when I saw the plea 

agreE<~~ent . 

you . 

know . 

(Pause) 

COMMISSIONER BEARD: And no one knows but 

KR. HOLLAND: No, there are oth '!r people who 

COMMISSIONER BEARD: I n the Company? 

KR . HC::..t.AND: Yes. 

COMMISSIONER BEARD : Would Hr . McCrary know? 

MR. HOLLAND: Commissioner, Mr. McCrary would 

know. I don't know what relevance this has to this 
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proceeding, but it you, when he gets up, would like to 

inquire. 

CHAIRMAN WILSON: Were you able to determine 

an amount f r o• Design Associates tor which there was no 

product or ser vice identi fied? 

WITNESS FELL: Not specifically. We know -­

CHAIRMAN WILSON: It you vent t h rough their 

bil l ing tor two years, and you could ident ity a product 

or service that you got from them, there was obviously 

sUJDe that you couldn't verity that . It you had tne 

invoice, it seems to me that you would add them up and 

come up v i tb a number. 

WITNESS FELL: Right. We have an amount. 

(Pause) one •o•ent, commissioner. 

CHAIRMAN WI LSON : I just want to know. I 

know we have a separ ate investigation going on this. I 

just want to know , since we're here and we've got this 

witness and I see t his exhibit, whether you're either 

c ontinuing to investigate or you're finding out what. 

those dollars are so tha t when we get to the end ot 

t hat investigation that we're going to have some firmer 

num.bers than three zeros w1.th a decima l i n the midd le. 

KR. HOLLAND: Well, we have tiled a lawsuit 

against Mr. Hovell. We've been unable to ~erve Kr . 

Howell because until recently he was unfound. 
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1 CHAIRMAN WILSON: His whereabouts were 

2 unknown. I understand . 

3 MR. HOLLAND: Exactly. He has returned, he 

4 has testified, made statements to the government . He 

5 is supposed to be sentenced the 27th ot this month. We 

6 hope to obtain service on him. The only way that we 

7 can verity a.n amount is --

B 

9 right? 

10 

11 

12 but --

13 

CHAIRMAN WILSON: You'l l know where he is, 

MR. HOLLAND: We'll know where he is. 

COMMISSIONER BEARD: May be out-of-pocket, 

CHAIRMAN WILSON: Down to the courthouse. 

14 MR. HOLLAND: Well, you know, it's like the 

15 b l ood out ot a turnip. I don't expect that he's got ~ 

16 whole lot against which we can recover. 

17 

18 

19 lawsuit . 

CHAIRMAN WILSON: Uh-huh . 

MR. HOLLAND: But we do intend to pursue that 

20 We cannot ver ify today, without him, what 

21 amount was actually overbilled or was the resu J t of 

22 padded invoices and what amount wo actually received 

23 product !or. 

24 CHAIRMAN WILSON: So you really don't know, 

25 even t he ones that you can't verify a product or 
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1 service tor, you're not sure whether there may have 

2 been a product or service or not until you talk with 

J him. 

KR. HOLLAND: No. And in fact, and this is 

5 not testimony because it'a in the record. I think it's 

6 in the Peoruary 6th Audit Coaaittee Repc rt where Hr. 

7 Horton stated to the Audit Committee that the Company 

8 had, i n tact, received product for every i nvoic e that 

9 the Company was billed by Kr. Howell. He maintained 

10 that. He could not back that statement up, ! ut he 

11 maintained th.at that was in tact the case . 

12 CHAIRMAN WILSON: And Mr. Fell has been 

13 unable to, going through those records, a ssociate a 

14 product or service with the invoices to Design 

15 Associates? 

16 KR. HOLLAND: That's correct . And as I 

17 stated I think very early on, we do know that the 

18 goverru11ent has soae of Hr. Howell's records. The 

19 extent t o which as a result of a rev iew at thos e 

20 records one can verity what we got product for and what 

21 we didn't, we won't know until we see them. 

22 CHAIRMAN WILSON: Go ahead. 

23 FURTHER REDIRECT EXAMINATION 

24 BY HR . HOLLAND: 

25 0 Kr. Fe ll, let me s tart back at the beginning 
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1 now. There were some questions, a number of questions, 

2 asked of you relative to the inventory or count that 

3 was taken first in 1982 and then the subsequent count 

4 in 1983 . 

5 Reference was made to Mr . Harris' statement 

6 in the B~er-Childers Report. Wa• Mr. Harris later 

7 implicated in at least one of the schemes, 

B specifically, tbe Leeper? 

9 

10 

11 

12 

A 

Q 

A 

Q 

Yea, he was. 

Was he subsequently terminated? 

He was. 

When I say •terminated," I mean fired, I 

13 don't mean --

14 

15 

A 

Q 

Yea, he wasn't really "terminated." 

Got to be careful. (Laughter) 

16 Was Ms. Sirmon, in tact, implicated in some 

17 of the schemes? 

18 

19 

A 

Q 

Yes. 

I think you stated that, at the time of the 

20 first count, that the warehouse was in fact being 

21 re.modeled or renovations being done? 

22 

23 

A 

Q 

Yes. 

Were there , in fact, items that you verified 

24 had not been counted in that first audit? 

25 A Yes. 
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Were at leaet aoae of those items out in the 

They were. 

With reference to -- and before I get into 

5 the audit itself, or the count, d one in 1983, there was 

6 some reference made to the polygraphs and your rellance 

7 on thoee polygraphs. Are you aware that in Kr. Brazwell's 

8 polygraph that --

9 MR. BURGESS: I'll object to the leading 

10 structure, it's a leading question. 

11 KR. HOLLAND: This is a matter o f record. 

12 I'm trying to save a little time, but I'll show him the 

13 polygraph exaa. (Handa papers to the witness.) 

14 0 (By Kr. Holland) Mr. Fell, does that 

15 document appear to be the polygraph statement of Lamar 

16 Brazwell that was co ntained in the Saker-Childers 

17 Report? 

18 

19 

A 

0 

Yea. 

How aucb does that polygraph indicate that 

20 Mr. Brazwell was truthfully testifying he stole from 

21 Gulf Power Company? 

A It says only parhaps 4 to 5,000 worth of 

23 materials troa Gult. 

24 0 Did Mr. Brazwell steal more than that from 

25 Gulf Power Company? 
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6 Exhibi t VIII, it's Roman Numeral VII I , I believe to th~ 

7 

8 COMMISSIONER BEARD: Page 152 o ! 182 is the 

9 Brazwell polygraph examination. I would like t o know 

10 where you are in there. 

11 

12 

13 

14 

MR. HOLLAND: I'm on the last page. 

COMMISSIONER BEARD: The signature page? 

MR. HOLLAND: Yea. 

COMMISSIONER GUNTER: I don't have that 

15 before me. But isn't t .hat -- is that the one where he 

16 started low and went high and came back? I just -- I 

17 could recall that, but I --

18 

19 

MR. HOLLAND: Yes . He cuts it ott at $6,000. 

COMMISSIONER GUNTER: Yeah, okay. It's been 

20 a long time since I --

21 CHAIRMAN WILSON: Am I r e ading this report 

22 c~rrectly that it says it's the examiner - - the 

23 examiner says that the examinee's peak appeared on the 

24 question ot more than $6,000 worth? 

25 MR. HOLLAND : Uh-huh. 
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CHAIRMAN WILSON : So what you know !rom t h is 

2 is i t waa in excess o! 6,000? 

3 MR. HOLLAND: Right. But it you l ook a t the 

4 question• above, he also asks , •Have you s t o len more 

5 than 102, aore than 122, aore tha n 20 " ? 

6 

7 

8 

CHAIRMAN WILSON: Uh-huh . 

MR. HOLLANO: And he didn't peak at that po int . 

CHAIRMAN WILSON: So the conc l usion is that 

9 it 's in the neighborhood o! in excess o ! 6 and be l ow 10? 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

1 ~ 

16 

$6,000 . 

COMMISSIONER BEARD: In excess o! 6 and be l ow 8 . 

MR. HOLLAND: Below 8. 

CHAIRMAN WILSON: Solow 8, I'm s o rry . 

COMMISSIONER BEARD: So the neighborhood o ! 

MR. HOLLAND: That's correc t . 

COMMISSIONER BEARD: And he had test i ! ied 

17 prior to that th.at it was in the 4 to $5 , 000 ra nge? 

18 

19 

MR. HOLLAND: That' s correct . 

COMMISSIONER GUNTER: But he wa s convic ted ~! 

20 a whole lot aore than that. 

21 MR. HOLLAND: In !ac t , and the record will 

22 r e !lect that he waa c onvicted i n one scheme alone or 

2 3 more than 40 . 

CHAIRMAN WILSON: What d oes that t ell us 

25 a bout polygraph? 
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1 

2 

MR. HOLLAND: Not very re l i able. 

COMMISSIONER BEARD: Well, if we're going to 

3 testify about polygraphs, we 'd better get an expert in. 

4 Sometimes they are and sometimes they aren't. It is an 

5 art. 

6 MR. HOLLAND: I agree, but it's very 

7 difficult to tell. 

8 COMMISSIONER BEARD: Now can I ask a question 

9 of Mr. Fell? The words down here says, "Have you 

10 stolen aore than $6,000 at work?" Okay. Do you have a 

11 fiqure of about approxiaately how much Mr. Brazwell 

12 took for his own personal gain? 

13 WITNESS FELL: I don't have a specific 

14 a.ount. I know that it's more than $40,000. 

15 COMMISSIONER BEARD: For his own personal 

16 advantage? I'• not talking about that he sent to 

17 somebody else or caused to be diverted or anything like 

18 that, throu9h the schemes? 

19 WITNESS FELL: I'm not sure I can testify to 

20 that, then, I don't know that. 

21 Q (By Mr. Holland) He was charged -- was he 

22 char9ed for , was he charged by the U.S. Attorney in the 

23 West Florida landscaping scheme for having takc:1 in 

24 excess of $40,000? 

25 A That's my un.derstanding. 
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1 0 And that was a charge against him and not 

2 against so.eone else? 

) 

4 

A Right. 

COMMISSIONER BEARD: Mr. Fell, who benefited, 

5 it you can, who benefited from that $40,000, that 

6 schem.e? 

7 

8 did. 

9 

10 

11 

WITNESS FELL: I would presume Hr. Brazwell 

COMMcrSSIONER BEARD: Money in his pocket? 

WITNESS FELL: That's what I would assume . 

COMMISSIONER BEARD: Okay, I had not 

12 understood it to be that way. I misunderstood, 

13 appa.re.ntly. Okay. 

14 0 (By Mr. Holland) Hr. Fell, when you were --

15 WITNESS FELL: I don't know what he did with 

16 the •oney. I have to make that assumption. 

17 0 

18 Mr. Fell? 

19 

20 

A 

(By Mr. Holland) He's in jail, is he not, 

Yeah. 

COMMISSIONER BEARD : I just misunderstood, I 

21 wouldn't doubt that the money, the $40,000, went. I 

22 had understood that it was not necessarily to his 

23 individual personal dollar gain . That's my mistake . 

24 0 (By Mr. Holland) Hr . Fell, in conducting an 

25 audit or an inventory count, if you determined that 

FLORIDA FUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION 



4147 

1 material had been talten out ot the warehouse wi tlaout 

2 the proper <1ccounting taking place, and t•1at material 

3 vaa later located and vas returned to the warehouse, 

4 it's still coded, i t 's still shoving up as being in the 

5 inventory but at the tiae you per!orwed the count it 

6 vaa r.ot there, when it came back, if it were determined 

7 to be obsolete, what would your choices be wilh respect 

8 to the treataent o! that item? 

9 Well, it it was still on the hook~, it's 

10 still in inventory, obviously it should be counted. 

11 But it it waa determined that it was obsolete, then it 

12 would have to be reaoved !rom the books and then 

13 segregated aa obsolete a.aterial and disposed of in the 

14 normal procedure. 

15 0 In the inventory in 1983, did the Company 

16 locate an aaount of transaission line that was stil l in 

17 the inventory, in the i nventory count, but was no t in 

18 tact in inventory? 

19 A I presume you're referring to some materials 

20 that was at a, stored at a substation? 

21 

22 

23 

0 

A 

0 

24 warehouse? 

25 

Yea. 

That's correct . 

And was that material brought back to the 

Yes. 
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Q I want t o show you a quot o ! rom Ms . Si r mon 's 

2 deposition. It's in the ' 88 case that Gulf 'Withdrew. 

MR . VANDIVER: E~, could you provide whe re 

4 you are in Ms . Sirmon's deposition? 

5 MR . HOLLAND: I'm on Page 45 . 

6 KR. VANDIVER: Than1<. you. {Document provided 

7 to the witness.) 

8 Q Mr. Fell, would you read the statement she 

9 makes, the last answer on that page? 

10 A Yes. "Basically , when the truck comes in and 

11 we, the warehouseman , was instruc ted to unload it. I 

12 told him to take this particular item, put it in the 

• 13 

14 

scrap, that it was obvious that it was unuseable. When 

I did that, th~n Mr. Jordan said, 'No, no, no. This is 

1'5 a code number so-and-so . '" Should ! proceed ? 

16 Q Yes. 

17 A "'We need that . ' I j ust kind or looked at 

18 him. " End statement . 

19 Q I want you just to examine above that and 

20 belov that to deter.ine whether in fact s he was 

21 discussing the wire that was referred to earlier in the 

22 questions that you were asked by Mr. Vandiver. {Pause) 

A It appears to be that. 

24 Q Okay. It the material came in t o the 

25 warehous e a nd were coOed, as Mr . Jordan states there , 
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1 even if it were obsolete at that time, how wou l d i t 

2 have been treated? 

3 A It would have to bo treated as if i t w~s good 

4 and accounted for, becau s e it would be on the books. 

5 And then they'd have to make a decision as to whether 

6 it actually is usable or obsolete, remove it frn~ the 

7 books, and dispose of it in the ~ormal way . 

8 Q If there were $20,000 worth, a nd I think that 

9 was the figure that was ment i oned, of that wire, would 

10 that have impacted the net outage that was calculated? 

11 

12 

13 

A 

Q 

A 

Ye•. 

In what way? 

If it c ame in es $20,000 of obsolete materia l 

14 a.nd was on the books, it would have to be accounted for 

15 and, therefore, compared with the actual comparing with 

16 what's on the books. 

17 Q Let me stop you there. Would that reduce the 

18 determination ot the shortage; if that wire had not 

19 been recovered, had been left wherever it was and you 

20 showed $20,000 worth of inventory, would that have 

21 affected the count? 

22 A If you physically can't see it and ca n 't 

23 count it, and it is on the books , obviously it make s a 

24 difference. It becomeo a shortage. 

2 5 Q hnd it it is -- i f you do find it and yo u do 
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1 bring it back and it is counted, what impact would that 

2 have on the count? 

3 A Well, if it physic ally wasn't there and you 

4 didn't count it the first time and it became an 

5 adjustment, and was removed from the books an~ later 

6 brought back, it bad to be restored to the books. 

7 

8 

9 

Q 

A 

Q 

Is Ms. Sirmon an engineer? 

No. 

Would you think that s h e would be qualif ~ed 

10 to determine whether transmission line were, in fact, 

11 obsolete? 

12 A I would say it •ould be questionable, very 

13 questionable. 

14 

15 

16 

Q 

A 

Q 

Is Mr. Jordan an engineer? 

Yea, he is. 

Did you diacusa with him whether the wi r e 

17 was, in tact, obsolete? 

18 

19 

A Yea, we had a conversation ubout !. t. 

COMMISSIONER EASLEY: As long as you're on 

20 that, could I interrupt for a moment? 

21 

22 

MR. HOLLAND: Yes, ma'am. 

COMMISSIONER EASLEY: Did you say that Hs . 

23 Sirmon had been implicated i n one of these problems ? 

24 WITNESS FELL: It was -- yes , yes, that' s 

25 right. 
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COMMISSIONER EASLEY: But Ms. Sirmon is still 

WITNESS FELL : Yes, ma ' lUll. 

COMMISSIONER EASLEY: Do you know why? 

WITNESS FELL: I can -- I probably should 

defer this. 

COMMISSIONER EASLEY: Proba bly s hould . 

Well, from a security standpoint, have any 

steps been taken to make sure she can't be in another 

problem? 

WITNESS FELL: I think so. 

Q ( By Mr . Holland) Was Ks. Sirmon moved out o! 

the warehouse at the same time the other actions were 

taken? 

A She was removed from the warehouse and 

demoted. 

COMMISSIONER EASLEY: And what ? 

WITNESS FELL: Demoted. 

Q (By Mr . Holland) Mr . Fe ll , jus~ so we don't 

lose sight of where we are in al l of this , al l of th i s 

took place how long ago? 

A Early '84, '83 and '84 . 

Q Have significant --

A Well, the - - excuse me, t h e inventory was 

originally in '82. Then the one I think we are 
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1 referring to in '83, and Ma. Sirmon transferred in '84. 

2 Q In the 1983 audit that we've been discussing, 

J what's the gross overage versus the gross shortagE' t hat 

4 was calculated? 

5 A One mo.ment. (Pause) In '8J, the gross 

6 overage was 591,449. The gross shortage was 599,911. 

7 Q Could you e .xplain what you mean by •overage 

8 versus shortage"? 

9 A Yea. or the more than 2,000 items of 

10 materiels, there were x-number ot items showing an 

11 overage; that is, the physical count was over the book 

12 qu.anti ty, and the value ot that was 591, ooo. And of 

13 thoae x-nu.ber of codes that were short, the value of 

14 that would be 599,911. 

15 Q Did that indicate to you that additional 

16 improve.ments needed to be made in the inventory control 

17 system despite the fact that the net outage was only 

18 

:..9 

20 

21 

22 

$8,000? 

A 

Q 

A 

') 

Yes. 

Were those improvements in fact made? 

Many improvements were made. 

Are there reasons other than theft that a 

23 shortage might occur? 

24 A Yea. We have to keep in mind that there a re 

25 literally thousands ot transactions going on. Of these 
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1 more tha.n 2,000 items, coded items of mate rial , you are 

2 having thousands of transac tions, and these materie l s , 

3 coded aateriels, have a number, eight- or nine-digit 

4 number that people have to pr i nt out in order to s ecure 

5 that materiel, and errors are made in putting down 

6 these n~rs, recording the numbers. And that' s where 

7 most of your outages and errors causing the outages 

8 occur. 

Q Mr. Fell, in your testimony - - rebutta l 9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

testimony, you s tate that the value of the inventory 

this point was 3.7 million and that He. S irmon's - - I 

don't want to call it an estimate. t don't think 

that's how I would characterize it, but her number of 

$2 million was 54\, or would be 54\ ot the inventory, 

is that 

A 

Q 

correct? 

That's correct. 

The $3.7 million figure, i s t hat a tig•1re 

1 8 that's calculated as of a c ertain time? 

19 

20 

21 

A 

Q 

At the time of the inventory . 

Okay . Would --

MR. VANDIVER: Excuse me. I don't recal l 

22 asking this on cross, nor do I reca ll any or the 

23 commicsioners discuas ing that . 

24 MR. HOLLAND: I think we 've discussed at 

at 

25 length what goes into an inventor y, and that's what I 'm 
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1 leading to. 

2 MR. VANDIVER: I thought you were crossing on 

J the 2 million. Okay. 

4 Q (By Mr. Holland) Would more than $3.7 

5 million in inventory flow through the warehouse in a 

6 given year? 

7 Yes, it would be more than that. I'm t r ying 

8 to deteraine the number ot times or turnover. 

9 Q The value would depend upon th~ amount or 

10 t urnover, would it not? 

, 1 

12 

A 

Q 

Yea . 

With respect t o the quastionu that were ask&d 

lJ by Comaissioner Gunter with respect to how the work 

1' order system would work, would an engineer sign the 

15 worlt order? 

16 

17 

A 

Q 

Normally, yes, sir. 

When the m.ateriel was taken out and hopt:fully 

18 taken to a job and work performed, would the job be 

19 inspected to determine that the work had, in fact, 

20 occurred? 

21 

22 

A 

Q 

That's correct. 

And that the materie ls that had been checked 

23 out had, in tact, been used on the job? 

24 A Or returned, it not used. That' s the 

25 procedure. 
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1 0 Would a supervisor normally chec k the 

2 paperwork also to verify that? 

J A They are supposed to. 

4 0 If collusion occurs, can there be a 

5 ci r c umvention of this procedure? 

6 A Yeo, it could i t you had collusion. 

7 MR. HOLLAND: commiss ioners, that's all I 

8 !"lave. 

9 CHAIRMAN WILSON: Does this witness have any 

10 oxhibits that aren't late-tiled? 

11 MR. HOLLAND: I think they've a lready been 

' 12 stipulated in. 

13 CHAIRMAN WILSON: Thank you ve ry much. Happy 

14 retirement. 

15 WITNESS FELL: Thank you very much. 

16 (Witness Fell excused.) 

17 CHAIRMAN WILSON: Take about five minutes and 

18 come back and hasten to our dramatic conclusion. 

19 (Brief recess.) 

20 - - -

2 ) MR. HOLLAND: Mr. McCrary, are you ready? 

22 D. L. McCRARY 

2J was called as a rebuttal witness ~n behalf of Guli 

24 Power Company, and having been previously duly sworn, 

25 testified as foll ows: 
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1 DIRECT EXAMINATION 

2 BY MR. HOLLAND: 

J 

4 

5 

Q 

A 

Q 

Have you previously testified i n this docket? 

Yes, I have . 

And have you caused to be tiled i n th:~ 

6 docket teatiaony entitled "The Rebutta l Testimony of D. 

7 L. Mccrary"? 

8 A Yes. 

9 Q Do you have any corrections to that 

10 testimony? 

11 

12 

A 

Q 

No. 

If I were to aak you today those questions 

13 that ar e contained in your testimony, w~uld you r 

14 answers be the saae? 

15 

16 

A Y~s. 

MR. HOLLAND: Hr. Cha irman, we'd ask that Hr. 

17 Mccrary's rebuttal testimony be inserted into the 

18 record as though read . 

19 CHAIRMAN WILSON : Without objection it will 

20 be so inserted into the record. 

21 HR. HOLLAND: And I believe Hr. McCrary's 

22 schedule has already been premarked and stipulated into 

23 evidence. 

24 (Exhibit No. 5 previously stipulated in 

2 3 evidence.) 

FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COHMISSivN 



1 

2 

3 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

u 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

NOTE: page 4157 inadvertently o m1tt c d in 

numbering. 

FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION 

4157 

------ - - ---- -



2 

3 

4 

5 

6 o. 
7 A. 

8 

9 

1 0 

11 Q. 

12 • lJ A. 

14 

15 Q. 

1 6 

17 A. 

18 

19 

20 

2) 

22 o. 
2 3 A. 

24 

25 

GULf POWEB COMPANY 

Before the flor i da Publ ic Service Commission 
Rebutta l of 

D. L. McCra ry 
In Support of Rate Rel ief 

Docket No. 891345-El 
Date of filing May 21, 1990 

Please state your n~uae, address and place of eaployment. 

Hy name is Douglas L. McCrary. Hy address is ~oo 

Bayfront Parkway , Pensacola, florida 32501. I am the 

President and CEO of Gulf Power Company . 

Are you the saae Douglas L. McCrary vho subaitted 

prefiled direct testiaony in this Docket? 

Yes, I am. 

Do you have exhibits t u your teatiaony to vh! ch you wil l 

refer. 

Yes. 

Counsel: We ask tha t Hr . McCrary's Exhibit co~prised 

of 1 schedule, be marked for identification a s 

Exhibit _....;:5~- · (DLM-2) 

What is the purpose of your rebuttal teatiaony? 

The primary p urpose is to rebut the testiaony o! 

Commission Staf f witness Roberta Bass that Gulf Power 

Company should be penalized for mi smanagement. I have 
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been involved i n utility management for over 30 years. 

am as proud of our successful ef f o rts to rid Gulf Power 

ot a relatively tew d i shonest a nd unethi c al individual s 

and to restore the good name of this uti~ity and i ts 

e mployees as any effo rt in wh ich I have been invo lved. 

This Company and ita employees have been penaliled 

enough . We have made mistakes , but we have not 

mismanaged . We invite the Commission to revie~ our 

efforts and judge our successes. 

o n what standard should we be judged? Have the 

~ 1 wrongs been r i ghted? WP bel i eve they have . Ha ve the 

1 2 ratepayers suffered? We do not believe so, and have 

l J removed from this c ase any ident i f i able costs associdted 

14 wi th these wrongs. Finally, and the ultimate standard, 

15 have we provided to our cus tomers low coat, reliabl e 

16 electr ic service? Undeniably, we have . Thi s s houl d be 

17 the f ocus of this rate case . 

18 I have read with interest and will also address 

1 9 testimony ot the witnesses from the Off ice of Public 

20 Counsel, Messrs. Rosen, Schultz, and Larkin. They reject 

21 out of hand the inclusion of the Company's investment a nd 

22 expenses re l ated to Plant Scherer, which we, wi t h the 

23 knowledge and consent ot thi s Commission invested i n t or 

24 the benef i t o f our customers . lt wa s then , and is now , a 

25 
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good investment . These wi tnesses recommend, wlthout 

basis, disallowance of mill ions ot d oll ars o t o ' H 

expenses . As d i rected by th i s Commission in our last 

rete c ase, we have spent that amount nec ess ary to p r ovide 

the required level ot service to our customers. Desp i te 

the slight increase in customer complaints in 1989 noted 

in the testimony ot Stat! Witness Kath ryn Oyal Bro~n. 

which I attribu~e largely to the adverse publicity we 

have received, we have enjoyed a relatively low l evel of 

complaints over the past five years . I attr ibu te ou r 

excellent history to the low rates and h igh r el 1ability 

which our customers have and wi th appropriate rate re lief 

wi ll continue to en joy. 

Kr . McCrary, you take issue vith the aanageaent pen~lty 

reco.aended by Ma. Bass . Would you please elaborate? 

Yes. Hs. Bass acknowledges the many posi t i ve steps we 

have taken to correct the wrongs wh ich have been 

discovured since I became President just over seven yEars 

ago. She nevertheless concludes that bec ause it has 

taken •o long to discover and correct each ot the wrong s 

that top ma nagement • condoned" the activities and that a 

managem~nt penalty i s appropriate . 

I strongly disagree. The numerous correcti ve steps 

we have taken are outlined in Schedule 1 ~o my d i rect 
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testimony . What is not ret l e c ted are tne dates on 'a'hich 

the mos t offensive or tho ac t s occurred , the dates they 

were d i scovered, and the ac t ion taken. I have summari zed 

these in 3chedule 1 to this testimony. 

What doea thia exhibi~ ahow? 

-F i rst, the majority of the ac tivities occurred or beqan 

prior t o my coming to Gulf Power as Pr~aident in May o t 

1 983. 

-second, the initial discovery of illega l activi ty on the 

part o~ Mr . Croft t ook place shortly atter I came t o th ~ 

Compan y and immediate, decisive ac t ion wa s taken. 

-Third , it was this initial decisive ac t ion wh ich 

precip: tated virtually all of the subsequent internal and 

externa l investigations. 

-Fourth , when improper conduct was conf i rmed , immediate 

action was tak•n . The ma jor o ffenders invo l v~d 5re no 

longer wi th t he coapany. In all c ases, I fee l it wa~ the 

correct action . 

But, certain of the actions, particularly those containeJ 

in the plea aqreaaant, while t>eqinning prior to your 

bacoainq preaidant, occurraa over a nuaber of years 

subsequent . 

Yes , t hey did, and had I known of them, appropr i ate and 
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inmediate a c t ion would have bee n taken . It is easy t o 

c r iticize our failure to a scertai n the a c t ions o t a 

s enior management o ff i cial acti ng a lone o r i n conce rt 

with one or two employees . And yet one wo u l d not 

o rdinarily suspect that a senior v ice presi de:.t a nd 

fellow Board member had been engaged in unethl c al and 

il legal activities . 

My discovery of such activity did no t occur un t i l 

August or September of 1988 . We believe the gove r n~qnt 

had be en aware o! certain of these a c t i v i ties a t l ea s t 

since 1985 . The Company has no power t o sub1~ena 

docu ments or compel employees or vendo rs t o tes t t ty u nder 

oa~h . The government has this enorcous power, and yet, 

e ven they took some four to five years t o de velop 

s uff i cient evidence upon whi c h t o bese an i ndict men t . In 

fac t , des p i te our beat effo rts, bec ause o f the llmited 

n umber o f people involved and our 1nability t o comp~l 

the i r testi1110ny , we are yet unable t o verity a ll of t he 

overt acts c ontained in the Crim i na l Information 

assoc iated with the Plea A;reement . I believe it is 

wholly unjustitied and unfair to c riti c ize and pena lize 

the Company for our failure to disc over tha t these a c t s 

were taking place any earlier than we d i d . 

M.r . Mccrary , did the top aanage .. nt of the Co•pany allo w 
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a cul ture to axiat which condoned tha 111~&1 activity 

and allowed it to occur? 

Absolute ly not . It was not t o p aanagement but a n 

i ndividu3l "top manager" that apparentl y c reated a 

"cul ture" whereby a very few individuals repor ti ng ~o him 

or acting under his direction deemed it appropr i~te t o 

circumvent Company policies and procedures . To th i s day, 

I do not believe that those invol ved were aware that t hey 

were engc~ing in illegal activity . They were o r 

certainly should have been aware that the ac tiv i ty 

violated Company policy. 

Did I as "top management" kno~ ot or condone Ruch 

ac tivity? The answer is an unequivocal no! As I stated 

earl i er, Jake Horton was a trusted •ember o ! senior 

management and a trusted aeaber of the Board . Despite 

the difficulti~• inherently involved in invest i gat ing 

"one of your own , " I believe the investigative dccu~ents 

provided the co .. iaaion in this docket and in Docket 

8 9 0832-EI , the special investigative docket , cl ea rly 

reflect that the audit comaittee of the Gulf Boa rd ac t ed 

in a timely, thorough aanner. 

Mr . McCrary, tha Coapany and you bava placed a qraat deal 

of tha bl ... for the illegal activities on Mr . Horton. 

Ia thh fair? 
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I have heard the accusations that we are attempt i ng to 

place the blame on a dead man. To our knowledge, he is 

not to blame for all activit ies of Hr . croft, 

Hr. Brazwell or the others involved in the illegal 

activities of the early SO's. He was, however , without 

doubt, the instigator ot and the central figure involved 

in virtually all of the overt acts contained in the 

Criminal Information filed by the Government wh ich t o r med 

the basis for the Vlea Agreement. We did not wr i te that 

document , nor did we write the government's Statement of 

Facts. It is the governeent which plac e s the 

responsibility squarely or Hr . Horton anct those few 

employees acting at his direc tion. The facts are that he 

is responsible and that neither I nor the Board were 

aware of any of these activities until late 1988. 

Neither we nor the government became aware of the illegal 

activities involving the Dick Leo nard Gro~p until ot ter 

Hr. Ho rton's death . It is patently unfa ii· to cr i t ictze 

or penalize the Company for failure t o detect the 

collusion which was occur ring under the ci rcumstances 

It penalizing the Coapany is inappropriate, vhat action 

should the eo .. iasion take? 

I would not be so presumptuous as t o recommend a 

J 
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part icu l ar course o f a c t ion. I would reque~t t hat the 

Commission take no te o f the Government's recognit ion of 

our o wn internal efforts t o investigate wrongdoi ng and 

our cooperation with the Government's investigat. on. We 

have likewise, to the extent possible, attempted s1nc e 

1984 to keep t he ~ommiss ion and Off ice o f Public ~ounsel 

informed o f our efforts. The Company and 1ts emp loyees 

have suffered enough for acts they did not c omm i t . W1th 

the substantial criminal fine and the c l o ud undPr which 

we have all lived for the past s even years, we have give n 

"our pound of flesh . " Mismanagement would have i nvol ved 

"sweeping these e vents under the rug . " I firm ly be li eve 

that had I not a c ted with swift , decisive a c t ion in t he 

Kyle Croft matter, little, if any , of the other matter s 

would ever have been discovered . IQAt woul d have been 

mismanagement . 

I am not asking the Commission to cond o ne what has 

happened . I am asking that it refra in from tak i ng thP 

sensationalist viewpoint with wh ich thi s aatter has been 

portrayed in the aedia. ~..ook at t he very few people 

involved, the very limited amount of aoney, and t~e 

effort we have nevertheless aade t o correc t the 

situation. The s i tuatior. has been cor r e cted and I am 

finaly convinced that nothing o f the aagn i tude ot what 

has occurred is l ikely to occur aga in. As I state d in my 



1 

2 

3 

4 

5 Q. 

6 

7 }... 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 • 13 

14 Q. 

15 

16 A. 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

Docket No. 89134 5-El 
Witness : O.L. McCrary 
Page 9 

41 66 

d 1rec t testimony, we are attempting t o sta r t ovet . Th e 

healing process is well under way . This Commi ss i on 

should encourage the process, not hinder it . 

Mr. McCrary, what baa been the reaction of you~ custo~ers 

to the events of the paat aeveral years? 

Unlike the aedia , I believe most ot our customers have 

continued to focus on our cont inuing h igh-quality, low 

cost servic e. They ~now that we have been an exc el l ent 

p rovider of the aervices they demand . They al so know we 

have been a good corporate citizen in Northwest flor i da 

and that we have pledged to continue this etto r t. 

To what then do you attribute the increaae in cuato•er 

c o•plainta to the ~eaion in 1989? 

I attribute it to the adverse publici ty we r ece i ved 

during the year . One cannot reasonably expec t t o go 

through the extensive aedi a coverage we have rec eived 

without some increaBe in the leve l of compla ints. Th~ 

teet is that our rates have no t ch.anged and the h iqh 

quality ot service we provide continued throughout 1989 . 

I believe the c ustomer complaint data for the first three 

months o f 1990, contain~d in Ms . Brown's testi~ony, 

i nd i c ates that the nuaber of complaints are return i ng t o 

their historic low level. Even with the increase i n 
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1989, her testimony indicates that consumer compl a ints 

received by the Commission re l ated to Gulf Power Compa ny 

are in very small numbers . Of the ones that are 

receivud, only a few are justified. Our consucer 

complaints show a definite downward trend s1nce 198 1 , a nd 

1988 was the third year in a row in which Gulf Power 

maintained the lowest number of complaints J>er thousand 

customers ot any ot the tour major e lectric utilities and 

the lowest number ot justified complaints per 1 ,000 

customers . 

To what would you attribute this excellent perfonaance? 

Customer satisfaction in the ut i 1 i ty bus iness genet·~ll y 

means that customers feel like they are gett ing prope r 

value tor their energy dollar. This can ucually be 

summarized in two basic measures , rel i abil i t y o f electri c 

service and prices being charged tor that serv i ce . 

P'roa a policy standpoint, bov does a utility go about 

providing reliable servic.? 

There are t wo basic coaponents to providing reliable 

service ; these are adequate capital facilities 

constructed to supply the custoaers' l oad and a proper 

level of attention continuously given t o mainta in those 

fac ilities in proper working condition. The high level 
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of customer satisfaction we en joy, a ~ ev i dencAd by t~e 

consumer complaint activity, specifically the lac k 

thereof, and our own i nterna l measures of customer 

satisfaction, indicate that we are buildi ng the prcp~r 

amount r ! capital facilities, as expec ted by our 

customers, and the facilities are being properly 

maintained. were that not occurring, we know that ou r 

customers would not hes i tate to let the Commis sion know 

this by way ot consumer complaints. 

What c2oes this level of conau.aer coaplainta inc2icate with 

regard to cuatoaer satisfaction with the coat ot electric 

service? 

Given that our level of service reliability has gene r a lly 

been good over the years, the cost of our produc t is 

probably the princ ipal reason that we have seen the 

numbe!" of consumer complaints to this Co11L111ssion 

decreasing over the years. I would also give c r edit t o 

the employees of our Co•pany who dedicate thdmselves to 

helping our custoaera whenever probleas arise and in 

assisting our custoaers in aanaging their energy use. A.s 

I discussed in my direct testiaony , the price of our 

produc t is low in relative teras and low compared t o 

those of other utili ties . It has a lso been on the 

decline !or several years now . When consum&rs a re 
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gett i ng a bargain, the tendency i s not t o complain. our 

c ustomers are receiving a hlgh service value, a nd thelr 

s ubconscious realization of that i s the princ ipal reason 

they are not burdening the Comm i ssion Ottice ot Consumer 

Affairs with coaplaints. 

Hr . McCrary, are there any ot the specific areas of 

Hs. Bass' testiaony which you wish to address? 

Yes. I would like to speak to the questions raised 

relative to our continuing to do business wi th one o! the 

vendors implicated in the kickback schemes and our doi ng 

business with one ot our 1irectors. 

Would you please apeak to the issue ot continuing t o do 

business with this vendor . 

Yes. Since initially learning ot the ~xistence and 

magnitude ot these various scheaes, we have evaluated t he 

mer i ts ot continuing to do business wi th those vendor s 

involved. 

In each instance, to the best knowledge ot the 

Company, the vendor had acted upon the express 

instruction ot a former Company employee. While th ~s 

does not justify tho vendors ' actions, it did, along w1th 

the total cooperation provided to t.he Coapany and 

authorities, make the Coapany reluctant to i-ediate l y 
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terminate relations. Nevertheless , by Decembe r 31, 1988 , 

the Company had severed its ties with all bu t one o f t he 

vendors . 

The one remaining vendor is Mr. Dave Cook c f Wes t 

Florida Landscaping. To the best knowledge of the 

Company, Mr. Cook never profited !rom the improper 

actions requested of him by the few !onae-: Company 

employees involved. He has been extremely cooperat i ve 

with and he l pful to the federal authorities and the 

Coapany. West Florida Landscapi ng cont i nues t o be the 

low bidder tor some of the Company's grounds maintenance 

work. The work porformed is o! superior quality at a n 

extremely reasonable price. I see absolutely noth i ng t o 

be gained by terminating the Company's relationsh i p wi th 

Mr . Cook at this tiae. 

Mr. Mccrary, the iaaue baa a lao been raia6d vi th respect 

to Gulf'• doing busineaa with its directors , 

apecifically, Mr. J.~. Tannehill . Would you please 

co ... nt? 

Yes. OVer the years, Gulf has engaged in var ious 

business transactions with companies whose employees 

s erve on Gulf'• Board of Directors . To •Y knowledge, in 

every instance known to the company , these transac t ions 

have been arms lenqth and baaed on est abli s hed purchasing 
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Nume r ous lega l and r e gula tory 

conflict of interest d isclosure requirements prov i de all 

conc erned with ample protection ageinst wrongdoing. The 

COmf.any's own internal policies and by-laws pro v i de 

additional protections. 

The details of Gulf's business relationship are 

provided in th"t testimony of Hr. Lee. As he i nd icates, 

Gulf was doing business with Stock Equi pment Company tor 

many years prior to Hr. Tannehill's coming on Gulf's 

10 Board in 1985. Stock Equipment has his~orically provided 

11 quality, competitively priced production equ1pm ent t o 

12 Gul f Power. Pur chases from Stock Equipment, bef o re and 

13 after Hr . Tannehill's having come on the Board , ha ve been 

1 4 in strict accordance with company purchasing poli c ies a nd 

15 procedures. I a m i n f ormed that the level of purchase s by 

16 Gulf from Stock have, in tact, gone down since 

17 Hr . Tannehill became a aember of the Board. 

18 Mr. TAnnehill is a very knowledgeable, ettec~ivo 

19 aember ot Gulf's Board of Directors . His expert ise in 

20 corporate management and his knowledge ot the utility 

21 industry have been invaluable to Gulf Power Company. 

22 Were the companies of every Board aeaber to be prohibited 

23 troa doing business with Gull Power, the ability of the 

24 Company to attrac~ coape~ent, errec~ive Board aembers 

25 would be severely iapaired. This wou ld not be in the 
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best interest o f Gulf or its customers. 

Staff and Public Counsel's witnesses have reco .. ended 

that all e~nses associated vith Gulf'• part i cipation in 

Plant Scherer be disallowed . Hov do you respond? 

A.s clearly shown in Mr. Howell's rebuttal test i mony, such 

a position is extremely short-sighted. Th is Commission 

has been involved in our decision-~aking process wi t h 

respect t o Plant Scherer virtually every step of the 

way. To now deny recovery ot this i nvestment in rate 

base would violate the regulato ry compac t upon which we 

relied in aaking the inves tment. The indisputable tac t 

is the Plant Scherer investment was and is in the best 

interest o f our customers. It woul d be wholly 

inequitable to deny our shareholders a return on the ir 

investment in the short term and e :<pect the Compan r to 

retain the Plant tor t he long tera benefit of the 

custoaers . I have thoroughly reviewed our decisions over 

the past fifteen years vith respect to our capaci t y 

planning . It is clear to ae that in each instance w~ 

have acted in the best interest of our territoria l 

customers . 

You have also criticized tbe propos8d cHsallovances o f 

o ' 11 expenaea. Would you ple-e elaborate? 

Yes. our witnesses can and have justi fied t .hose expenses 
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which are at issue . I know our overall level o r expenses 

is extremely reasonable. In our Company, a great deel of 

emphas i s has been placed on keeping our rates as low a nd 

competitive as possible . We have succeeded, a~ least 

partial ly, becauae ot our ettorts to keep o ' H exper.se 

i ncreases t o a minimum. Just as important , however , has 

been meeting the mandate ot th is CommisBion t o spend at 

the level necessary to meet our statutory obligation t o 

provide quality, reliable service . We nave done th is, 

and as a resul t, our earnings and thus our financ ia l 

i nteqr i ty are &uttering. Our ex 1st i ng res i denti a l r~tes 

are already 18 .7 percent below those or the hi ghest 

investor owned utility rat es in the state and 6 .6 percent 

below the next lowest . This is a cl ear indic ation of the 

reasonableness ot our expenses , investme~ts , and 

consequently our revenue require•ents . It the 

r Acommendations ot the Public counsel w~ tnesses to be 

adopted, our reaidential ratea would be 22.4 pe r cent 

below the highest and 10.8 percent below the next 

lowest . The unreaaonableness or the position taken by 

the Public Counsel witnesses is apparent. 

Do you have any further co.aenta vith reapect to the 

aattera before the co .. iaaion? 

Yes . We have a great dea l ot reapcct t or thia regul~tory 

body and the process. We are entitled to, and bQlieve we 



2 

1 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

ll 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

2 3 

24 

25 

Docket No. 891 3 4 5-EI 
Witness: D.L . Mc Cra ry 
Page 17 

4 1 7 4 

wi ll receive , a fair and unbiased evaluat ion o! our 

case. It is clear from my tes timony and that of the 

other Company witnesses i n this case that Gu l f Powe r doe s 

deserve to receive the revenu e increase that has been 

requ~sted. Plants Daniel and Scherer are critical t o 

Gulf's provision ot low cost, reliable elec tri c service 

to Gulf's customers. An almost equal amourt of 

transmission, distribution a nd other plant has bee n added 

since our 1984 rate case. This i nves tment and the 

associated 0 ' M expenses constitute the greater part o! 

our need tor rate relief. No utility should be expected 

t o add this amount ot investment without requir i ng an 

increase in rates to support it . 

The Commission should base its decision on the !ac t s 

before it, not on unsubstantiated rumor and i nnuendo. 

Aga in, however, should any continuing or future 

investigation by an authorized government en~ity produce 

any hard evidence which shows that any amount of revenue 

increase granted t o Gulf in this Docket was based on data 

that was inflated because ot any illegal activity or. the 

part ot Gulf Power Company or its employees, that port i on 

ot the inc rease will be 1aaediately refunded, with 

interest, to our customers as soon as practical after 

such a conclusion has been reached. That is my pers onal 

and corporate guarantee to this Commission. ~s I state d 
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earl i er , this Company i s embark i ng on a ne .. ,. course. T h l s 

new cours e wi ll build on the s trengths of the past, low 

rates and reliable service, and wi l l emphasi ze c hara c ter 

and integrity . In every are a of our business , h igh 

quality customer servic e wil l be a t o p pr iority . I f we 

are to achieve thea& worthwhile goals , we must have t hP. 

revenues to support them. Baaed o n the merits o f t he 

case betore this Commis.aion , I tirml y believe we are 

deserving ot the requested inc rease. 

Does this conclude your testiaony? 

Yes. 
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1 Q (By Hr. Holland) Mr. McCrary, would you 

2 summarize your testimony? 

3 A Yea . Commissioners, after two weeks of 

4 hearings I would like to summarize several things that 

5 are evident from Gulf's presentat ion of its case and 

6 which are contained in my rebuttal testimony. 

7 Nwaber one, to m.a inta in our Co!"pany ' s 

8 financial integrity and continue our excellent record 

9 of service to our customers, we must have the rate 

10 relief that we have requested. 

11 Two, Gulf's officers and employees are 

12 credible, highly qualified, knowledgeable and dedicated 

13 to providing low cost reliable electric s ervice. 

14 Three, the illegal activities which occured 

15 in the warehouse took place in the late '70s and early 

16 80s. These problems and the people i nvolved were dealt 

17 with properly and the warehouse is now in exc ellent 

18 shape. And this is not mismanagement. 

19 Activities involving Gulf's senior vi~e 

20 president were investigated early on by Gulf Power, the 

21 FBI and the IRS. These agencies and two grand jurys, 

22 with all their subpoena power and other resources, 

23 failed to find sufficient evidence to bring 

24 indictments. It was not until mid-1989 that much of 

25 the evidence of wrongdo i ng wa s uncove red by Gul t Power 
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1 and the U. S. Attorney . Certainly Gulf Power should 

2 not be held responsible for what the FBI, the IRS and 

3 two federal qrand jurys could not do earlie r. 

4 Ratepayers have not s uffered as a result of 

5 these activities. To the contrary, they have benefited 

6 because of our delay in tiling this case. Our service 

7 is good, and our rates are low, and this does not 

8 reflect aisaanage:11ent . 

9 Mr . Horton's illegal and une thical actions 

10 were taken without the knowledge o r approval of the 

11 Board of Directors, myse l f or the executive counsel. 

12 His actions were totally contrary to company policy and 

13 were far outside the scope of his authority. 

14 Finally, in ay opinion, it would be grossly 

15 u nfair for this Comaission to penalize this Company thP 

16 current Board of Directors, executives and employees 

17 for illegal and unethical activities which they have 

8 had no part in, in which the y ha ve worked d il igently to 

~ 9 uncover and correct. Such a penalty ~~ould have a 

20 detrimental effect on our employees, the Company' s 

; t financial health a nd a detriment al effect on our 

22 ratepayers . Thank you. 

23 MR . HOLLAND: ~ender Hr . McCrary . 

24 CROSS EXAMINATION 

25 BY MR . VAllDIVER : 

FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION 
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Good evening, Mr. McCrary. 

Hello. 
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on Page 5 ot your testimony, and also here in 

4 your summary juat now, you indicated that the Company 

5 has no power to subpoena documents or compel employee 

6 or vendor• to teatify under oath, is that correct? 

7 

8 

A 

Q 

That' a correct. 

It occurs to ae that perhaps Gulf Power has 

9 an even bigge.r hammer over 1 ts vendors, and I wondered 

10 it you'd agree with me, that power being the power t o 

11 cut ott all dealings with the vendors? 

12 

13 

A 

Q 

We do have that power. 

So at a point in time when you would suspect 

14 a certain vendor or certain activities of that vendor 

15 to have been engaged in illegal activities with a 

16 member ot your company, you could have p icked up the 

17 telephone and called Dick Leonard or Hemmer & Yates and 

18 said, "I'a going to atop everything tomorrow unless you 

19 bring me all your records." Couldn't you? 

20 A We could have done that. Had we callea a 

21 vendor and told ~ia that we were not going to do 

22 business with him any longer, he probably would not 

23 have given us any records period. However, in our 

24 efforts to try t o find o~t the real truth about wha t 

25 was involved and what was going on, we did have vendors 
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1 that cooper at~ vi th ua and vi th the IRS. 

2 Q Who vera the uncooperative vendors with you? 

3 A I guess I'd have to put Ray Howoll i n that 

4 category. He disappeared without telling us what had 

5 gone on. 

6 Dick Leonard did not want to talk with us. 

7 He did aake so .. invoic .. available to us to look at, 

B but that was the extent o! his cooperation. 

9 Q And you did not threaten to terminate 

10 business 

11 A No, we didn't threaten to terminate business , 

12 we did te~inate business. 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

Q But I ma~tn to see the records at the relevant 

times? In other words, show me the records or the 

contract is over? 

A No. 

Q Did you ever take that action? 

A When ve !ound out what had occurred, we 

terminated business with Dick Leonard. 

Q Okay. On your exhibit, Mr . McCrary, you 

21 indicate that carolyn Sirmon was demoted. 

22 

23 

24 

A 

Q 

A 

That's correct. 

Did she receive a cut in pay? 

No. She bas -- her salary was !rozen, as I 

25 recall. She bas not bad an increase since. 
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2 salary? 
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A 

Q 

But her demotion involved no reduction i n 

No. 

I'd like to shift gears now to a more 

5 philosophical tack. 

4180 

6 COMMISSIONER BEARD: Before you d o, lee me 

7 ask, why? 

B WITNESS McCRARY: Carolyn Sirmon had onlj· 

9 been in the warehouse !or about six months, as I 

10 recall, when this first audit was done. She had been 

11 an stenographer, a secretary someplace, and they moved 

12 her into the varehouae. 

13 carolyn Siraon, in •Y opinion, from what I 

14 can understand, knew very little about warehouse 

15 operation. She was not involved in theft of materiels 

16 from the warehouse. ner involvement had to do with 

17 some records of transformers that had PCBs that were 

18 brought down and disposed of by Gulf Power. They were 

19 Line Power trans!oraers. There was some question about 

20 whether or not she knew that these transformer s were 

21 Line Power transformers or Cult Power transformers. 

22 She was told by her supervisor, Kyle Croft, to fill out 

23 t he records tor - - to dispose of these transformers, 

24 whi ch she did. 

25 That, and the tact that she had ha d an old 
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2 reimbursed the Company, vas the extent of her 
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3 involvement. So we didn't feel, because ot her lack of 

4 knowledge and experience in the warehouse, that what 

5 she had done was reason to do more than what we did. 

6 We moved her out ot the warehouse into an area where 

7 she waa not a••ociated with it any longer and she has 

8 been a good a.ployee since then . 

9 COMMISSIONER BEARD : I don't want to spend a 

10 lot ot tilDe, but do you ell's personnel practices have 

11 nobody in your personnel department review who is 

12 recommended to be hired in a position? 

13 

14 

WITNESS McCRARY: As to who will be hired. 

COMMISSIONER GUNTER: Let me be specific: In 

15 this case, from what I have read and seen, to say she 

16 didn't know anything about warehousing and inventory is 

17 an understatement, okay? 

18 

19 

WITNESS McCRARY : I agree. 

COMMISSIONER BEARD: Again, this is something 

20 I had a little familiarity with, the department head or 

21 whoever normally did the hiring, but as a Personnel 

22 Director, it I saw something like that, the very leas t 

23 I would do is say, "Wait a minute. " And if the big 

24 boss wants to say, •Tough, the person's going on the 

25 job,d then I've done my job; I've warned them what they 
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1 are getting and I walk on . Do you all have anything 

2 built into your system like that? 

3 WITNESS McCRARY: Yes, air. We d i d not at 

4 the time. But now all jobs, manager and above, are 

5 filled by the executive council of the Company, which 

6 is made u~ ot ae ana all the officers . We do an 

7 extensive background investigation on qualifications. 

8 We take about a halt day talking about all the 

9 candidates and the qualifications and the requirements 

10 of the job. And those jobs are filled by the unanimous 

11 vote of ae and the executive council. We also have 

12 another group that's aade up of mostly manager level 

13 that fills jobs belcw that in pretty much the same way. 

14 COMMISSIONER BEARD: When you demoted her, 

15 you froze her salary such that inflation and adjustment 

16 ranges will eventually catch up with her. 

17 

18 

WITNESS McCRARY: Yes, sir 

COMMISSIONER BEARD: But you didn't do that 

19 for Mr. Baker when you demoted him because of 

20 reorganizational change. 

21 WITNESS McCRARY: No, s i r, we just froze his 

22 sa !.ary the saae way. 

23 

24 salary. 

25 

COMMISSIONER BEARD: You did freeze his 

WITNESS McCRARY: Yes. Well, I say that. 
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l Th· ~ salary that he had put him very high in the range 

2 of the salary for the Resident Investigator. Depending 

3 on his perforaance level, and as the brac kec Cor the 

4 Resident Invaatigator grows, it will eventually catch 

5 up. And if he parforma in a excellent manner, then he 

6 is eligible to get some raise. So it's not frozen as 

7 such. 

8 COMMISSIONER BEARD: When you reorganized and 

9 demoted him from the head to, I guess, a regular 

10 inV•J&tigator or security man, did his salary at that 

11 point in tiae remain the same? 

12 

13 

WITNESS McCRARY: It rema itoed the same . 

COMMISSIONER BEARD: It was frozen then for 

14 all intants and purposes. Not upward frozen; when the 

15 time comes. 

16 Q 'By Mr. Vandiver) Is it your tes timony that 

17 Ms. Sirmon did not, in tact, falsify any Company 

1£ records? 

19 I can't be sure whether she actually knew 

20 that these transformers were Line Power transformers 

21 and s he falsified the records or -- as I say, there is 

22 some question about what --

23 0 I was just curious for purposes of the record 

24 becaus e Mr. Fell bad said she was implicated i n various 

25 schemes or some words to that effect, a nd didn't go any 
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1 f urthe r. And you seem to have painted a somewhat more 

2 innoce nt picture, it you will , ot Hs. Sirmon, and I was 

3 just curious as to 

4 A Wel l , to the extent that there was a question 

5 about the tranatoraer recorda; and ahe admitted to 

6 having a desk painted tor which she reimbursed t he 

7 compl!ny. And given the situation that we had in the 

8 warehouse in those years, this was really not a big 

9 thing. 

10 Q Okay. The word "mism4nagement" has been 

11 thrown around in this bearing an awtul lot. Would you 

12 define it tor •e, please? 

13 A Well, I guess that would depend on what 

14 you' re talking about and 

15 Q How about just your walking-around definition 

16 o! mis•anage•ent. What does mismanagement mean to you ? 

17 A Well, it would mean a t ota l disregard tor the 

18 policies, procedures ot the Company. Disregard t o r the 

19 phi losophy ot the Company. Not paying attent ion to 

20 wh4t you're supposed to be doing, not performing. 

21 It could have a variety or meanings, I guess , 

22 depending on what phase o! the Company you are ta lking 

23 about. 

24 Q You would agree with me, then, t hat it could 

25 happen through negligence or omission as opposed to an 
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1 act of criainal or evil intent? 

2 

3 

4 

5 

A 

Q 

A 

0 

I don't know that I would agree with that. 

You would or would not? 

I don't think that I would in all case~ .. no. 

Well, would you agree with me that 

6 mismanagement can occur with t he moot honest people i:-: 

7 the world in charge? 

8 A Yea. I don't think honesty has a, is a 

9 all-detenai.ning factor. 

10 Q The a2magers could be negligent or stupid or 

11 whatever and ju•t mismanage? 

12 

13 

14 

15 

A 

Q 

A 

Q 

Lazy. 

Yeah. 

could. 

Would you also agree that mismanagement could 

16 be present where a manager waits too long t:o t;1ke 

17 action against unethical employees in the organization? 

18 

19 

A 

Q 

That could happen. 

At Page 2 of your testimony, at Lines 6 and 7, 

20 you indicate that the Coapany has been penalized enough . 

21 

22 

A 

Q 

Yea, sir. 

Has the Commission imposed any penalties? 

23 A The Coaaission has not imposed a direct 

24 penalty, no. 

25 Q And further along on Page 4 a t Li nes 7 
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1 through 9, you indicate that the majority o! activities 

2 occurred prior to your time at Gulf Power? 

3 

4 Q 

The activities in the warehouse , yes. 

Oh, that's what you were referring to. 

5 Because that was my follow-up question, and that is 

6 that only 33 of the 120 counts in the pl ea agreement 

7 took place prior to your tiae, isn't that true? 

8 A I haven't countecJ them, but the situation in 

9 the warehouse occurred before I came here. 

10 Q So you ware not referring to those plea 

11 agreement counts in that statement? 

12 

13 

14 

A 

Q 

A 

Not the, no. 

Okay. 

Not the, it you , if you're going by the 

15 number of counts in the plea agreement, that would not 

16 b6 a true st.atement, if that's what you're driving at. 

17 Q That is what I'm driving at, thank you, sir. 

18 A I'm not sure that that would not be a true 

19 statement it you count dollars . 

20 My next series ot questions relate to Mr . 

21 Horton, s i r. From the date you assumed the preside ncy 

22 of Gulf Power in mid 1983 until the time of Mr . 

23 Horton's death, did he ever receive a wr itten 

24 reprimand? 

25 A I don't believe so. 
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And you would know, because you would have 

2 been the one to do i t , wouldn't rou? 

3 A Yes, sir. Not a direct written reprimand. 

4 We have, we have written some memos, we have had 

5 meetings and discuaaiona, and I have reprimanded 

6 Kr. Horton aany, aany ti•ea . 

7 

8 

9 

Q 

A 

Q 

Just not in writing? 

Not in writing. 

In your direc t testimony, we discussed the 

10 e vents surrounding the Graves contribution admitted in 

11 1984, do you recall that? 

12 

13 

A 

Q 

Yea. 

And is it correct tha t this same incident 

14 came to your attention again in 1986? 

15 A No. It first came to my attention earlier 

16 than that, right after it happened. 

17 

18 

19 

Q 

A 

Q 

Yes, sir, but it came up agajn 

In 1986 . 

i n 198 6. And I understand Mr. Baker 

20 some how brought this to your a ~tention? Is that how it 

'21 came up? 

22 A Yes. In a casual conversation with Mr. 

23 Baker, as I recall, he mentioned the tact that the 

24 Company had reiabursed Bi ll Graves for that 

25 contribution . 
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1 0 And 1986 was when you found out the whole 

2 truth about the 1984 Graves situation, it> that correct? 

3 

4 

A 

0 

That's correct. 

And did Mr. Horton' s instructions to bill the 

5 amount back to the Company raise your suspic ion again 

6 in 1986? 

7 A I'• not aure I understand just exactly what 

8 you said there. 

0 Ob, okay. 9 

10 MR. HOLLAND: Let ae object, because I don't 

11 think the record anywhere reflttcts that Mr. Horton 

12 directed the C011pany to reilllburse Mr. Graves. 

13 0 (By Mr. Vandiver) Why don't we turn to 

14 Exhibit 396, Page 23 and 24 ot 89. 

1~ CHAIRMAN WILSON: 396? 

16 

17 

18 somewhere. 

19 

MR. VANDIVER: Yes, sir. 

CHAIRMAN WILSON: I know it's behind me here 

MR. VANDIVER: I had trouble findi ng mi ne, 

20 Co111111issioner. 

21 

22 

23 

CHAIRMAN WILSON: Is it th ick or thin? 

MR. VANDIVER: Yea thick. 

CHAIRMAN WILSON : I ~ 's a thick one. What 

24 d oes it say on the front? 

25 MR . VANDIVER : "Gulf Power Company Repor t to 
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1 the Aud it Co-ittee . " 

CHAIRMAN WILSON: 396? 

KR . VANDIVER: Yes, air . 

COMMISSIONER GUNTER: Is that the one that 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

had the unsigned Horton check in it? 

10 

11 

not even 

KR . VANDIVER : 'iea, air , it ia. 

COMMISSIONER GUNTER: I've read it rut I am 

going to look tor it. 

COMMISSIONER BEARD : What page? 

KR. VANDI VER : 24. 

COMMISSIONER GUNTER: 1! I recall, wasn't 

12 that the April the 7th report, or soLeth i ng ? 

13 COMMISSIONER BEARD: January 9th o! '89. 

14 Nice try. 

1 5 COMMISSIONER GUNTER: Di!!erent one. There 

16 was one April the 9th or s~mething. 

17 

18 at mine ? 

19 

20 

21 

22 s i r ? 

23 

24 

25 

Q 

A 

Q 

A 

COMMISSIONER BEARD : Would you like the look 

COMMI SSIONER GUNTER: No. 

CHAIRMAN WILSON: May I, please? Tha nk you. 

(By Mr . Vandiver ) Do you have that document, 

I have the report t o the Audit committee. 

Okay. Could you go to Page 24 ? 

I think I have i t now. 
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1 0 It's a memo from Mr . Scarbrough to the 

2 Executive File? 

3 

4 

.,. 

0 

Yes . 

The last paragraph there on 24, "Mr. McCrary 

5 wa s unaware that Gulf Power had reimbursed Bill Graves 

6 and said he would not have agreed for Gulf to make the 

7 reimbursement"? 

8 

9 

A 

0 

That's correct. 

Who could have possibly directed Gulf Powe~ 

10 to make that reimbursement? 

A I think, I thir~ Mr. Scarbrough directed the 

12 reimbursement. And I believe he did it all in the open 

13 with memos to the Accounting Department t c issue the 

14 check. And he did it, not knowing that it was illega l 

15 for us to reimburse a political contribution. 

16 0 And you don't know the source of Mr. 

17 Scarbrough's impetus to pay this amount? 

18 A Mr. Scarbrough did that on his own. At 

19 least, that's what he told me. And that's what his, I 

20 think his memo indicates that. 

21 0 okay. 

22 A Mr. Scarbrough certa i nly was not trying t o 

23 hide the fact that --

24 0 And I'm not trying to imply that, s ir. I wa s 

25 j ust curious as to Mr. Horton' s rol e i n 1986 and your 
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reaction when you tound out that this had in tact been 

billed back to the Coapany. And I want to know who you 

then went to to see about this . Did you talk to Hr. 

Scarbrough about it, or did you talk to Kr . Horton 

about i t? 

A I talked to both ot them about it . 

Q And vha t was and the upshot was Mr . 

Scarbrough'• ... o that we have hera describing the 

events? 

A Yes. I think that's right . I think he, as a 

result ot that , I think be corrected the situa~ ion and 

wrote this memo to the tiles that described the event . 

Q And Mr. Horton then wrote a check to Mr . 

Graves to cover the political contribution that Gult 

Power had earlier made, and that got you all right with 

the IRS? 

A That is correct. 

Q Okay. I would now like to turn to the evgnts 

11111Dediately preceding Mr. Horton's death, l t I COl\ld. 

The Audit CoJDJDittee instructed you t o sever t he 

Company's relationship with Mr. Horton on April the 

7th, 1989, ia that corr ect? 

A That's correct . 

Q When did you mRet with Kr . Horton about this? 

A I aet with him about 11:20, as I recall, on 
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1 Monday morning, April the lOth. 

2 Q And that was the Monday after the Friday they 

3 had instructed you to do this? 

4 

5 

A 

Q 

That's correct . 

Did you speak to anyone about this between 

6 April 7th and April lOth that W4S not on the Audit 

7 CoJIIJilittee? 

8 

9 

10 

A 

Q 

A 

Yes. 

Who was that? 

I talked to Mr. Holland. 1 talked to Ed 

11 Addison. I talked to one o r more attorney with the 

12 Troutllan Sanders firm in Atlanta. I elso --well, no, 

13 Dr. Reid Bell, but he was on the Audit Committee. 

14 Q Okay. And in this 11:00 o'clock meeting, did 

15 you fire Mr. Horton or request that he resign? 

16 A I told him that the Audit Committee had 

17 the Audit Committee had nade a recommendation, was 

18 planning to make a recommendation to the Board that he 

19 be separated from the Company. 

20 And you understand the Audit Committee 

~ 1 comprises most of the Board? 

22 

23 

Q 

A 

Yes, sir . 

And I told him that we ~ould do thi s in 

24 several •ays. He could resign or retire, or I would 

25 work with him to separate him from the Comp any in the 
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1 most palatable way possibl•. But that this would take 

2 place . 

3 

4 

0 

A 

What was his reaction to your statement? 

His reaction was that. he wanted to talk to 

5 his wife about it and that he would get back with me 

6 that attern~on. 

7 

8 

9 

0 

A 

0 

Do you know why he w~a going to Atlanta? 

No. 

What actio~ has Gulf Power taken, or any o f 

10 The Southern Coapany's subsidiaries, i n tenae of 

1 1 investigating the cause of the crash that killQd three 

12 Southern Company employees? 

13 A What action have we taken? Well , the NTSB 

14 has done 

15 0 That's the National Transportatio n Safety 

16 Board? Excuse •• tor i nterrupting. 

17 A Yea. That's correct. They have done an 

18 exte ns ive investigation, as they always do in a plane 

19 crash . Their, at least a pa rt of their report ha s been 

20 i ssued in which they found no pilot error, no 

21 mechanical failure. No other indication that there ~ao 

22 a nything wrong with tne aircraft. 

23 0 In teras of Gu lf Power or any o ! The Sou the rn 

2 4 Company's subsidiaries, has any speci fi c investigation 

25 been done or taken place, o r is one contemplated? 
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No. We know that the PBI is investigating 

2 t he crash . There is a lawsuit pend i ng involving the 

3 plane crash; and to the e.xtent that the attorneys have 

4 retained experts and done their own investigation, I 

5 can't speak to that. 

6 MR. VANDIVER: I have no further questions, 

7 thank you, Mr. Mccrary. 

8 CHAIRMAN WILSON: Questions, commissioners? 

9 COMMISSIONER EASLEY: I have one . Hr. 

10 Mccrary, I think you attended most, i ! not all , ot the 

11 service hearings, didn't you? 

12 

13 

WITNESS McCRARY : Yes, ma'am, I did. 

COMMISSIONER EASLEY: They weren't a lot of 

14 tun , were they? 

1 ~ WITNESS McCRARY: No , ma'am. 

16 COMMISSIONER EASLEY: I came away from them 

17 with the !•pression that, while Gulf may have at o ne 

18 point enjoyed a family type of relationship out there 

19 with its customers, that Gulf doesn't r eally have that 

20 kind ot relationship any mo~e. is that right ? 

21 WITNESS McCRARY: I am sure t hat the negative 

22 publicity that we have received i n the last few y~ars 

23 has had an ette~ on our relationship with the public. 

24 COMMISSIONER EASLEY : Well, one of the things 

25 we heard about was, a nd you'll forgive t h e expression, 
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1 the Taj Mahal building. 

WITNESS Mc CRARY: Yes, ma'am. 2 

3 COMMISSIONER EASLEY: What I would like to 

4 know, what are Gulf's plans, wha t are your plans for 

5 the corporate activity to try a nd do something about 

6 that customer relationship and tho perception that !t 

7 is affecting service, whether or not it is? 

B WITNESS McCRARY: Well, one of the programs 

9 that we have going right now is to do jus t that, to try 

10 to build a better relationship with our customers . To 

11 that extent, we have asked our employees to participate 

12 and to make suggestions on what we might do. 

13 We have had something like 60 suggestions 

14 made by employees already, as I recall, and I may be 

15 off on that nUJil.ber, and a.bout half of the suggest1o ns 

16 have been implemented. They range from things such a s 

17 being able to apply for service on the telephone. whi c h 

18 we did no t have six months ago, to being able to pa y 

19 your b i ll at the corporate office. We hove s ome people 

~ o that will come in there thinki ng that tha t' s wher e t hey 

2 1 s hould come to pay thei r b il l. Up until we s tarted 

22 this program, we would ask them in a ni c e way t o g o 

23 d own to the Pace Bolulevard bu ilding. But even though 

2 1 we are not set up ther e, not equipped to handle bill s , 

25 and we don't have the c omputers and the records and 
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1 everything that they have in the Western Division, we 

2 will make arrangements. We will let a person pay their 

J bill there. 

4 That's just two examples. There are j ust 

5 many , many things that we are doing. 

6 COMMISSIONER EASLEY: One of the other areas 

7 that waR discusaed at the service hearings wero 

8 complaints about so•• ot ~he affiliated companies and 

9 some of the perceptionq, the appliance division and 

10 some ot the others, some ot the perceptions that you're 

11 in competition with local businesses and hurting them. 

12 What do you s ae as a way to mitigate that problem? 

13 WITNESS McCRARY: Well, I think, as has been 

14 stated in these hear i ngs, we have a study going now 

15 looking at our appliance sales business, to try t o 

16 determine, number one, whether we can make it a 

17 protltable business, and to try to better d efine all 

18 the pros and the cons of us being in that business. 

19 COMMISSION£R EASLEY: Have you thought o f 

20 involving any ot the customers in any ol thi s 

21 suggestion period, discussion period? 

22 WITNESS HcCRI\.RY: Yes, ma'am; yes, we have. 

23 We have had a number of focus g roups where we get 

24 c ustomers together with a facilitator who is not with 

25 the Company and just talk about things and ask them for 
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1 t heir honest opinion . And we have gotten some --

2 COMMISSI0NER EASLEY: Take some transc ripts 

3 of those service hearings. Thank you. 

4 COMMISSIONER BEkRD: If you have a first - line 

5 supervisor, for exampl e, that commits an EEOC violation 

6 or a sexual harassment vio lat ion, anct the Company has 

7 not in advance done some things t o make em:;>loyee s aware 

8 o t h ow they can combat dhat, okay, and how they should 

9 behave and/or a!ter-t~e-tact don't take a c t ion, that 

10 Company will in tact be held liable, won't it ? 

11 WITNESS McCRARY : On an EEOC complaint, 

12 that's correc t . 

13 COMMISSIONER BEARD : Mr. Hor ton's action s 

14 we've described here, and/or other employees' a c tio ns, 

15 is it safe to say that those thi ngs certainly b egan 

16 probably well bef ore you arrived? 

1 7 

18 that. 

19 

WITNESS Mc CRARY: It's probably safe t o say 

COMMISSIONER BEARD: I mean , we're no t 

2 0 talking about something that probably Wd s occ urri ng 

21 very short-term. 

22 

2 3 

24 

WITNESS Mc CRARY: Ye s, sir . 

COMMISSIONER BEAI'D : In this i 1ast a nce. 

CHAIRMAN WILSON: Any other questions, 

25 Commissioners? 
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CHAIRMAN WILSON: Redirec t? 

3 REDIRECT EXAMINATION 

4 BY HR. HOLLAND : 

5 Q I'll try not to make this very hard, Mr. 

6 McCrary. Waa a purpose ot the i nstitut ion ot the 
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7 Ethics Code in 1984 to set tort.h the expectations that 

8 yo u had with respect to eaployee conduct? 

9 

10 

A 

Q 

Yes. 

Does that Code pro v ids f o r -- I don't want to 

11 say teraination -- t i r i ng t or violation of the Code? 

12 A Yea, it does. 

13 Q In your opinic n, has the Company begun the 

14 road back to reqaining its respect in the communities 

15 in which it serves? 

16 A I think it has. We track the public 

17 confidence level, anJ while it has not shown dramati c 

18 inc reases recently, it does appear that it haa leveled 

19 out. And we thi~k wit h the programs that w& have goi ng 

20 a nd gett i ng this plowed behind us, that we will be able 

21 to rebuild t he public confidence that we deserve. 

22 CHAIRMAN WILSON: How do you track that 

23 public perception? 

24 WITNESS McCRARY: There is a survey done by 

25 an independent outfit every -- I think it's done every 
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1 two months, I'm not certain about that -- in which they 

2 make random calls to c ustomers in our area, in our 

3 service area. It's actually done trom Atlanta . But 

4 they have a computer that generates the random n~rs 

5 and t hey take these samples by asking certain questions 

6 and put that into th~ computer, and it generates the 

7 index that ' s a public confidence level. 

8 

9 

10 

11 

! 2 

13 do you know? 

14 WITNESS McCRARY : I'm not s ure h ow long , when 

15 i t first started, but I know it was being done in 1983. 

16 CHAIRMAN WI LSON: Do you keep those records? 

17 l mean, do you track them, a c hart that shows level o! 

18 public confidence and where it's gone up and down 

19 aJainst the ttme line? 

20 WITNESS McCRARY: We do keep them. Each 

21 r e port has -- I th ink it nas the previous year and 

22 ma ybe the previous few months on it. Now, I'm not sure 

23 whether we have those records back to 1983. They 

24 probably would be available. 

25 COMMI SSIONER BEARD : When you have a poli c y 
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1 in your Company, as a part of that policy you say, "If 

2 you violate this policy, then the Company will take a 

3 certain action against you.• For example, you s aid 

4 that you have a Code of Ethics that s ays that, "If you 

5 violate this , you• -- I don't think you said will be 

6 fired, •may, can be fired"? 

7 WITNESS McCRARY : I think most of the 

8 policies tbat we bave that include discharge say 

9 something to the effec t that it's up to and including 

10 ter11ination . That gives us some disc retion because 

11 none of these things are ever absolutely black and 

12 whlte, or very few o f them are. 

13 COMMISSIONER BEARD: Was that the case whe n 

14 you instituted your drug policy? 

15 

16 

17 

WITNESS McCRARY: Our drug policy? 

COMMISSIONER BEARD : Yes . 

WITNESS McCRARY: Yes, si r , absolutely. And 

18 ve spe nt weelcs and weeks with employee groups , ta lking 

19 about the drug policy. We spent --

20 COMMISSIONER BEARD: Was it an up to and 

21 including being fired, o r was it "you will be f ired" ? 

WITNESS McCRARY: Up to and including 

23 termination . That is for off - the-job use of drugs, as 

24 

25 

I r ecall . I can look that up. 

COMMI SS I ONER BEARD: That's not necessary. 
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My question --

WITNESS McCPARY: It you sell drugs, or use 

drug~ on Coapany property, I think it's pretty clear 

that you'll be terainated. ott-th~-job use o ! drugs, 

it's up to and in~luding termination, depending on the 

circumstancaa. 

COMMISSIONER BEARD: Aa a general rule, it 

you have a policy that says you will take a c ertain 

action and you don't take that action, what kind ot 

signal does that send to the employees? 

WITNESS McCRARY: Well, it you're talking 

about the drug policies --

COMMISSIONER BEARD: Actual ly, I really was 

thinking about the Code ot Ethics thing, and ~he two 

instances I was thinking about is the Code o! Ethics 

thing and the lady that was demoted , and I g uess the 

up-to-and-including response to that . I was t hinking 

about the OUI, which I assume violates Company poli c y. 

WI~'ESS McCRARY: It i s an indirect -- I 

think our Code ot Ethics states that any action that 

would ref l ect negatively on the reputation or the 

Comp any should be avoided, or something to that effect. 

So it did retlact negatively on the Company . 

COMMISSIONER BEARD: Would your drug po l i c y 

address a DUI ? 
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WITNESS McCRARY: I'm sorry? 

COMMISSIONER BEARD: Would your drug po licy 

3 address alcohol, our-type behavior? 

4 WITNESS McCRARY: No, I don't think -- it's 

5 not addressed in the drug policy. 

6 CHAIRMAN WILSON : Alcohol is not considered d 

7 drug under your drug pol icy ? 

8 WITNESS McCRARY: It is, and let me get that 

9 and just read you what it says, if I have it here. 

10 CHAIRMAN WILSON : Is tobacco a drug under 

11 your drug policy? (Laughter) 

12 

13 tobacco 

14 

15 

1 6 

17 

WITNESS Mc CRARY: I don't think we consider 

COMMISSIONER EASLEY: No. (Laughte r) 

COMMISSIONER GUNTER: Careful what you say. 

COMMISSIONER EASLEY: The answer is no. 

COMMISSIONER BEARD: We have a little 

18 dissention behind the bench here once in a wh!le 

19 

20 

ourselves. (Pause) 

WITNESS McCRARY: I'll read you a couple of 

21 parag raphs from the druf policy : "The unlawful 

2~ possession, use or sale of any drug or drug-like 

23 substance, including the abuse of prescriptio n drugs, 

24 while on thP job or Company property is a disc hargeab l e 

25 offense. In accordance with Federal and State 
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1 Stat~tes, any illegal substance must be turned over to 

2 the appropriate law e nforcement age nc y and may resul t 

3 in c riminal prosec ution." 

4 The 8 part, •orr the Job: I llegal drug use , 

5 which could adversely affec t an employee ' s job 

6 perrormance, or which may j Aopard i ze the safety of 

7 other employees, the public or Co~pany equipment, is 

8 proper cause for disc Jplinary action, up t o and 

9 including termination of employment ." 

10 So that's generally -- there's some other 

11 language that amplifieB that . 

12 Q (By Mr. Holland) With respect t o the 

13 c ustomer satisfaction, would the change i n numbe r of 

14 employee complaints between 1989 and 1990, t o •Jhi c h Ms. 

15 Brown testified and to which you refer i n your 

16 testimony, indic ate anything to you with respect t o the 

17 direction that Gulf Power Company is he aded ? 

18 A Well, I thinJc at one time the number of 

19 comp l a i nts that we had went up. I 'm not su r u exactly 

20 what that period was, but I th ink it coincided with all 

21 the negative publicity that we had had. 

22 However, the number of complain t s that we 

23 have rece i ved rec ently is headed in the right 

24 direction. 

25 COMMISSIONER EASLEY: You s aid " empl oyee 
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c omplaints ," did you mean "employee" or " customer"? 

MR. HOLLAND : I'm sorry. Thank you very 

much, customer complaint . Is that what threw you, Mr. 

McCrary? 

WITNESS Mc CRARY: No . (Laughter ) 

r.OMMISSIONER BEARD : He read your mind, nu t 

your l i ps. 

Q ( By Mr . Holland ) Mr . Mc Crary, the re's been a 

great deal of g redt numbe r of questions and 

discussions with respec t to the Bill Graves situation. 

Did Mr. Horton i nstruct or d irect Mr. Scarbrough for 

the Company to reiaburse Bill Craves? 

A It's my understanding that th is decision was 

totally Mr. Scarbrough's. 

Q Okay. Did you tho r oughly investigate the 

situation and determine i n your own mind t hat t here had 

been a miscommunication with ' eopoct t o a l l o t that? 

A Yes, I did . 

Q Did the Audit Committee, likewia e, make a 

thoro ugh review o ! that s ituation and come to a similar 

conc lus i on? 

A They did. 

Q You were asked some ques tions about employee 

assessment. Did you in 1984 direct that a val 1dated 

se lecti ~n process be established? 
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4 A Yes, I did . And I be l ieve Dr. Hyers !rom th e 

5 Univers i ty ot Florida did that validation. 

6 Q I s this validation selection process the only 

7 one that you know ot in the southeast? 

B 

9 

10 

A 

Q 

It's the only one that I know ot, yea . 

Finally, Mr. McCrary 

COMMISSIONER GUNTER: This ls go i ng to be a 

11 spear right in the heart. 

12 KR. HOLLAND: No. No, it's not. 

13 Q It's a simple questio n that you know the 

14 answer to, Kr. McCrary. (Laughter ) 

1 5 

16 

A 

17 level. 

18 Q 

Thanks a lot. 

CHAIRMAN WILSON: A real good confidencP 

(By Mr. Holland) I don' t think this w3s 

19 intended to be put this way, but in Commissioner 

20 Beard's questions ot you, on two occ asions he indi c ated 

21 in that question that Mr. Bake r had bee n demoted. Was 

22 he demote~ or was his posit i on abolished in a 

23 reorganiz, tion study and he was relocated ? 

A Well, I guess it depends on ho w you tell the 

25 s t ory. The department was reorganized. 1he job that 
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he had waa eliainated. 

COMMISSIONER BEARD: Let mo make it simple 

tor you . I didn't mean to imply you demoted h im, but 

he had achieved a lesser level job, okay? The net 

ettec t was the same. I didn ' t mean to be pre judicial 

in the terainology. 

MR . HOLLAND: That's all I have, Hr. McCrary. 

CHAIRMAN WIL30N: Anything turther !rom this 

witness? Thank you very much, Hr . McCrary. You may 

step down. 

(Witneaa McCrary exc used.) 

CHAIRMAN WILSON: Well, here we are. 

MR. STONE: I k now this is s omewhat 

anticlimactic but I do have a late-tiled ex.hibit I ' d 

like to hand out so I don't have to mail it to 

everybody. 

CHAIRMAN WILSON: Give us a break . 

(Laughter) Go ahead. 

MR. HOLLAND: I don't think ther~ are any 

outstanding objections to a ny o t the exhibits , and j u s t 

t or the sake ot Mr. Bur gess not telling me about one 

that I didn' t move in, I'd like t o movo all exhibits. 

CHAIRMAN WILSON: I t do6an't wo rk that way. 

COMMISSIONER BEARD: It ' s on you, not on Joy. 

MR. HOLLAND: Unless there are some 
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2 

3 

4 CHAIRMAN WILSON: We've taken care or all the 

5 exhibits that were actually handed out and admitted 

6 into ovida nce. Then the late-tiled& and th i~ 

7 stipulated -- it Mr. Burgess and Mr. VandivAr wil l 

8 agree tha t all --

9 MR. BURGESS: I would stipulate to everythin~ 

\0 that we haven't objected to. 

11 CHAIRMAN WILSON: We just run into the 

12 problem in the past, the reporter having to go back and 

13 tind in the record what has bee n moved and what ha s n't 

14 and then correcting that. I think we got them all. 

15 MR. HOLLAND: I think we did, too . It 

16 hothered me when --

17 MR. BURGESS: Except that o ne but --

18 (Laughter) 

19 CHAIRMAN WILSON: You mean the one -- oh, 

20 yeah, yeah, yeah. The one we weren't going to tel l him 

21 about . Okay. CSAR. Briets are due t omorrow. 

COMMISSIONER BEARD: Bring Mr . Kilgor e bac k 

23 up here eo we can talk to him about this late ·r iled 

24 exh i bit. Just kidding. 

25 CHAIRMAN WILSON: Presently the briers are 
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1 due on Ju ly the 9th . 

2 MR. VANDIVER: Mr. Holland and I had a 

3 discussion about possibly extending that schedule. My 

4 problem is my clients are not her~, and they need that 

5 to write their recoJIIllend.ation, and I would imagine they 

6 would have me for lunch if I took two days a ~ay. 

7 CHAIRMAN WILSON: When does the tile and 

8 suspend run, do you know? Never mind, I'll probably 

9 figure it out from here. August the 15th. 

10 

11 

COMMISSIONER GUNTER : We can't slip. 

CHAIRMAN WILSON: Slip with a waiver by tne 

12 Company. But that's t he only way. 

13 CHAIRMAN WILSON : Currently it is scheduled 

14 for August 9th and lOth for agenda, wi th the 14th also 

15 reserved, ao we're smack up aga inst tha~ date. 

16 

17 

MR. HOLLAND: We don't --

CHAIRMAN WILSON: Extend ing t imes is g oing to 

18 eat into Staff time, so 

19 MR. VANDrvER: Let's leave the briefs where 

20 they are, if that's acceptable to them. I j ust raised 

21 it because we had talked about it. 

22 COMMISSIONER GUNTER: Think of July 4th as 

23 " independence day." 

24 MR . VANDIVER: Here comes my c lient. He'll 

25 eat me alive . 
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CHAIRMAN WI LSON: You haven't done anything. 

KR . BURGESS: He tried. 

COMMISSIONER BEARD: He managed to get h is 

4 client to come downstairs . (Laughter) 

5 CHAIRMAN WILSON: The only other thing, Hr. 

6 Vandiver , you mentioned t o me was that briefs need to 

7 re late to issue numbers that are in the Preheari nq 

8 Order . 

9 KR . VANDIVER: And in the absence of thai., in 

10 the recommendation, Start is not go i ng to go through 

11 the brief and pick o~t any party's position on the 

12 issue . They will not app~ar in the recommendatio n. 

13 

14 

KR. HOLLAND: I understanu. 

CHAIRMAN WILSON: You also p r ovided for 

15 submission o! parties' position consis tent with t he 

1G spread s heet that has been attached to the Prc hear i ng 

17 Order. 

18 KR. VANDIVER: I think you silould di r ect the 

19 parties to do that now. 

2 0 CHAIRMAN WILSON: Do you have any problem 

21 with doing that? 

22 COMMISS ION ER £MSLEY: Are all of the part ies 

23 p r esent? 

CHAIRMAN WI LSON: We'll make them aware. 

2 ~ That's their tough luck . As far a s I'm conce rned, when 
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1 you sign up tor the case you're here !rom the beginning 

2 to the end. 

3 MR. BURGESS: Let me ask about that last 

4 requirement . Is there a part1c ular problem, and I 

5 guess this is directed mostly to technical Staff, if 

6 that follows the brief by a day or two, because 

7 sometimes when we're scrambl ing tor positions, and then 

8 they change and it alt~r• that --

9 

1 0 

MR. VANDIVF.R : No problem. 

CHAIRMAN WILSON : That's not a problem. 

11 MR . HOLLAND: Would you restate what you wa nt 

12 bec ause I didn't hear. You want one o f those do ne 

13 CHAIRMAN WILSON: When we go to agenda 

14 conference to aake a dec i sion, we're going t o be 

15 referring to this spread sheet that has the Staff's 

16 pos i tion as well the Company's and othec intervenors . 

17 I'd like tor them to be accurate so -- that 

18 may not have to be due on the day the briefs are due, 

19 but sometime very •~on thereafter, maybe on~ week 

20 fol l owing that. It you'll make sure that your numbers 

21 in your final positions agree with what's in a spread 

72 sheet and provide those to Staff. 

23 

2 4 

25 

COMMISSIONER BEARD : It's really updating 

what's in there now . You've got a good head start . 

MR. BURGESS: I appreciate that. I t wo n't 
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1 e ven t ake that long, jus t a couple of day s. 

2 CHAIRMAN WI LSON: You have this program, 

J d o n ' t you? Don 't yo u have the computer prog r am eo you 

4 can just 

5 

6 

7 to you. 

8 

9 

1 0 

11 Thank you . 

MR. BURGESS : Yaah , we have some . 

CHAIRMAN WILSON: If we don't, we ' ll give it 

CHAIRMAN WILSON: Anyth i ng furthe r ? 

MR. VANDIVER: Thank yo u , Mr . Chairman. 

CHAI RMAN WILSON: Thank you, Hr . Va nd i ve r . 

1 2 (Thereupon , hear i ng a d journed at 7:24p.m . , 

13 Thurs day, June 21, 1990 . ) 

14 - - -
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19 

20 
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22 
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24 

25 
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FLORIDA) 

COUNTY OF LEON) 
CERTIFICATE OF REPORTERS 

6 We, JOY KELLY, CSR, RPR, SYDNEY SILVA, CSR, 

7 RPR, Off i cial Co .. ission Reporter and LISA GIROD-JON€5, 

8 RPR , 

9 DO HEREBY CERTIFY that the hearing, in the 

10 captioned matter, Docket No. 891345-EI, was heard by 

11 the Florida Public service co .. ission at the t ime and 

12 place herein stated; it is further 

13 CERTIFIED that we reported in sh~rthand the 

14 proceeding s held at such time and p lace; that the same 

15 has been transcribed under our direc t supervision, and 

16 that this transcript, consist i ng of 4, 21 1 pages, 

17 Volumes I through XXVI, i nclusive, cons titutes a true 

18 and accurate transcription of our no t es o f a aid 

19 proceedings; it is further 

20 CERTIFIED that we a re neither of counsel no r 

21 related to the parties in said cause and have no 

22 interect , financia l or otherwise, i n t he outcome of 

23 thi s docket. 

24 IN WITNESS WHEREOF , we h ave hereunto set our 

25 
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1 hands at Tallahaasee, Leon County, Fl orida, this 22nd 

) 
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FSU Bureau o! Reporting 
101 East Gaines Stroot 

Tallahassee, Florida 32399-0850 
Telephone (904) 488-5981 

' Associates 

Tallahassee, Florida 32302 
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